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Key Tigures
2011

Financial performanceSales total DKK million
Diabetes care DKK million
—of which modern insulins DKKrnillion
— af which Victoza® DKK million
Biopharmaceuticals DKK million
Gross profit DKK million
Gross margin 56 of sales
Sales and distribution costs % of sales
Research and developmentcosts % of sales
Administrative expenses % of sales
Operating profit DKK million
Netprofit DKK million
Effective tax rate %
Capital expenditure, net DKK million
Free cash flow DKK million

Long-term financial targets  
 

Operating profit margin %
Growthin operating profit %
Operating profit after tax to net operating assets’ %
Cash to earnings (three-year average) %

Social performance
Healthcare professionals trained or educated in diabetes 1,000
Donations DKK million
Employees(total) Number
Averageof full-time employees Number
Employee turnover %
Relevant employees trained in business ethics %

Long-term social targets
Least developed countries where Novo Nordisk
sells insulin according to the differential pricing policy %
Engaging culture Scale 1-5
Diverse senior management teams 3

Environmental performance
Energy consumption 1,060 GJ
Water consumption 1,660 m3
CO, emissions from energy consumption 1,000 tons

Long-term environmental targets
Energy consumption {change compared with 2007) %
Water consumption (change compared with 2007} %
COemissions from energy consumption (change compared with 2004) %

Share performance
Diluted earnings per sharefADR DKK
Dividend per share (proposed) DKK
Closing share price {B shares) DKK
Market capitalisation (B shares}? DKKbillion

1. The long-term financial targets were updated in February 2012.Please refer to p 6.
2. Move Nordisk B shares {excluding treasury shares),

See more performance highlights on pp 14-15.

 

2010 Change

60,776 9.2%
45,710 10.3%
26,601 8.1%

2,317 158.6%
15,066 5.7%
49,096 9.5%

80.8
29.9
15.8
5,0

18,891 18.4%
14,403 18.7%

21.2
3,308 (9.2%)

17,013 6.5%

Long-term
financial targets!

S11 35%
26.5 15%
63.6 90%

115.6 50%

373 123.9%
B4 (3.6%)

30,483 7.0%
29,423 7.1%

9.1
98

Long-term
social targets

67 100%
43 4.0
54 100% by 2014

2,234 (2.1%)
2,047 4.3%

95 (2.1%)

Long-term
environmental targets

(20)=11% reduction by 2011
(37)=11% reduction by 2011
(55) 10% reduction by 2014

24.60 21.9%
16.00 40.0%

629 4.9%
292 1.4%
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For nearly 90 years, Nove Nordisk has combined drug discovery
with technology to turn science into sclutions for people with
diabetes. Wealso provide treatments for people with haemophilia
and growth hormone deficiency and for women experiencing
symptoms of menopause. We leverage our expertise with protein
molecules, chronic disease management and device technology
to provide innovative treatments that make a differencein quality
of care.

Novo Nordisk has more than 32,000 employees in 75 countries
and markets products in more than 190 countries. Our B shares
are listed on NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen and our ADRsarelisted
on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol NVQ. For more
information about our company,visit novonordisk.com.

 
We report on our financial, social and environmental performance
in one integrated report and we report additional information
online. This public filing contains references and links to information
posted on the company’s website; such information is not incor-
porated by referenceinto the public filing. The managementreview,
as defined by the Danish Financial Statements Act, is comprised
of pp 2-54 and 100-101.

Material and business-critical information is reported in the annual
report. Information forspecific stakeholder groupsis reported at
annualreport2011.novonordisk.com. We value feedback and
welcome questions or comments about this report or our perfor-
mance at annualreport@novonordisk.com.

2 Our 2011 accomplishments
and results

2 Letter from the Chairman
3 Letter from the CEO
5 Performancein 2011
3 Outlook 2012

4 Performancehighlights

16 Our business
17 The Novo Nordisk Way
18 Our business.

18 Gur corporate strategy
20 Triple Bottom Line management
22 Risk management
26 Pipeline overview
28 Novo Nordisk at a glance

30 Diabetes care

31 The diabetes pandemic
33 Different pathways to diabetes control
34 Changing Diabetes®

36 Biopharmaceuticals
37 Commitment to haemophilia
38 Changing Pessibilities in Haemophilia®
39 Other therapy areas

40 Governance, remuneration
and leadership

41 Corporate governance
44 Remuneration report
48 Board of Directors

51 Executive Management

52 Shares and capitalstructure

55 Financial, social and
environmental statements
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and environmental statements

100 Summary offinancial data 2007-2011 in EUR
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Letter from the Chairman _
Sten Scheibye
Crealef the Basar of Oleeciors

Nova Nordisk has been a focused phannaceutical company
specialising in therapeutic proteins, primarily for diabetes care,
for nearly $0 years. Our company is characterised by a deep
disease knowledge within diabetes, a long-term focus anda
commitment to making Innovative treatments broadly avellable
— also In areas outside diabetes,

According to new data announced in 2011, diabetes affects around
366 million people ginbally and is responsible for the deaths of
nearly4.6 millon adults each year. In comparison, 1.8 milllon people
died from HIV/AIDS in 2009. Diabetes and other chronic diseases

are becoming more prevalent all over {he world as urbanisation
increases and more people live longer.

There has never been more need fora company like Nowe Nordisk

While the short-term outlook for the global economy and for many
parts of the healthcare Industry iuncertain, the Board of Directors
is of the firm belief that Nowo Nordisk must continue to investin

innovations in freatment and in expanding its business footprint in
all comers-of the world, As the company expands globally, we only
do business the ‘Novo Nordgk Way".Thmeans we operate In ways
that balance finandal, socal and environmental responsibility for
the benefil of patients, employees, healthcare professonab, share
holders and society at large.

Theresults achieved in 2011 in terms of both sales and new product
development are remarkably-strong in ght of the difficult economic
and regulatory climate. Nove Nordisk’s balance sheet and cash
flow remain strong, and the Board has confidence In the strategic
direction and growth proseects for the campary. We have

2) Novo Nordisk Annusd leport 2011

therefore consistently Increased the dividend In recent years, raising
dividends by 33% to 10.00 Danish kroner per share for 2010. The
proposed dividend for 2071 is 14.00 kroner persham, 340% increase.
We have also continued our share repurchase programme, repur
chasing shares worth 72 billion kronerIn the 12-menth perkod
ending January 2012.

The coming years ‘will be extraordinarily importantfor Novo Morisk's
leng-term development. On one hand the company has never
had amore promising pipeline of nes products than it has today,
Extremely important launches are on the herizen. On the other
hang, the pharmaceutical industry is unger immense pressure
globally from measures ta reform healthcare and reduoe spending
on pharmaceutiaals, particularyfor new and innovative products.

In light of this, the Board has concluded that Lars Rebien Serensen,
Novo Nordisk's president and chief executive officer, is the right
person ta steer the company through this emciting - and chal-
lenging — period. | am therefore pleased that Lars has accepted
the Board's propasal to extend hes comract by three years, so that
Knew expires In 2019.

Novo Nordisk has in 2011 continued to increase sales and expand
its business ata remarkable pace, and the Soard would like to
express [ts appreciation for the leadership shawn by Lars Reblen
Sarensen and his Eeeculive Management team and the hardwar
and dedicution of the entire Nova Nordisk organisation.

Stan Schelbye
Chainman of the Board af Diréctors
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Letterfrom the CEO
Lars Rebien Sgrensen
Sreident and chile! executive office

Just as we thought the global ecanomy was recovering from the
financial cisis in 2008, we were reminded midway through 2011
that there is stil 2 long way to go.

We saw slow or no 2canemic growth and growing publdebts In
EUROpean COLMtries and the US, with the focus swinging between
the instability in the euro zone and the political stalemate in the US
Congress preventing adoption of long-term financial measures to
deal with soaring public debt.

 
The situation has been |ikened ta the Great Depression in the
1930s, with hardship felt tocay by millions of people who have
lest theirjobsor their savings, but the situation today is different
nevertheless: Itseems more like a ois of confidence — confidence

in our financial systems, in aur democracies’ ability to agree on
leng-term solutions, and In ourselves and each other.

What we are witnessing is a giant transfer. of wealth and jobs from
econamiss in the West to emerging economies in Asia, the Midgle
East, Latin America and, to some extent, Africa. This k painful far
those affected negatively, but we must not forget that more jobs
are being created than lost and that the livelingod of hundreds of
millions of people és improving, creating the foundation for more
equal growth In the future, lam confident that many companies
will emerge from the crsis.as more innovative, having realised

that Innovation f the only sustainable engine for growth. This means
finding better ways of providing goods and services and solving
unmet needs ina financially, socially and environmentally respen-
sible way.

With public spending under pressure, provision of healthcare has
again been infocus and, consequently, the pharmaceutical indusiry
has had to make significant adjustments. No market we saree has
been untouched by this trend. In 2011. Novo Nordisk faced the
consequences of healthcare refonns in many markets — with our
business in the US and Europe particularly affected.

Review of 2011

Given the current dimate,it is rewarding that Novo Nordisk was
able te grow sales by 1156 in local curences in 2011. This growth
was driven by our full portfollo.of modern Insullns, NovoRaplo®,
Levemir* and NovoMix*, but most significantly by the Increasing
demand for Victoza™, our trestment for type 2 diabetes, which
became the leader in the GLP-1 category of diabetes treatrnents.

This sales-growth, combined with continued focus on effickency
Gf our operations, resulted in aperating profit growth of 18%
reported and 22%. in local cqurendes: This is significantly above
results for the general pharmaceutical industry.

Equally significartt were thefinalisation of the dinical activites and
filing fer regulatory approval in Europe, Japan and the LS of anew
genenrtoanof insulin products. These are based on the ultre-long
prindple of Degiudec, allowing for a half-Ite twice as kang as the
basal ingulins mast commonty used today, With these products it
ourhope that we can offer both the world's longest-acting basal
insulin, Geghidec, and a combination of this basal insulin with the
world's leading short-acting Insulln. NovoRapld* (Novolog*),
BegludecPlus, which will offer people with diabetes superior

Novo NondisAnnuslReperti2oi) 3
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Our glucose control, reducing the risk of hypoglycaemia (too lw
blood sugar.and providing greater desing flesibility. Degludec is
aleo designed to provide people with diabetes the flexibility to
administer their insulin gt any time of day, at different times from
day ta day.

Vive also saw innovation across a broad range af our therapeutic
areas, With progress In the development of a mew dotting facter,
vatreptacog alfa, intended to improve treatment for haemophilia
patlerrts with Inhisitors.vealsa mac progress In the development
o7 molecules to support the expansion of our presence into
haemophilia A and B, aswell as ina strong portfolig of inflammation
developmem projects.

 
The year was also a success for the millions of people with diabetes
and other chronic conditions, | wes encouraged by the outcame
of the United Nations High-Level Meeting on non-communicable
diseases in New York in September. Move Nordisk played a part in
the adoption of a UN dedaration on dlabetes In 2006,and last year
we again played 2 role as all UN member states pledged to develop
diabetes strategies and 5et targets Tor improvementin scr@ening,
Teatment and outcomes, This was.a moment for celebration for
peoole with diabetes throughout the world. We believe the pledge
by UN member states can be translated inte concrete actian to
increase awareness of the threat diabetes poses.

Our new vision Statement and updated guiding principles and
values, The Novo Nordisk Way, dearly states that “we never
compromise.an quality. and business: ethics’, With thiswe want to
Send a clearsignal, intemally as well a5 externally, regarding what
our stakeholders can expect from each of us at Nove Nordisk. To
Support this commitment to Integrity anc high standards, In 2071
we further strengthened cur efforts to ensureadherence to our
global palicies and procedures.

Not all went according to plan, however, in 2011.

Healthcare reforms in Europe, combined with the anaemic
expectations of the future pharmaceutical market, farced us te
fe-allocate resourses from our European organkaton to fast-growing
manastsin the US and Asia. This led to the unfortunate redundancy
of approximately 200 positions, We value our people and wedid not
takethis decision lightly. Securing axstelfidency, hexanaver, is the onl
guarantee forthe long-term success of our company.

i Asia, 4 major earthquake offthe coast of Japan caused a giant
teunami which killed thousands and caused severa propertydamage
awell 2s contributing to a nuclear mettdown dose to ourfactory
in Kanyama.

We were proud io see ourJapanese colleagues standing frm while
Confranted with great personal. hardship, ensuring our ahility to
delhverlife-saving medicines ta the people cf Japan while protecting
the mesets of cur company.

4& Mowo NordiskAnnual Report 2071

Leaking ahead
We have significant confidence in aur peopl, our pipeline and
our products. Linlike most of the pharmaceuticalindustry, Nove
Nordisk will undertake a year af major investments in 2012. This
Includes Investment In further market expansion of our current
portiolio, in preparing for the lsunch of cur new-generation
insulins and in research and development activities far the medium
to long term.

Our focus In 2012 will be on:

The regulatory process for approval of Deghidec and DeqludecPius
in our malin markets and preparations for the launch of these
new-gererstion insulins.

» Execution and monitoring of the phase 3 dinical programme for
liraglutice in obesity.

» Clinical development of fixed combinations of Degludes and
Victoza®, which may offer a new option for intensification of
the treatment of type 2 diabetes.

Clinical development of vatreptaacg alfa, for Improved treatment
of haemophilia with inhibitors.

Expansion of our International organisation, particularly In fast-
grewing regions in the areas of sales and marketing, production
and research and developrnerrt.

Co-organksing the European Diabetes Leadership Farum under
the auspices of the Danish EU presidency to reach consensus
about what it will take to address the current challenges and
change diabetes.

With significant investment and continued focus on development,
We epect continued growth for Nove Nordisk In 2012 and beyond.

I would like te thank the entire Novo Nordisk organisation for their
contributions to our success this year, our stakeholdersand pariners
far their collaboration, and our sharehalders for their confidence
and continued support.

Lars Rebien Sarensen
President and chief executrve officer
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Performance
in 2011

Despite continued global economic turmoil, 2011 was a positive year
for Novo Nordisk with strong sales growth, good performance
against long-term financial, social and environmental targets
and very significant progress in the clinical developmentpipeline.

Sales increased by 9% in Danish kroner and by 11% measured in
local currencies during 2011 compared to 2010. Sales growth was
realised in both diabetes care and biopharmaceuticals. Victoza®
and moderninsulins were the main contributors to growth, with
Victoza® sales increasing by 159% (166% in local currencies) and
sales of moderninsulins increasing 8% (11% in local currencies).
Sales growth wasrealised in all regions. Sales in North America
increased by 13% andin International Operations by 12%, both
in Danish kroner, and by 18% and 17% respectively in local
currencies. Sales growth in 2011 was reduced by approximately
2 percentage points due to healthcare reforms in the US,several
European markets, Turkey and China.

 
Novo Nordisk achieved a significant milestone in 2011, as applications
for marketing authorisation of two new-generation insulins,
Degludec' and DeqludecPlus?, were filed in major markets, We
madesignificant progress in the development ofsolutions for the
range of haemophilia and other rare bleeding disorders, including
initiation of a phase 3 trial prograrmmefor a fast-acting treatment
of haemophilia with inhibitors. A phase 1 trial was also initiated for
a long-acting growth hormone formulation.

In addition, we exceeded long-term targets for resource optima-
tisation, both in terms of reduced energy and water consumption
for production and CO, emissions from energy consumption for
production. Wealso continued to exceed our long-term target for
employee engagement. Notable progress was made in reaching
targets for insulin sales in least developed countries and increasing
diversity in our senior management teams.

Financial performance
2011 performance against
long-term financial targets
By focusing on growth,profitability, operating assets and generation
of cash, our four long-term financial targets guide Novo Nordisk’s
financial development. Our historic long-term financial targets are
operating profit growth, operating margin, operating profit after tax
to net operating assets and cash conversion. The realised perfor-
manceforthree of the four ratios exceeded the targetlevel while
the operating margin performance was progressing towards the
target. See p 6 for an update on the long-term financial targets.

1. intemal designation for insulin degludec.
2. Internal designation for insulin degludec/insulin aspart.

Diabetes care sales development
Sales of diabetes care products increased by 13% measuredin
local currencies and by 10% in Danish kroner to DKK 50,425
million in 2011 compared to 2010. Novo Nordiskis the world
leader in diabetes care and now holds a global value market share
of 24% compared to 23% at the samepoint in time last year.

Moderninsulins, human insulins
and protein-related products
In 2011, sales of modern insulins, human insulins and protein-
related products increased by 5% measured in local currencies
and by 3% in Danish kroner to DKK 41,859 million compared to
2010, driven by North America, International Operations and
Region China. Global insulin sales growth was negatively impacted
by healthcare reforms in the US, Europe, Turkey and China as well
as by a decline in humaninsulin sales in Europe, the US and Japan.

Growthin 50:
operating profit
= Target
= Realised

= Realised excl pulmonary
diabetes projacts 

0. i i i i i
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Operating margin ae
= Target
= Realised
= Realised excl pulmonary

diabetes projects 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

 

%

Operating profit 100;
after tax to net 80!
operating assets
(Previously: Return 60+
on invested capital) |

40:
= Target /

= Realised 20,

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

 

%

Cash toearnings=199
Three-year average 120:

= Target op
= Realised  

60-
30-

2008 2009 2010 20112007
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fs Sales of moderninsulins increased by 11% in local currencies and

by 8% in Danish kroner to DKK 28,765 million compared to 2010,
reflecting steady sales growth. North America, International
Operations and Europe were the main contributors to the growth.
Sales of modeminsulins constitute more than 72% of Novo Nordisk’s
sales of insulin.

North America

Sales of modern insulins, human insulins and protein-related
products in North America increased by 9% in local currencies
and by 4% measured in Danish kronerin 2011. This reflects
continued solid sales performance especially of NovoRapid® and
Levemir® offset by a decline in human insulin sales and a negative
impact of approximately 5 percentage points fram the US health-
care reform enacted in March 2010. Currently, around 46% of
Nove Nordisk’s modem insulin volume in the US is being sold in
the prefilled device FlexPen® compared to around 43% in the
sameperiod last year.

Europe
Sales in Europe decreased by 1% in local currencies and by 1%
measured in Danish kroner in 2011, This reflects continued sales

growth for modern insulins offset by a decline in humaninsulin
sales. The growthofthe insulin volumein Europe is currently low,
below 3%, and Novo Nordisk’s full year insulin sales are negatively
impacted by market share losses, especially in the UK, and by
healthcare reforms implemented during 2010 and 2011 ina number
of European markets. Currently, around 96% of Novo Nordisk’s
insulin volume in Europeis being sold for use in devices.

International Operations
Sales in International Operations increased by 10% in local currencies
and by 6% in Danish kronerin 2011. The growthis primarily driven
by modern insulins with all three insulin analogues growing solidly,
complemented by modest sales growth of humaninsulin.

Long-term financial
target update
Novo Nordisk operates with four long-term financial targets to
balance short and long-term considerations, thereby ensuring
a focus on shareholder value creation. The target ‘Return on
Invested Capital’ (ROIC) has been changed to ‘Operating profit
after tax to net operating assets’ to more accurately describe
the financial elements included in the ratio. Further, the target
level has been increased to 90% from 70%. The previous
target level assumed that proposed accounting rules regarding
treatment of operating leases, the draft International Financial

Performance against long-term financial targets

Currently, around 58% of Novo Nordisk’s insulin volume in
International Operations’ non-tender marketsis being sold for
use in devices.

Region China
Sales in Region China increased by 10% in local currencies and by
10% in Danish kroner in 2011. The main contributor to growth was
sales of modern insulin with the entire portfolio growing strongly,
while sales of humaninsulin in 2011 were at the samelevel as sales

in 2010, primarily as a result of implementation of a healthcare
reform in China during 2011. Currently, around 96% of Novo
Nordisk’s insulin volume in China is being sold for use in devices.

Japan & Korea
Sales in Japan & Korea decreased by 4% in local currencies and
increased by 1% in Danish kroner in 2011. The sales development
reflects sales growth for modern insulins being offset by a decline
in humaninsulin sales. Furthermore, continucus low market growth,
below 3%,isimpacting overall growth. The device penetration in
Japan remains high with approximately 98% of Novo Nordisk’s
insulin volume being used in devices, primarily FlexPen®.

Victoza® (GLP-1 therapy for type 2 diabetes)
Victoza® sales reached DKK 5,991 million during 2011, reflecting
solid sales performancein all regions. The globalroll-out is
continuing with nearly 50 countries having launched. Victoza®
achieved global market share leadership with 58% value market
share in the GLP-1 segment in November 2011 compared to 30%
in November 2010. Furthermore, the GLP-1 class’s value share of
the total diabetes care market increased to 4.5% in November

2011 compared to 3.2% in November 2010.

Reporting Standard ‘Leases’ (ED/2010/09), would be
implementedin the near future. However, the implementation
has now been postponed and the actual contentis currently
unclear and as such,this assumption no longer applies.

The targetlevels are based on the assumption of a continuation
of the current business environment and the current scope of
businessactivities and have been prepared assuming that
currency exchangerates remain at the levels outlined in Outlook
2012 on p 13. Should any of these assumptions change, the time
horizon for achieving the long-term targets may beextended or
it may be necessary to revise the targets.

 

Operating profit growth

Operating margin

Operating profit after tax to net operating assets (previously ROIC)

Cash to earnings

Cash to earnings (three-years average)

 Previous targets Updated targets

15% 15%

35% 35%

70% 90%

50% 90%

 
 

6 Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011

 

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 8



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 9

North America

Sales of Victoza® in North America increased by 167% in local
currencies and by 155% measured in Danish kroner in 2011
compared to 2010. This reflects continuous GLP-1 market expansion
driven by Victoza®, and the value market leadership position Victoza®
achieved during 2011.

 
Europe

Sales in Europe increased by 114% in local currencies and by 115%
measured in Danish kronerin 2011. This reflects continued roll-out

across Europe andin particular solid sales growth in France, the
UK andItaly.

International Operations
Sales in International Operations increased by 781% in local
currencies and by 776% measured in Danish kroner in 2011. This
reflects a low comparison base from 2010 but also very solid sales
performance especially in Brazil and the countries of the Middle East.

Region China
Victoza® was launched in China during the fourth quarter of 2011 and
althoughinitial market feedbackis positive, actual sales are limited.

 

 

 

 

 

DKKbillion
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2010(TTsoe® North America z : i

siwiee 2009(Gs:
SS International Operations 2008 |—Cc- 456| Japan & Korea — :
i RegionChina 2007|+1.
 

0 1 20 30 40 50 60 70

DKKbillion

Salesby therapy area 2011 [SINT<2
mdiabets car 2010A<<
i Haemostasis management 7 ;

(Noose 2009Es.
1 Growth hormone therapy Ly© Hormonereplacement 2U0e eee

 

 

 

 

 

 
© Otherproducts 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

%

Sales growth 25:
Local and reported rates

= In DKK as reported
= In local currencies

0: ¥
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Japan & Korea
Sales in Japan & Korea increased, from a relatively low base in 2010,
by 348% in local currencies and by 370% measured in Danish
kronerin 2011. The sales performance in 2011 is encouraging and
reflects the expiry of the 14 days prescription limitation mid-2011
and a significant commercial focus on Victoza® throughout the year.

NovoNorm®/Prandin®/PrandiMet®
(oral antidiabetic products)
In 2011, sales of oral antidiabetic products declined by 3% measured
in local currencies and by 6% in Danish kroner to DKK 2,575 million
compared to 2010. The sales development primarily reflects lower
sales in Europe due to generic competition in several European
markets.
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Biopharmaceuticals
sales development
In 2011, sales of biopharmaceutical products increased by 8%
measuredin local currencies and by 6% measured in Danish kroner
to DKK 15,921 million compared to 2010 primarily driven by North
America and International Operations.

 
NovoSeven® (bleeding disorders therapy)
Sales of NovoSeven®increased by 7% in local currencies and by 4%
in Danish kroner to DKK 8,347 million compared to 2010.All regions
contributed to the sales growth of NovoSeven®,International
Operations was the primary contributor to growth followed by
Europe and North America.

%

Insulin volume 100;
market share
Geographic region
= North America

== Europe
= International Operations

 
 

~ Japan & Korea
— Region China be2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

%

Modern insulins 100

Global value market share gyof modern insulin segment

= NovoRapid® fa
= NovoMix® 40
= Levemir®

20eTge——»_e.a=e
2007 "2008 2009 “2010 2011
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5 Norditropin® (growth hormonetherapy)

Sales of Norditropin® increased by 5% measured in local currencies
and by 5% measured in Danish kroner to DKK 5,047 million
compared to 2010. The sales growth wasdriven by International
Operations, North America and Japan & Korea, partly offset by a
decline in Europe. Novo Nordisk is the second-largest company in
the global growth hormone market with a 24% share measured
in volume.

Other products
Sales of other products within biopharmaceuticals, which primarily
consist of hormone replacement therapy (HRT)-related products,
increased by 15% measured in local currencies and by 13% in Danish
kroner to DKK 2,527 million compared to 2010. This development
primarily reflects continued sales progress for the law dose Vagifem®
that was launched in North America and Europe in 2010. Sales
growth was furthermore supported by GlucaGen®sales in the US
and Japan, and partly off-set by a decline in Activelle® sales following
patent expiry in Europe,

Developmentin costs
and operatingprofit
The cost of goods sold grew by 8% to DKK 12,589 million in 2011.
Reported gross margin increased by 0.2 percentage point to 81.0%
compared to 80.8% in 2010. Measuredin local currencies the gross
margin increased by 0.4 percentage point in 2011 reflecting a
positive product mix impact due to the upgrade from humaninsulins
to modern insulins.

In 2011, total non-production-related costs increased by 5% in local
currencies and by 3% in Danish kroner to DKK 31,877 million
compared to 2010.

Sales anddistribution costs increased by 4% to DKK 19,004 million
primarily as a result of increased sales promotion in the US and
China, sales force expansion in the US in the fourth quarter of 2010
and costs related to the ‘Manufacturer’s fee’ part of US health-
care reform.

 

%
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Research and development costs of DKK 9,628 million remained
at an absolute level similar to 2010, Whereas thecostlevel in 2010

reflects execution of the phase 3a programmesfor both Degludec
and DegludecPlus, the cost level in 2011 reflects the initiation of
pivotal trial activities within diabetes care, obesity and haemophilia.

 
Licence fees and other operating income constituted DKK 494
million in 2011 compared to DKK 657 million in 2010. This decline
is primarily due to a non-recurring income from a patent settlement
during thefirst quarter of 2010.

Operatingprofit in 2011 increased by 18% to DKK 22,374 million
compared to 2010.In local currencies the growth was 22%.

Netfinancials and tax
Net financials showed a net expense of DKK 449 million in 2011
compared to a net expense of DKK 605 million in 2010. As of 31
December 2011, foreign exchange hedging losses of around DKK
1,200 million have been deferred for recognition in the income
statement in 2012.

For 2011, the foreign exchange result was an expense of DKK 322
million compared to an expense of DKK 1,341 million in 2010. The
foreign exchangeloss in 2011 reflects losses on foreign exchange
hedging contracts primarily related to the Japanese yen due to the
appreciation versus the Danish krone in 2011 compared to the
exchangerate level prevailing in 2010 andin the last quarter of 2009.

Also included in net financials is the result from associated

companies with an expense of DKK 4 million. In 2010, the result
from associated companies was an income of DKK 1,070 million
as Novo Nordisk recorded a non-recurring income of approximately
DKK1.1 billion from the sale of shares in ZymoGenetics,Inc.

The effective tax rate for 2011 was 22%.

Capital expenditure
and free cash flow
Net capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment for 2011
was DKK3.0 billion compared to DKK 3.3 billion in 2016. The main
investment projects in 2011 were the insulinfilling plant in Tianjin,
China,filling capacity for biopharmaceuticals and new device manu-
facturing capacity in Denmark and the US.

Free cash flow for 2011 was DKK 18.1 billion compared to DKK
17.0 billion in 2010.

Equity
Total equity was DKK 37,448 million at the end of 2011, equivalent
to 57.9% oftotal assets, compared to 60.2% at the end of 2010.
Please refer to p 59 for further elaboration of changes in equity
during 2011.
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Treasury shares and 2011
share repurchase programme
During 2011, Novo Nordisk repurchased 18,261,205 shares at an
average price of DKK 598.92 per share, equivalent to a cash value
of DKK 10.9 billion. During January 2012 Novo Nordisk repurchased
1,567,117 shares at an average price per share of DKK 678.25,
equivalent to a cash value of DKK 1.1 billion. Novo Nordisk thereby
concluded the 12-month share repurchase programmeinitiated on
2 February 2011,

Employee share programmesin 2011
Undera share savings programme, approximately 8,000 employees
in Denmark have purchased a total of 250,000 shares. The shares
were purchased at a price of DKK 638.21 —the market price on 7
December 2011. The company doesnotincur any costs related to
this programme.

Holding of treasury shares

and reduction of share capital
As of 1 February 2012, Novo Nordisk A/S andits wholly-owned
affiliates owned 26,007,303 of its own B shares, corresponding
to 4.5% of the total share capital.

In orderto maintain capital structure flexibility, the Board of Directors
will, at the Annual General Meeting in 2012, propose a reduction
in the B share capital from DKK 472,512,800 to DKK 452,512,800
by cancelling 20,000,000 B shares of DKK 1 from the company’s
own holdings of B shares at a nominal value of DKK 20,000,000,
equivalent to 3.4% of the total share capital. After implemen-
tation of the share capital reduction, the company’s share capital
will amount to DKK 560,000,000 divided into an A share capital
of DKK 107,487,200 and aB sharecapital of DKK 452,512,800.

Proposed dividend and 2012
share repurchase programme
At the Annual General Meeting on 21 March 2012, the Board of
Directors will propose a 40% increase in dividend to DKK 14.00
per share of DKK 1, corresponding toe a payout ratio of 45.3%.
For 2010, the payout ratio was 39.6%. No dividend will be paid
on the company’s holding of treasury shares.

The Board of Directors has approved a new DKK 12 billion share
repurchase programme to be executed during the coming 12
months. Nove Nordisk will initiate its share repurchase programme
in accordance with the provisions of the European Commission's
Regulation no 2273/2003 of 22 December 2003 (the Safe Harbour
Regulation). For that purpose, Nove Nordisk has appointedJ.P.
Morgan Securities Ltd. as lead manager to execute a part ofits
share repurchase programme independently and without influence
from Novo Nordisk. The purpose of the programmeis to reduce
the company's share capital. Under the agreement, J.P. Morgan
Securities Ltd. will repurchase shares on behalf of Novo Nordisk
for an amountof up to DKK2.5 billion during the trading period
starting 2 February 2012 and ending on 25 April 2012. A maximum
of 128,433 shares can be bought during one single trading day,
equal to 20% of the average daily trading volume of Novo Nordisk
B shares on NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen during the month of
January 2012, and a maximum of 7,320,681 sharesin total can
be bought during the trading period. At least once every seven
trading days, Novo Nordiskwill issue an announcementin respect
of the transactions made under the repurchase programme.

Social performance
Weactively manage three dimensions of social performance:
improving care for people whose healthcare needs we serve;
developing our employees and ensuring a healthy and safe work
environment; and makinga positive contribution to the communities
in which we operate.

2011 performance against
long-term social targets
Adoption of our long-established differential pricing policy, a
measure of our progress to expand access to diabetes care, continued
during 2011. During the year, we mettargets related to employee
engagement and made progress towardsthetarget of diversity in
all senior management teams.

Patients
Access to care

As the leaderin diabetes care, our global reach allows us to help
more people with diabetes. We estimate that 24 million people
weretreated with Novo Nordisk’s injectable diabetes care products
during 2011. More than 40% of people treated are in countries
served through Novo Nordisk’s International Operations region.
See map on pp 28-29.
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Novo Nordisk‘s long-term efforts to expand access to care and
treatmentinclude the establishment of the World Diabetes

Foundation (WDF)in 2002. In 2011, the company donated DKK 65
million to the foundation, which supports sustainableinitiatives to
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countries, The company’s regular contribution was DKK 51 million,
equivalent to 0.125% of netinsulin sales for the year, in accordance
with obligations previously agreed to by the company’s share-
holders. During 2011, the company madea special contribution of
DKK 14 million to WDFforactivities relating to the UN High-Level
Meeting on non-communicable diseases, including diabetes. Novo
Nordisk also supports the Novo Nordisk Haemophilia Foundation
(NNHP), established in 2005.In 2011, we donated DKK 16 million to
NNHF.For more information on the foundations, see pp 34 and 39.

Clinical trials

The numberof people participating in Novo Nordisk’sclinicaltrials
increased by 16% in 2011 compared with 2010. A total of 22,445
people participated in Novo Nordisk’s clinicaltrials in 2011,
compared with 19,361 in 2010.

Pricing
Our goalis for our differential pricing policy to be acceptedin all
least developed countries. We sold humaninsulin at or below the
policy price, not to exceed 20% of the average prices in the westemn
world, in 75%, or 36 of 48, of the least developed countries
during 2011.

Capacity building
To achieve sustainable improvements in access to care and personal
health, we seek to improve theability to diagnose and treat diabetes.
Overthe years, our investmentsin training and education of
healthcare professionals have been significantly scaled up. During
2011, approximately 835,000 healthcare professionals worldwide
attended training programmes conducted or sponsored by Novo
Nordisk. We also reached approximately 626,000 people with
diabetes, providing training on how to managetheir condition.

In addition to enrolling about 3,400 children with type 1 diabetes
in our Changing Diabetes? in Children programme during 2011,
taking the total to nearly 5,000, we trained about 1,000 healthcare
providers and established more than 40 clinics. The programme
supports diagnosis and treatmentof diabetes in children in
developing countries.

Employees
Our global growth continued as projected, with new employees
primarily addedin International Operations, North America and
Region China. At the end of 2011, the total numberoffull-time
employees was 31,499, an increase of 7% compared to 2010. At
the end of 2011, Novo Nordisk employed 32,632 people. In the
sameperiod, employee turnover increased to 9.8% from 9.1%.

1,000 full-time positions

Full-time employees=9911
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Engagement
Theability to manage global growth and stimulate productivity and
innovationis tracked through a set of engagementscores from
our annual employee survey, eVaice. In 2011, the consolidated
engagementscore (on a scale of 1 to 5, with 5 being the best score)
was4.3, which was consistent with 2010. Annual scores have met

our target of 4.0 or above consistently since 2006.

 
Diversity
Webelieve that fostering workplace diversity is a prerequisite for
achieving global growth. Our ambitionis that by 2014 all senior
management teamswill indude employees of both genders and
different nationalities. While pursuing this objective we insist that
all positions are filled by the best candidate. Though we have
chosen two dimensions of diversity to track at the seniorlevel, our
focus is broader, ensuring equal opportunities, non-discrimination
and an inclusive working culture.

At the end of 2011, diversity in terms of gender and nationality was
reflected in 62% of the 29 senior management teams, compared
with 54% of 28 at the end of 2010.

Health and safety
The frequency of occupational injuries decreased to 3.4 per million
working hours in 2011, compared with 4.9 per million working
hours in the previous year.

Regrettably, a Novo Nordisk sales representative in Bangladesh
died in a car accident while on Novo Nordisk business in 2011.

With thousands of employees on the roads around the world, we
introduced a new global company car guideline in 2011 that
includes the stipulation that company cars must have above-
average safety ratings using regional benchmarks.

Assurance
Quality
As sales and production output have increased, quality levels,
measured in terms of inspection findings, have been maintained.
In 2011, 76 inspections of Novo Nordisk’s production facilities were
concluded with nosignificant re-inspections or warningletters.

In 2011, Novo Nordisk had five instances of products recalled from
the market, in line with 2010. Three recalls were implemented in
single countries due to product storage issues in the distribution
chain. Two recalls, involving several countries, were the result of
product defects relating to production. None of the products
recalled caused any harm to patients. In all cases, we cooperated
with local health authorities to ensure appropriate information was
provided to pharmacies, medical practitioners and patients.

Values

In 2011, we rolled out an updated version of our values-based
Management system, the Novo Nordisk Way, with significant focus
on ensuring that the values are actively lived across the organisation.

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 12
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The Novo Nordisk Way outlines expectations for employee
behaviour, and adherence to the corporate values is audited as
part of our ongoing internal assurance process. Values audits,
called facilitations, are conducted by our global facilitator team,
consisting of senior people with deep understanding of our
business and the business environment.

From 1 October 2010 to 30 September 2011, 59 facilitations were
conducted at unit level, covering more than 13,000 employees.
Nearly 2,000 employees were interviewed to determine how
corporate values are being complied with throughoutthe organi-
sation. The primary finding during thefacilitation year was that
the rollout and training related to the new, updated Nove Nordisk
Way waseffectively implemented.

Business ethics

AS we grow, onboarding more than 5,000 new employees annually,
ongoing training helps ensure thatall new employees understand
their responsibilities and the company’s values-based management
system. Training programmesare developed to address emerging
trends, such as changesin the regulatory environment. Annual
business ethics training is required forall relevant employees.In total,
99% completed the required training in 2011 compared with 98%
in 2010.

Business ethics audits are conducted using a risk-based approach,
with on-site interviews and documentation reviews to assess

compliance with Novo Nordisk’s business ethics procedures. During
2011, 43 business ethics audits were conducted, an increase from
35 in 2010.

Our employees have an obligation to report any instances of
suspected misconduct.This obligation can be met by reporting to
@ manageror companylegal counsel. Novo Nordisk also provides
the option to report suspected business ethics misconduct
anonymously through a compliance hotline monitored by the
Audit Committee.

During 2011, 66 cases were reported through the compliance
hotline, compared with 53 in 2010. Cases reported concerned
potential instances of business ethicsissues, fraud, violations of
the Novo Nordisk Way, quality concerns and other issues. With
the introduction of the new Nove Nordisk Way, the mostsignificant
area of increase wasin failures to comply with the company values.
Disciplinary actions were taken in all substantiated cases. None of
these cases had any material impact for Novo Nordisk.

Supplier audits
To ensure product quality and manage potentialrisks in our supply
chain, we conduct both quality and responsible sourcing audits.In
2011, a total of 177 audits were conducted, compared with 192in
2010. These audits found no significantcritical non-conformities.

Environmental

performance
2011 performance against
long-term environmental targets
Performance on environmental dimensions improved and we
successfully exceeded long-term targets for reduction of energy
consumption, water consumption and CO, emissions.
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Water and energy consumption for production decreased in 2011 by
34% and 21% respectively compared with the 2007baseline,
exceeding the long-term targets of 11% reductions in both areas by
2011 compared with 2007. Consumption decreases were mainly due |
to optimisationsin insulin bulk production of diabetes care products.

 
With CO, emissions from energy consumption in 2011 down 56%
compared with the 2004 baseline, the company remains on track
to achieveits long-term target of an absolute reduction by 2014.

Inputs
Energy consumed for production decreased in 2011 by 2.1%, to
2.2 million GJ. Water consumption, however, increased fram 2.0
million cubic metres in 2010 to 2.1 million cubic metres in 2011,
an increase of 4.3%.
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Outputs
Thetotal volume of waste increased 62% to 41,376 tonsin 2011
from 25,627 tons in 2010. The increase was primarily due to the
fact that yeast slurry, previously reused as pig feed, is now disposed
of at biogas plants and therefore treated as recycled waste.For this
reason, 70% of waste was recycled in 2011 compared with 51%
in 2010.
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While sales and production increased in 2011, CO, emissions related
to productionfell by 2% compared with 2010 levels. This was due
to increased energyefficiency in all productionfacilities globally.

 
Environmental target update
With the achievementin 2011 of the company’s long-
term targets for energy and water consumption, we have
framed a new environmental strategy towards 2020 and
set interim targets for 2014. Focusing on resource pro-
ductivity, the new target levels are to keep the annual
rate of increase below the projected rate of growth in
production.

Webelieve that the new targets for 2012-2014 are
ambitious. We have achieved a 34% reduction in water

consumption for production since 2007. Because a
substantial portion of the water used by Novo Nordisk
is for fermentation and purification of insulin, finding
opportunities to further reduce water consumptionis
challenging. While we have reduced energy consumption
for production by 21% since 2007, we have moreoptions
regarding energy usage. The targetfor constraining
growth in energy consumption is therefore lower than
the target for constraining growth in water consumption.

 
Performance against Annualtargets
environmental targets 2012-2014

Energy consumption <3.3%
(change compared to prior year)

Water consumption <5.4%
(change compared to prior year) 

The target levels are based on the assumption of a
continuation of the current business environment

and given the current scope of businessactivities.
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Outlook 2012
The current expectations for 2012 are summarised in the table below:

 
Expectations are as reported, Current expectations
if not otherwise stated 2 February 2012

Sales growth
* in local currencies 7-11%
" as reported Around 4 percentage paints higher

Operating profit growth
* in local currencies Around 10%
* as reported Around 7 percentage points higher

Netfinancials Expense of around DKK 1,000 million
Effective tax rate 22-23%

Around DKK 3.5 billion

Around DKK 2.9 billion

Around DKK 18 billion

Capital expenditure

Depreciation, amortisation and impairmentlosses
Free cashflow

Novo Nordisk expects sales growth in 2012 of 7-11% measured in
local currencies. This is based on expectations of continued market
penetration for Novo Nordisk’s key products, as well as expectations
of continued intense competition, generic competition to oral
antidiabetic products, and a continued impact from the implemen-
tation of healthcare reforms primarily inthe US and Europe. Given
the current level of exchange rates versus Danish kroner, the
reported sales growth is expected to be around 4 percentage points
higher than growth measuredin local currencies.

For 2012, growth in operating profit is expected to be around 10%
measured in local currencies. The outlook for growth in operating
profit reflects significant expenditure related to the expected launch
of the ultra-long-acting insulin Degludec. Given the currentlevel
of exchangerates versus Danish kroner, the reported operating
profit growth is expected to be 7 percentage points higher than
growth measuredin local currencies.

For 2012, Novo Nordisk expects a net financial expense of around
DKK 1,006 million, The current expectation primarily reflects a net
loss on the foreign exchange contracts hedging Novo Nordisk’s
exposure in US dollar, Japanese yen and Chinese yuan. The
accounting effect of foreign exchange hedging contracts has,in
line with Novo Nordisk’s accounting policies, been deferred for
loss recognition in 2012 when the hedged operating cash flows
will be realised,

The effective tax rate for 2012 is expected to be 22-23%.

Capital expenditure is expected to be around DKK3.5 billion in
2012, primarily related to investmentsin filling capacity for bio-
pharmaceuticals in Denmark,filling capacity for insulin in Russia,
and new prefilled device production capacity in Denmark and the
US. Expectations for depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses are around DKK 2.9 billion and free cash flow is expected
to be around DKK18 billion.

All of the above expectations are based on the assumption that
the global economic environmentwill not significantly change
business conditions for Novo Nordisk in 2012 and that currency
exchange rates, especially the US dollar, will remain at the current
level versus the Danish krone during the remaining part of 2012.

Novo Nordisk has hedged expected net cash flows in a numberof
invoicing currencies and,all other things being equal, movements
in key invoicing currencies will impact Novo Nordisk’s operating
profit as outlined in the table below:

 

Key Annual impact on Novo Nordisk‘s Hedging
invoicing operating profit of a 5% period
currency movementin currency (months)

USD DKK 775 million 1
JPY DKK 179 million 12
CNY BKK 100 million 12!
GBP DKK 75 million 11
1, USD used as proxy when hedging Novo Nordisk’s CNY currency exposure,

Thefinancial impact from foreign exchange hedging is included
in note 28 pp 80-82.

Forward-looking statements
Novo Nordisk’s reportsfiled with or furnished to the US Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), induding this document and Form 20-F, both expected to be filed with the SEC in February
2012, and written information released, or oral statements made, to the public in the future by
or on behalf of Nova Nordisk, may contain forward-looking statements. Wards such as ‘believe’,
‘expect’, ‘may’, ‘will’, ‘plan’, ‘strategy’, ‘prospect’, ‘foresee’, ‘estimate’, ‘project’, ‘antidpate’, ‘can’,
“intend’, ‘target’ and other words and termsof similar meaning in connection with any discussion
of future operating or financial performance identify forward-locking statements. Examples of
such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

statementsof targets, plans, objectives or goals for future operations, including those related
to Novo Nordisk's products, product research, procluct development, product introductions and
product approvals as well as cooperation in relation thereto

» statements containing projections of or targets for revenues, costs, income (ar loss), earnings
per share, capital expenditures, dividends, capital structure, net financials and other financialmeasures

* Statements regarding future economic performance, future actions and outcomeof comtingencies
such as legal proceedings, and

Statements regarding the assumptions underlying or relating to such statements.

In this document, examples of forward-looking statements can be found under the headings
“Performance in 2011, ‘Outlook 2012’ and elsewhere.

These statements are based on current plans, astimates and projections. By their very nature,
forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific.
Nove Nordisk cautions that a numberof important factors, including those described in this
decument, could cause actual results ta differ materially fram those contemplated in any
forward-looking statements:

Factors that may affect future results include, but are not limited to, global.as well as lacal political
and economic conditions, induding interest rate and currency exchange rate fluctuations, delay
or failure of projects related to research and/or development, unplanned loss of patents,
interruptions of supplies and production, productrecall, unexpected contract breaches or
terminations, government-mandated or market-driven price decreases for Nave Nordisk’s
products,intreduction of competing products, reliance on information technology, Novo
Nordisk’s ability to successfully market current and new products, exposure to productliability
and |egal proceedingsandinvestigations, changes in governmentallaws and related interpretation
thereof, induding on reimbursement,intellectual property protection and regulatory controls
on testing, approval, manufacturing and marketing, perceived or actual failure to adhere to
ethical marketing practices, investments in and divestitures of domestic and foreign companies,
unexpected growth in costs and expenses,failure to recruit and retain the right emplayees and
failure to maintain a culture of compliance,

Please also refer to the overview ofrisk factors in ‘Risk Management’ on pp 22-24.

Unless required by law, Nevo Nordisk is under no duty and undertakes no obligation to update or
revise any forward-looking statement after the distribution of this document, whether asa result
of new information, future events or otherwise.

Nove Nordisk Annual Report 2011 13
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DKK million 2007 2008 2009 2010

Financial performanceSales
Modern insulins (insulin analogues) 14,008 17,317 21,471 26,601
Humaninsulins 12,572 11,804 11,315 11,827
Victoza® - - 87 2,317
Protein-related products 1,749 1,844 1,977 2,214
Oral antidiabetic products (OAD) 2,149 2,391 2,652 2,751

Diabetes care total 30,478 33,356 37,502 45,710

NovoSeven® 5,865 6,396 7,072 8,030
Norditropin® 3,511 3,865 4,401 4,803
Hormone replacement therapy 1,668 1,612 1,744 1,892
Other products 309 324 359 341

Biopharmaceuticals total 11,353 12,197 13,576 15,066

Total sales by business segment 41,831 45,553 51,078 60,776

North America 13,746 15,154 18,279 23,609
Europe 16,350 17,219 17,540 18,664.
International Operations! 5,876 6,353 6,835 8,335
Japan & Korea 3,843 4,196 4,883 5,660
Region China’ 2,022 2,631 3,536 4,508

Total sales by geographical segment 41,831 45,553 51,078 60,776

Underlying sales growthin local currencies 13% 12% 11% 13%
Currency effect (local currency impact) (5%) (3%) 1% 6%

Total sales growth as reported 8% 9% 12% 19%

Other financial performance
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 3,007 2,442 2,551 2,467
Operating profit 8,942 12,373 14,933 18,891
Netfinancials 2,029. 322 (945) (605)
Profit before income taxes 10,971 12,695 13,988 18,286
Netprofit for the year 8,522 5,645 10,768 14,403

Total assets 47,731 50,603 54,742 61,402
Equity 32,182 32,979 35,734 36,965

Capital expenditure, net 2,268 1,754 2,631 3,308
Free cash flaw2 9,012 11,015 12,332 17,013

Financial ratios
Percentageof sales

Sales outside Denmark 99.2% 99.2% 99.2% 99.4%
Sales and distribution costs 23.6% 28.2% 30.2% 29.9%
Research and developmentcosts 20.4% 17.2% 15.4% 15.8%
Administrative expenses 6.0% 5.8% 5.4% 5.0%

Gross margin? 76.6% 77.8% 79.6% 80.8%
Netprofit margin? 20.4% 21.2% 21.1% 23.7%
Effective tax rate? 22.3% 24.0% 23.0% 21.2%
Equity ratio? 67.4% 65.2% 65.3% 60.2%
Return on equity (ROE)2 27.4% 29.6% 31.3% 39.6%
Cash to earnings2 105.7% 114.2% 114.5% 118.1%
Payout ratioz 32.8% 37.8% 40.9% 39.6%
Payout ratio excl non-recurring events? 34.9% 36.6% 40.9% 42.8%

Ratios for long-term financial targets
Operating profit margin? 21.4% 27.2% 29.2% 31.1%
Operating profit growth (1.9%) 38.4% 20.7% 26.5%
Operating profit after tax to net operating assets 27.2% 37.4% 47.3% 63.6%
Cash to earnings, (three-year average) 87.0% 97.6% 111.5% 115.6%
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2007 2008 2009 2010 2010-2011

Social performance ChangePatients:
People with diabetes using Novo Nordisk
injectable products (million) (estimate) N/A NWA N/A N/A
Healthcare professionals trained or educated
in diabetes (1,000) NWA NWA 425 373 123.9%
People with diabetes trained (1,000) N/A NAA 416 494 26.7%
Donations (DKK million) 76 78 83 a4 (3.6%)
New patentfamilies(first filings) 116 71 55 62 29.0%

Employees:
Employees(total) 26,008 27,063 29,329 30,483 7.0%
Averageof full-time employees 24,344 26,069 27,985. 29,423 7.1%
Employee turnover 11.6% 12.1% 8.3% 9.1%

Assurance:
Relevant employees trained in business ethics NA WA WA 98%
Fulfilment of action peints from facilitations
of the Novo Nordisk Way 91% 92% 83% 93%
Productrecalls 3 2 2 5 -
Warning Letters and re-inspections 0 0 0 0 -
Company reputation with external
key stakeholders (scale 1-7) N/A, NWA NA NA

Long-term
Long-term social targets social targets
Least developed countries where Novo Nordisk sells
insulin according to the differential pricing policy 72% 64% 73% 67% 100%
Engaging culture (employee engagement) (scale 1-5) 44 4.2 4.3 4.3 4.0
Diverse senior management teams NWA 43% 50% 54% 100% by 2014

Environmental performance Change
inputs:
Energy consumption (1,000 GJ} 2,784 2,533 2,246 2,234 (2.1%)
Water consumption (1,000 m?) 3,231 2,684 2,149 2,047 4.3%

Outputs:
CO, emissions fram energy consumption (1,000 tons) 236 215 146 95 (2.1%6)
Wastewater (1,000 m4) 2,764 2,542 2,062 1,935. 5.2%
Total waste (tons) 23,345 24,314 26,362 25,627 61.5%

Long-term
Long-term environmental targets environmental targets
Energy consumption 11% reduction
(change compared with 2007) N/A (9%) (19%) (20%) by 2011
Water consumption 11% reduction
(change compared with 2007) N/A (17%) (34%) (37%) by 2011
CO, emissions from energy consumption 10% reduction
(change compared with 2004) 12% 2% (31%) (55%) by 2014

Share perfarmance
Basic earnings per share/ADR in DKK2 13.49 15.66 17.97 24.81
Diluted earnings per share/ADR in DKK2 13.39 15,54 17,82 24,60
Dividend per share in DKK 4.50 6.00 7.50 10.00
Total dividend 2,795 3,650 4,400 5,700   
1, As of 1 January 2011, Region China is reported as a separate geographical region, Before 2011, Region China was part of |nternational Operations,

The historicalfigures for 2007-2010 have been restated and are comparable with the 2011 regionalset-up.
2, For definitions, please refer to p 65,
3. Impact of Zymogenetics, Inc. share divestment, discontinuation of all pulmonary diabetes projects and impact of DAKO A/S share divestment.
4. The long-term financial targets were updated in February 2012.Please refer to p 6.
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JENNY PETTERSSON

The ‘Young Leaders in Diabetes programme involves young peoplelike Jenny from Stockholm, Sweden, working with and for young
people with diabetes to improve aveareness and address the partiqular challenges invalved in being young with diabetes. Represemting her
country’s diabetes assodation, Jenny took part in the Young Leaders In Diabetes Programme In Gubal during the Word Diabetes Congress.
held bythe Intemational Diabetes Federation in December 2011. Nove Nordisk is proud to be ameng the founding partners of this progranme.
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The Novo

Nordisk Way
Novo Nordiskis its people. As the company grows and globalises,
it is important that we continue to build on a strong foundation
of shared values. The Novo Nordisk Way, our values-based manage-
mentsystem, was updated in 2011. Ina concise and compelling
form it makes clear to employees what the company’s ambitions
are, how wewill achieve them, and what we value as an
organisation. To supportit, we have framed 10 essentials that
describe how ourvalues are put into action in the way we work
and collaborate and the way weinteract with other people.

During 2011, employees around the world explored the essence of
the Novo Nordisk Way and what it means to them. Nearly everyone,
97% of employees, participated in training activities. The updated
and simplified format has been welcomed,in particular the emphasis
on patients at the front and centre of everything we do and the clear
language on respect for everyone. The valuesare also consistent

The Novo Nordisk Way
In 1923, cur Danish founders began a journey to change
diabetes. Today, we number thousands of employees across
the world with the passion,theskills and the commitment to
continuethis journey to prevent,treat and ultimately cure
diabetes.

* Our ambitionis to strengthen our leadership in diabetes.

® We aspire to changepossibilities in haemophilia and other
serious chronic conditions where we can make a difference.

« Ourkey contributionis to discover and develop innovative
biological medicines and make them accessible to patients
throughout the world.

* Growing our business and delivering competitive financial
results is what allowsus to help patients live betterlives,
offer an attractive return to our shareholders and
contribute to our communities.

* Our business philosophyis one of balancing financial, social
and environmental considerations — we callit the Triple
Bottom Line.

® We are open and honest, ambitious and accountable, and
treat everyone with respect.

« We offer opportunities for our people to realise their
potential.

« We never compromise on quality and business ethics.

Every daywe must make difficult choices, always keeping in
mind whatis best for patients, our employees and our
shareholdersin the long run.

It’s the Novo Nordisk Way.

with the universal principles for responsible business conduct
expressed by the UN Global Compact, to which Novo Nordisk has
been asignatory since 2002.

 
A follow-up methodologyinvolving values audits, or facilitations,
helps us assess and manage the degree to which the Novo Nordisk
Wayis actively put into practice throughout our company. To
support this process, we have a global facilitator team of senior
people with deep understanding of our business and business
environment. The head of the team has a formal reportingline to
the chairmanof the Board.

For someunits, these audits take place annually; for others, the
process takes place once everythree to five years. Observations
from this process are reported to the Board of Directors each
year, See more about facilitations on pp 11 and 43.

The Essentials

The Essentials are 10 statements describing what the Novo
Nordisk Way lookslike in practice.

The Essentials are meant as a help for managers and
employeesin evaluating the extent to which their
organisational units are acting in accordance with the Novo
Nordisk Way, ie the degree to which we are ‘walking thetalk’.
The Essentials are helpful in identifying actions which
business units can take to furtheralign processes and
procedures with the thinking and valuesthat characterise the
Novo Nordisk Way.

1. We create value by having a patient-centred business
approach.

2. We set ambitious goals andstrive for excellence.

3. We are accountable for our financial, environmental and
social performance.

4. We provide innovation to the benefit of our stakeholders.

5. We build and maintain goodrelations with our key
stakeholders.

. We treat everyone with respect.

. Wefocus on personal performance and development.

. We have a healthy and engaging working environment.

. We optimise the way we work andstrive forsimplicity.oc0wonN
. We never compromise on quality and businessethics.

Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011 17
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Novo Nordisk is a focused healthcare companyspecialising in
therapeutic proteins, providing life-saving treatments for people
with diabetes and rare bleeding disorders. We also offer treatment
fer growth hormonedeficiency, as well as low-dose hormone
replacement therapy products. Finally, we carry out research and
developmentprojects targeting treatment of obesity and inflam-
mation.

Offering treatment for unmet medical needs and improving care
for people with chronic disease is what drives our ambition and
determines our strategic focus. We seek to leverage our cere
strengths in protein engineering and chronic disease treatment in
areas where we see potential for global market leadership.

We aim to grow ourbusiness in ways that are both responsible
and sustainable, managing in accordance with the Novo Nordisk
Way and the Triple Bottom Line principle.

Ourcorporate strategy
Novo Nordisk’s business is focused on those therapy areas that
leverage ourdistinct capabilities and strengths: developing and
delivering superior protein analogues andthe large-scale manu-
facturing and global commercial infrastructure necessary to make
these analogues widely available.

Ourprotein analogues are supported by innovative devices that make
treatment more convenient, whichis linked to improved rates of
treatment compliance and health outcomes. Striving to continuously
improve chronic disease therapy, we have designed these devices
to improve dose accuracy, convenience and general user-friendliness.

Novo Nordisk’s corporate strategy
Therapy area

 

Compoundsand capabilities

The same technologies are used across our entire productline.

Our high-quality, cost-effective global manufacturing infrastructure
helps Novo Nordisk make innovative treatments accessible to people
around the world. Our manufacturing infrastructure is supported
by a lean,flexible supply chain.

Although Novo Nordisk focuses on relatively few therapy areas, we
sell our products in more than 190 countries with market leadership
in both developed and emerging markets. Our launches of Victoza®
in multiple markets demonstrated our global reach.This ability is
due to our competence in and collaboration between our regulatory
affairs and sales and marketing organisations, as well as ourrelation-
ships globally with healthcare specialists.

Expand leadership in diabetes care
For those millions of people wholive with diabetes, our goalis to
offer treatment options that are safe and convenient so that they
canlive their lives to the fullest. Novo Nordisk is uniquely positioned
to address the issues at the core of the diabetes pandemic. We are
the only company with a full portfolio of human and moderninsulins
on the market, and our new-generation insulins, Degludec and
DegludecPlus, were submitted for regulatory approval in 2011.
See p 33. We are also developing even faster-acting bolus insulin
to be taken at mealtimes, which is currently in phase 1 clinical trials.

The primary intention of our research efforts in diabetesis to
address the unmet medical need to safely and effectively lower
blood glucose while reducing the risk of hypoglycaemia. As well
as developing new-generation insulins, longer term we hope to
radically changeinsulin delivery by offering tablets in addition to
injectable treatments. The developmentof oral formulationsfor
both insulin and Glucagon-Like Peptide-1 (GLP-1) analoguesisstill
at an early stage and many technological challenges remain. Our
current work involves searching far the most suitable compounds

Strategic focus
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and the best methadoforal delivery, one that will ensure that the
active ingredients are not destroyed or degradedin the gastro-
intestinal tract before being absorbed.

We also seek to expand ourleadership within GLP-1 treatment. With
the successful launch of Victoza®(liraglutide), our once-daily GLP-1
analogue, we have the leading GLP-1 treatmentfor the early stages
of type 2 diabetesin adults.

 
We are now building a GLP-1 portfolio with the intention to provide
an even broaderrange of treatment options, induding longer-acting
versions to improve convenience. Our late-stage GLP-1 pipeline
includes two new treatments, a fixed combination of Victoza® with
Degludec, which may offer the benefits of both compoundsina
convenient solution, and a novel once-weekly GLP-1 analogue,
semaglutide.

While there is not yet a cure for type 1 diabetes, we are conducting
research in cooperation with leading academic centres to tackle
the roots of the condition. At our Hagedorn ResearchInstitute, we
are making progress towards preventing and ultimately curing
diabetes through projects involving stem cell biology and beta cell
regeneration. For information on ourefforts to find a cure, see
annualreport2011.novonordisk.com.

Establish presence
in obesity treatment
Obesity is known te be a majorrisk factor in developing type 2
diabetes, cardiovascular disease and a range of otherlife-threatening
diseases. Despite the growing prevalence of severe and morbid
obesity globally, there are currently only a few treatment options.

In studies of people with diabetes and people with obesity who do
net have diabetes,liraglutide has shown the potential ta reduce food
intake with the result of controlling weight. We are therefore
exploring the option of using liraglutide as a new way oftreating
high-risk patients, those with obesity-related medical conditions
such as high blood pressure and high cholesterollevels.

Gaining regulatory approval for antiobesity medications remains
a major challenge. Compounds developed by other pharmaceutical
companies to target obesity have experiencedsignificant challenges
in obtaining regulatory approval due to concerns aboutside effects
outweighing potential benefits. However, given the results seen so
far in randomised controlled trials, we believe liraglutide can offer
benefits for people with severe obesity and co-morbidities.

Achieve leadership in haemophilia
Our ambition is to achieve leadership in haemophilia by improving
the efficacy of prevention and treatment of bleeding episodes with
improved treatment options forall patients. With a significant
numberof compoundsin clinical development, weare set to build
astrong portfolio of recombinant products, covering all the main
segments of the haemophilia market.

Weintroduced NovoSeven®for the treatment of haemophilia
patients with inhibitors 15 years ago andit remains the leading
recombinant bypassing agentavailable for the 3,500 people with
haemophilia whe have developed inhibitors to conventional
treatments. To further improve treatment of bleeding episodes
for people with inhibitors, we have a fast-acting recombinant
factor Vila analogue, vatreptacog alfa, with improved efficacy in
phase 3 clinical development.

Weare leveraging our core protein capabilities and our under-
standing of haemophilia to develop factorVIII and factor IX
compounds for the treatment of haemophilia A and B respectively.
The primary focus of these developmentprojects is to treat and
prevent bleeding episodes and consequently reduce damageto
joints. In 2011, these projects were eitherrecruiting patients in phase
3 trials or approvedtoinitiate phase 3 trials.

Novo Nordisk filed for regulatory approval of a recombinantfactor
XIll treatment in the US and Europe during 2011. This treatment,if
approved, will be the only recombinant treatment option for the
600 people worldwide diagnosed with congenital factor XIll
deficiency.

Achieve leadership
in growth disorders
Novo Nordisk’s strategy in growth hormonetherapyis to achieve
leadership by providing innovative and convenient products and
devices as well as a full range of service offerings for physicians and
patients in markets where services can be delivered. Norditropin®
is the only liquid, room temperature-stable growth hormone
productavailable in a prefilled pen device, the ergonomic
Norditropin® FlexPro® with an easy-touch dosing mechanism.

Weare also developing a long-acting growth hormone formulation,
currently in phase 1 trials.

Establish presencein inflammation
Our expertise in design of therapeutic proteins and chronic disease
care can be leveraged to address the significant unmet medical
needsin diseases caused by chronic autoimmuneinflammation.
Initial clinical tests of first-in-class, protein-based therapuetic agents
that reduce the overactive immune responseindicate the patential
to offer significant benefit to patients, but these projects arestill
at an early stageof clinical development.

There are a significant numberof peaple with autoimmuneinflam-
matory diseases who do not adequately respond to current
treatments. In order to successfully build a presence in treatment
ofinflammation, we are investing in early-stage research with the
hopeof finding the underlying mediators of inflammatory
conditions and developing new treatments, particularly for
patients who are unresponsive to current treatments.

Nove Nordisk Annual Report2011 19
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management
Weaim to grow ourbusinessin ways that are both profitable and
responsible. Recognising that long-term business successrelies on
a healthy economy, environment and society, we manage our
business in a way that addresses multiple dimensions of perfor-
mance: financial, social and environmental. We apply the Triple
Bottom Line principle as a lens for decision making. This approach
supports long-term success by creating shared value for society
and ourinvestors.

OurTriple Bottom Line business principle is anchored in our company
bylaws, the Articles of Association, and the Novo Nordisk Way.
Wedrive our secial and environmental performance with the
samediligence and focus as ourfinancial performance.All business
units are responsible for monitoring and reporting on their perfor-
mance in all three dimensions, based on long-term goals and targets
cascaded through the balanced scorecard process. Managers and
employeesare also encouraged to takeinitiatives that extend
beyond compliance measures.

 
Our corporate priorities reflect initiatives in support of business
objectives as well as broader sustainability goals. Qur main con-
tributions include expanding access to healthcare and promotion
of healthylifestyles, offering an inclusive, healthy and engaging
working environment, driving carbon reduction and climate
advocacy, pursuing resource efficiency, combating corruption
and ensuring consistent responsible business practices and good
governance.

In 2011, we strengthened internal governance and oversight
of our corporate sustainability efforts and made progress
in embedding the Triple Bottom Line more firmly across the
organisation. The Sustainability Committee, with representation
from all parts of the business, has overall responsibility for setting
direction for strategic and proactive management ofthe sus-
tainability agenda. This includes implementation ofinitiatives
in support of the company’s long-term sustainable growth and
in accordance with the UN Global Compact and other voluntary
commitments. For more aboutthe internal Novo Nordisk boards

and committee structure for managing multiple dimensions of
performance, see annualreport2011.novonordisk.com.

The financial, social and environmentalpriorities that determine
the indicators we use to manage performance are listed on pp
14-15.

Deliver competitive financial results
Growing our business and delivering competitive financial results is
what allows us tc help patientslive betterlives, offer an attractive
return to our shareholders and contribute to our communities,

Ourtargets for operating profit margin, operating profit growth
and the ratio of operating profit after tax to net operating assets
provide a guide to the level of growth and profitability to which
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weaspire. The targets also help managementestablish a balance
between growing our business profitably in the near term and
ensuring the companyis able to make investments in longer-term
growth, including investmentsin clinical development of
improved therapies.

The growth target for operating profit has been viewed as the
cornerstonefinancial target since we began usingfinancial
targets in 1996.It allows for deviationsin individual yearsif
necessitated by business opportunities, market conditions or
exchange rate movements. The continued improvementin
efficiencies at our manufacturing facilities around the world
and, longerterm,in the productivity of our global sales force
supports improvements in our operating margin, as does
improvementin the ratio of administrative costs to sales. Our
cash to earnings helps ensure that we are able to pay an
attractive dividend.

Offer a healthy and engaging
working environment
Webelieve that having a healthy and engaging working
environment helpsattract, motivate and retain employees and
thatthisis critical to sustaining our company’s growth and
positive contributions to society. Employees around the world
advocate healthylifestyles, improved prevention, detection and
treatment of diabetes, and patient support activities through
their work as well as through voluntary initiatives. On World
Diabetes Day in November 2011, for instance, more than 7,500
employees in more than 50 countries engaged over 1 million
peoplein activities to raise awareness about the diabetes
pandemic.

We have a long-term target to maintain a high level of employee
engagement, whichis assessed through the annual company-
wide survey, eVoice. Survey questions also assess adherence to
companyvalues, employees’ perceptions of the quality of manage-
ment, their working environment and well-being. This information
is used by local and corporate managementto addressanyissues
discovered through employees’ feedback.

As our business becomesincreasingly global, it becomes even
more important to embrace diversity and embody a global
mindset. We believe that diverse management teams are best
suited to drive performance, foster innovative thinking and
nurture collaboration between people with different perspec
tives. We aim to increasediversity because we believe doing so
offers a competitive advantage.

Our leadership development programmes emphasise personal
leadership and respect for the integrity of each individual.
Training for managers indludes decision-making that balances
short- and long-term considerations and considers multiple
dimensions of performance.

Helping peoplelive betterlives
Helping people live betterlives is at the core of our business. We
act on the premise that everyone has a right to health. Access to
care is not only an issue in developing countries. As we seek to
reach out to more people, we have now begunto report
estimates of the numberof people treated using Novo Nordisk
diabetes care products.
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A decade ago we began addressing the issues of inadequate
access to health, introducing a preferential pricing policyin all of
the least developed countries, launching dedicated programmes
fer underprivileged populations, including women andchildren,
and advocating the need for Changing Diabetes® and Changing
Possibilities in Haemophilia®,

While we have made progress, we also realise that a different
approachis neededto increase the scale of our impact, particularly
as global health becomesa higherpriority on the political agenda. In
2011, we announced a new approach to accessto health, informed
by candid stakeholder dialogues and high-level engagements with
policymakers. See novonordisk.com/sustainability.

We have also reaffirmed that low-priced insulin will remain in the
company’s portfolio in low-income countries. Much more can be
done, yet success hinges on the ability of governments, industry
and civil society acting together to deliver sustainable, effective
responses. In 2011, Novo Nordisk worked onseveral fronts to
forge partnerships that have the potential to be transformational
overtime.

Promoting responsible
business practices
We never compromise on quality and business ethics. In a business
environment in which compliance requirements constantly increase,
Novo Nordisk has further geared up to manage developments.
Thisis the result of significant efforts invested in expanding the
business ethics compliance programme with global policies and
procedures, governancestructure, training, audits and
investigations.

All relevant Novo Nordisk employees are required to be trained
annually in business ethics guidelines and we train third parties
whe act on our behalf to align understanding of compliance
requirements and Novo Nordisk's ethical standards. We have also
now improved tracking and disclosure offinancial interactions
with healthcare providers.

Wedrive progress through systematic management and oversight.
While seeking to exploit opportunities to act in ways that are
both responsible and profitable, we also vigilantly manage risks
to our business by monitoring trends and continuously adapting
our business practices. Our enterprise risk management system
considers both financial and non-financial risks, along with
plans or processes to manage these risks.

From this platform, focused on mitigating risks, we are reinforcing
a strong ethical mindset in every aspect of the way we do business.
Expectations for working with integrity are embeddedin job
descriptions, management systems and internal audit processes.

Adherenceto voluntary guidelines and participation in
stakeholder dialoques helps us anticipate and prepare for new
requirements. Prior to the adoption of the United Nations
Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, Novo Nordisk
has been actively engaged in shaping the agenda for businesses’
responsibility to respect human rights, and in 2011 we commis-
sioned an analysis to assess which additional steps will be
necessary to take in orderto live up to the guidelines.

Decoupling environmental
impacts from business growth
While growing our business and increasing sales, we seek to
reduce the consumption of natural resources and manufactured
inputs, such as packaging, generated by our businessactivities
and supply chain. In addition to reducing negative impacts, our
approach focuses on contributing te solving global challenges
suchas climate change.

Qver the past decade, we have demonstrated the ability to
decouple resource consumption and emissions from sales
growth. In 2011, we expanded our environmental management
from a focus on resource productivity optimisation related to
production to include sustainability aspirations across the entire
value chain for our customer footprint and our contribution to
communities.
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Contributing to sustainable growth
Case studies of our business approachin different markets
quantify benefits to patients, cost savings in healthcare systems
and productivity gains resulting in sustainable societal value.
Through cur Blueprint for Change programme we document
shared value creation and assess the potential for enhanced
value. Our most recent studyis from the US and shows how
concertedefforts to improve prevention and early detection of
type 2 diabetes can improve quality oflife and reduce healthcare
costs. Doing so hasgiven us a competitive edge in terms of strong
relationswith stakeholders, a highly engaged workforce in the US
and recognition as a great place to work. See novonordisk.com/
sustainability.

OurTriple Bottom Line approach
Financially and economically responsible

 
——_—>

Environmentallyarate ile responsibleresponsi
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Risk

Management
We believe that our dynamic approachto risk management ensures
that key risks are proactively identified, assessed and managed.For
shorter-term risks, we have an ongoing assessment process that
takes into accountthelikelihood of an event,its potential impact on
the business and the need for mitigating action.

Maintaining and monitoring a systematic, integrated process to
continually assess businessrisks is the responsibility of Executive
Management.The Risk Management Board, which has repre-
sentatives of senior managementfrom all parts of the business
andis chaired by the chief financial officer, sets the strategic
direction for the risk management process and challenges the
overall risk profile for Novo Nordisk.

Novo Nordisk’srisk policy
Ourpolicy for risk managementis to proactively manage
risk to ensure continued growth of our business and to
protect our people, assets and reputation. This means
that we will:

® utilise an effective and integrated risk management
system while maintaining businessflexibility

® identify and assess material risks associated with our
business

® monitor, manage and mitigaterisks.

Ourrisk willingness
Our risk willingness is characterised by the following:

* We develop new innovative products to improve
treatmentof serious diseases such as diabetes and

haemophilia. We accept the high level of risk involved
in bringing such preducts to market to meet the needs
of patients in terms of both safety and efficacy.

© We make every effort to reduce safety risks to the
lowestlevel possible in both clinical trials and already
marketed products. The well-being of patientsis
paramount.

» We take a conservative approach to the management
of financialrisks.

® Westrive to reduce supply chain risks through proactive
business continuity planning, regular inspections and
back-upfacilities.

* We never compromise on quality and business ethics.

For more about ourrisk management process, see
annualreport2011.novonordisk.cam.
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Most important risks
Below are the risks we assess as having the greatest potential
impact on our business. The risks are not ranked, but are categorised
and described,including 2011 developments in eachrisk area.

In the process of setting our strategy, we also identify risks that
are potential barriers to the achievementof our long-term
ambitions. For these risks, see pp 18-21.

Market risks
Price pressures
Healthcare costs are rising and, in many countries, are outstripping
the pace of economic growth. There is increasing economic,political
and regulatory pressure to contain these costs, including spending
on pharmaceutical products. The continued global economiccrisis
has further exacerbated this trend, Examples of how Novo Nordisk’'s
key markets are affected indude:

» US: Healthcare reform legislation was enacted in 2010,
Continued federal budgetissues could lead te furtherpricing
reformsfor products purchased through the Medicare and
Medicaid programmes.

» Europe: As the region's debtcrisis builds, a number of European
governments have announced or implemented several rounds
of healthcare reforms, intensifying an already challenging
operating environment with significant pricing pressures.

© China: Price reductions for pharmaceutical products were
introduced in September 2011 as part of healthcare reforms.
Provincial-level tenders have been introduced in someparts of
the country.

Documenting treatment benefits is one way to ensure that
innovation is properly valued. Novo Nordisk conducts a
considerable numberofclinical and health-economic studies to

substantiate the benefits of our products for patients and society,
particularly for improved diabetes treatment.

Biosimilar competition
The market for therapeutic proteins is becoming more accessible
to biosimilar producers. Regulatory processes in Europe and the
US may changeto facilitate potential approvalof bicsimilar
products withoutfull clinical development once patents expire.
Increasing pressure on governments to contain healthcare costs
makes this scenario morelikely.

To addressthis risk, Novo Nordiskis continuously develaping in-
novative medicines to address unmet medical needs. One example
is our new generation of insulins, Degludec and DegludecPlus. In
2011, more than half of Nove Nordisk’s diabetes care sales were
for modern insulins under patent protection. Novo Nordisk anti-
cipates that the expiration of certain patents could impact sales
within the next five years, but the potential launch of new products
should offset the impact of currently protected products going
off patent.

Earlier generations of insulin products have been off patent for
yearsso this is a risk with which Novo Nordiskis familiar and has
considerable experience addressing. Biosimilar human insulin
products have been present on the European market for several
decades but have had only a marginalimpact.In countries such
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as India and China, where Novo Nordisk has long had biosimilar
competition, Novo Nordisk has maintained an insulin volume
market share of more than 60%.

Research and developmentrisks
Bringing new products to market
Continued growth in our business depends on Novo Nordisk’s
ability to develop and offer better treatments to patients. At each
stage of the developmentprocess, which includes extensive non-
clinical tests and clinical trials as well as an elaborate regulatory
approval process, we may encounterserious obstacles which may
delay our product initiatives and add substantial expense, or which
could cause us to abandon a project altogether. Significant delays
in bringing new products such as Degludec and DegludecPlus to
market would impact our ability to reach long-term financial
targets.

In our experience, there is a less than 35% chanceof a diabetes
product candidate in phase 1 in the pipeline ultimately being
approved for marketing, while the chance of success is around
40% for phase 2 product candidates and rises to around 70% for
phase 3, although there remainssignificant uncertainty regarding
the timing and success of the regulatory approval process. As the
Novo Nordisk pipeline becomes morediversified, these figures are
likely to decline towards industry standards over a longer period.
The reasons for delays orfailure include, for instance,failure of
the product candidate in non-clinical studies because of safety
concerns; problems in completing formulation and othertesting
and work necessary to support a regulatory approval process;
adverse reactions to the product candidate orindications of other
safety concerns;failure of clinical trial data to support the safety
or efficacy of the product candidate; inability to manufacture, in
a timely and cost-efticient manner, sufficient quantities of the
product candidate for development or commercialisation activities;
andfailure to obtain, or delays in obtaining, the required regulatory
approvals for the product candidate or the facilities in whichit is
manufactured.

As a result of the risks and uncertainties involved in progressing
through non-dinical development and clinical trials, and the time
and cost involved in obtaining regulatory approvals, we cannot
reasonably estimate the nature, timing, completion dates and costs
of the efforts necessary to complete the development.

Production and quality risks
Supplydisruptions
Failure or breakdownin any of the company's vital production
facilities could adversely affect the results of operations and could
potentially cause employeeinjuries or infrastructure damage. Fire-
prevention design, alarms andfire instructions, annualinspections,
back-up facilities and safety inventories are aimed at mitigating
this risk. To spread this risk geographically and optimise costs and
supply logistics, we have established production capacity on five
continents. See the map of our productionfacilities on pp 28-29,

Significant decisions were made in 2011 with regard to the
geographical spread of our facilities. The Board of Directors
approved investmentplans for implementation of new filling and
packaging facilities for biopharmaceutical products, ensuring
back-up production capacityforall filled biopharmaceutical
products. After the earthquake, tsunami and nuclear powerplant
failure in Japan in March, our packaging plant in Koriyama, 60
kilometres from the affected nuclear powerplant, had to close

 

for two weeks. An additional warehouse has been established
450 kilometres from the affected area and a number of measures

are in place or are being considered to ensure supply to the Japanese
market in the event of a future emergency.

Risk of product recalls
Product safetyis directly linked to patient well-being, so product
safety and quality are paramount concerns from both financial and
reputational perspectives. While the gross risk is high, with product
safety issues having the potential to adversely affect operations,
webelieve that our vigorous efforts to proactively manage and

aot
£
5

mitigate this risk effectively reduce the company’s netrisk profile. ca=
[@) 

We have a global quality system in place, which ensures effective
mitigation ofrisks to patient safety and product quality by struc
tured and controlled design, development and productionrisk
reductions. The risk reduction activities span the entire life cycle
of any of our products and are ensured by the completeness and
full complianceof our quality management system withall
regulatory requirements including standard operating proce-
dures, quality audits, quality improvement plans and systematic
senior management reviews.

For information on Novo Nordisk’s product recalls from 2007 to
2011, see pp 10 and 96.

Financialrisks
Exchangerates
Novo Nordisk’s reporting currency and the functional currency of
corporate operations is the Danish krone, whichis closely linked to
the euro in a narrow range of +2.25. The majority of oursales,
however, are in US dollars, European euros, Chinese yuan, Japanese
yen and British pounds. Exchangerate riskis therefore the company’s
biggest financialrisk and the risk has grown in impartance as thesize
of international markets and the share of sales in different currencies

have increased. To managethis risk, the company hedges expected
future cash flows for selected key currencies.

For more information on how the company managesthisrisk, see
note 27 to the Consolidated financial statements on pp 79-80.

Tax cases

In the course of conducting a global business, transfer pricing
disputes may occur. Ourpolicy is to pursue a competitive tax level,
meaningat or below the average for the company’s peer group,in
a responsible way. This means paying relevant tax in jurisdictions
where business activity generates profits. Generally, Novo Nordisk
affiliates pay tax in the countries in which they operate.

We also seek to keep tax levels stable and predictable. To manage
uncertainties regarding tax, we have negotiated multi-year
agreements in key jurisdictions.

For details on taxes paid by the company in 2011, see note 9 on p 69.
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Ourbusiness

Ethical risks
Marketing practices
In a competitive environment with increasing regulation, mar-
keting practices can be the source of legal action or reputational
risk. Our reputation as a trusted healthcare partneris integral to
effectively maintaining and growing our business. At the same
time, the regulatory context for marketing activity is constantly
changing. A business ethics policy and global business ethics
procedures, paired with close monitoring of performance,
reporting requirements and audits and reviews, all aim to
mitigate these risks. Significant resources are also dedicated
to training sales and marketing people around the world.

In May 2009, Novo Nordisk entered into a Deferred Prosecution
Agreement (DPA)for a three-year period with the US Department
of Justice relating to certain actions undertaken by Novo Nardisk
underthe Oil For Food Programmefor Iraq. We must comply with
the terms of the DPA in orderfor the case to be dismissed. Novo

Nordisk has subsequently enacted a detailed pragrammeto en-
sure compliance with the DPA,including a reinforced governance
structure, enhanced third-party due diligence systems and periodic
testing of systems, policies and procedures.

In February 2011, the office of the US Attorney for the District of
Massachusetts served Novo Nordisk with a subpoenacalling for
the production of documents regarding potential criminal offences
relating to the company’s marketing and promotionpractices for
the products NovoLog®, Levemir® and Victoza®. Novo Nordiskis
cooperating with the US Attormey in this investigation.

In June 2011, Novo Nordisksettled a civil case with the US

Department of Justice and twoindividuals regarding alleged
improper marketing of NovoSeven®. As part of the settlement,
Novo Nordisk paid 25 million US dollarsin total, but denied any
wrongdaing.In addition to the financial settlement related to
marketing practices in the United States regarding NovaSeven®,
as part of the agreement with the US DepartmentofJustice, our
USaffiliate entered into a five-year Corporate Integrity Agree-
ment with the Office of the Inspector General of the US Depart-
ment of Health and HumanServices. Under that agreement, our
USaffiliate will add additional reporting and other procedures to
its already robust compliance programme. Corporate Integrity
Agreements are customaryin this type of settlement and most
of the major pharmaceutical companies operating in the US are
party to similar types of agreement.

Significant legalissues relating to marketing practices are
included in note 31 on pp 86-87.

Legalrisks
Intellectual property
Patent rights are a very importanttocl for promoting innovation,
leading to new and better products and processes, and stimulating
long-term economic growth and job creation. Governments may
not recognise the validity of patents or may be unable or unwilling
to upholdintellectual property rights. We will enforce our patent
rights in cases of infringement whenthis is deemed advisable by
Executive Managementafter careful analysis of the patient, social,
commercial and legal aspects of enforcement.Similar analysisis
applied to decisions to defend Novo Nordisk’s patent rights against
otherlegal challenges. Significant legalissues related to intellectual
propertyare included in note 31 on pp 86-87.
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Otherlegal risks
Novo Nordisk operates in a complex global legal and requlatory
environment with diverse national, regional and international
legislation. Legal issues may arise relating to product liability claims,
company practices and government investigations.

For more information onsignificant legal issues, see note 31 on
pp 86-87.
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WINNIE MARGIT HANSEN

Winnie works a5 4 process operator al our production site in Hjerring, Denmark, where she & responsible for quality control of
NovoTwist® needles. By aligning processes, Winnie and her colleagues are new able ta produce more neecles with shorter lead times,
‘without compromising high quality standards. Winnle sees her role a5 defivering the highest-quality products to peaple with diabetes
exactly when they reed them.
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o Pipeline overview

In 2011, progress was made throughout Novo Nordisk’‘sclinical
developmentpipeline. This overview illustrates key development

Phase 1

Studies in a small group (usually 10 to 100) of healthy volunteers,
and sometimespatients, to investigate howthe body handles new
medication and establish maximum tolerated dose.

activities, including entries into the pipeline and progression of
development compounds. See more at novonordisk.com/investors
and clinicaltrials.gov.

Therapy area Indication Compound Description

Diabetes

Obesity

Type 1 and 2
diabetes

Type 1 and 2
diabetes

Type 2 diabetes

Type 2 diabetes

Type 1 and 2
diabetes

Type 1 and 2
diabetes

Type 2 diabetes

Type 2 diabetes

Type 2 diabetes

Obesity

Biophanmaceuticals

Haemophilia

Growth
hormorne

Inflammation

Congenital FXIll
deficiency

Haemophilia A

Haemophilia with
inhibitors

Haemophilia B

Haemophilia A

Haemophilia

Growth hormone

deficiency
Rheumatoid
arthritis

Crohn's disease

Rheumatoid
arthritis

Rheumatoid
arthritis

Rheumatoid
arthritis

Rheumatoid
arthritis
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Insulin degludec

Insulin degludec/
insulin aspart

Insulin degludec/
liraglutide

Semaglutide

NN1218

NN1953

Liraglutide depot

NN9924

NN9S926

Liraglutide

Catridecacog

Turoctoceg alfa

Vatreptacog alfa

NS-GP

N&-GP

NN7415

NN8640

Anti-IL-20

Anti-NKG2d

Anti-NKG2d

Anti-C5aR

Anti-IL-21

Anti-NKG2a

Ultra-long-acting basal insulin. Submitted for
marketing authorisation in five markets in 2011.

Ultra-long-acting basal insulin in combination with a boost of bolus insulin
aspart. Submitted for marketing authorisation in four markets in 2011.

Liraglutide and insulin degludec in a combination. Phase 3 trials ongoing.

Once-weekly GLP-1 analogue. Fhase 2 completed.

Ultra-fast-acting insulin, Phase 1 trials ongoing.

Long-acting oral insulin analogue. Phase 1 trial ongoing.

Once-weekly liraglutide formulation. Phase 1 trial initiated during 2011.

Long-acting, oral GLP-1 analogue formulation. Phase 1 trial ongoing.

Long-acting, oral GLP-1 analogue formulation. Phase 1 trials ongoing.

Once-daily GLP-1 analogue. Phase 3a programme ongoing.

 
Recombinant coagulation factor XIll. Submitted for regulatory approval
in the USin the first quarter and in the EU in the second quarter of 2011.

Recombinant coagulation factor VIll. Phase 3 completed in 2011.

Fast-acting recombinant coagulation factor Vila analogue.
Phase 3 trial initiated during the second quarter of 2011.

Long-acting recombinant coagulation factorIX derivative.
Phase3trial initiated during the second quarter of 2011.

Long-acting recambinant coagulation factor Vill derivative.
Phase 3 start planned for 2012.

Novel haemophilia treatmentin the form of a monoclonal
antibody against a tissue factor pathway inhibitor.

Long-acting growth hormone formulation. Phase 1 trial initiated January 2012.

Humanised recombinant monoclonal antibody. Phase 2atrial completed.

Humanised recombinant monoclonal antibody. Phase 2a trial ongoing.

Humanised recombinant menaclonal antibody, Phase 2a trial ongoing,

Humanised recombinant monodonal antibody. Phase 1 trial ongoing.

Humanised recombinant monoclonal antibody. Phase 1 trial ongoing.

Humanised recombinant monoclonal antibody. Phase 1 trial ongoing.
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Phase 2 Phase 3

Testing a drug at various dose levels in a larger group of patients Studiesin large groupsof patients worldwide comparing the new
to learn aboutits effect on the condition andits side effects.In medication with a commonly used drug or placebo for both safety
phase 2,clinical trials are carried out to evaluate efficacy (and and efficacy in orderto firmly establish its benefit—risk relationship.
safety) in specified populations of patients. The outcome of phase=Phase 3a coverstrials conducted afterefficacy of the medicine is
2 trials is dinical proof of concept and the selection of dose far demonstrated but prior to regulatorysubmission, whereas phase
evaluation in phase3trials. 3b covers clinical trials completed after regulatory submission.

Ri . . Filed/regulatory
Intended clinical benefit Phase 1 Phase2 Phase 3 approval

Long-acting basal insulin with duration of action of more than 24 hours
for flexible once-daily treatment and an improved safety profile.

alw
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A soluble fixed combination of long-acting insulin combining
basal insulin coverage with a distinct meal peak of insulin.

 
Combinationof basalinsulin degludec and the GLP-1 analogueliraglutide
providing the benefits of the two components in a single preparation.

Provides theclinical benefits of a GLP-1 analogue withless frequent injections.

Ultra-fast-acting insulin for further improvement
of glycaemic controlin relation to a meal.

Basal insulin delivered as a tablet.

Provides the clinical benefits of a GLP-1 analogue with less frequent injections.

A long-acting GLP-1 analogue delivered as a tablet.

A long-acting GLP-1 analogue delivered as a tablet.

Sustainable weightloss for people with severe obesity,
including those at particularrisk of developing diabetes.

Prophylactic treatment of people with FXII congenital deficiency.

Prevention and treatment of bleeds in people with haemophilia A.

Effective and sustained resolution of bleeds in people with haemophilia and
inhibitors, reducing the need for re-treatment and the time to pain relief.

Prophylaxis and treatment of bleeds in people with haemophilia B.

Prophylaxis and treatment cf bleeds in people with haemophilia A.

Potential prophylactic treatment of haemophilia with subcutaneous administration.

Provides the clinical benefits of growth hormone with less frequent injections.

Novel mechanism of action intended to improve treatment outcomes
in patients who do not respond adequately to existing treatments.

Novel mechanism of action intended to improve treatment outcomes
in patients who do not respond adequately to existing treatments.

Novel mechanism of action intended to improve treatment outcomes
in patients who do not respond adequately to existing treatments.

Novel mechanism of action intended to improve treatment outcomes
in patients who do not respond adequately to existing treatments.

Novel mechanism of action intended to improve treatment outcomes
in patients who do not respond adequately to existing treatments.

Novel mechanism of action intended to improve treatment outcomes
in patients who do not respond adequately to existing treatments.
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Novo Nordisk at a glance
Novo Nordiskis a world leader in diabetes care and has a leading
position in haemophilia treatment. Wealso provide growth
hormone therapy and hormone replacement therapy and have
developmentprojects targeting inflammation, obesity and the
full spectrum of rare bleeding disorders. We have morethan
32,000 employees working in 75 countries. See pp 89-90
fora list of our subsidiaries.

 
 

 
@ North America

@ Europe
© International Operations :
@ Japan & Korea wa
© Region China
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® Headquarters and corporate hubs
© Research and developmentcentres
®@ Productionfacilities

Affiliates

® Representative offices

o*

People treated with injectableSales by geographic region
North America 40.1%
i Europe 28.9%
@ International Operations 14.1%
BJapan & Korea 9.4%
© Region China 7.5%
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Nove Nordisk diabetes care

products by geographicregion (estinate)
i North America 14%
i Europe 23%
© International Operations 42%
Bi Japan & Korea 5%
© Region China 16%
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Full-time employees (average)
by geographic region
North America 15.2%

@ Europe 56.2%
@ International Operations 13.19%
Japan& Korea 3.2%
@ Region China 12.3%

Ourbusiness

Peoplein clinicaltrials
by geographic region
@ North America 34.5%

Europe 34.2%
© International Operations 24.1%
Bi Japan & Korea 3.3%
i@ Region China 3.9%
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TRACEY SAVERING

Tracey, from Bronxville, Nev York, was diagnosed with gestational diabetes while expecting her baby. Tracey was alle to manage the
‘Condition by focusing on portion caninol, healthier eating and getting mare exercise. Gestational diabetes affects 3-159 of all pregnancies.
Managing the condition 6 Important to avokd complications for both the mother and Infant.

30) Novo NordiskAnnual Report 2011
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Diabetes care
Novo Nordisk has pioneered many therapeutic breakthroughs in
diabetescare and today diabetes remains our primary focus. We
are the market leader in diabetes care, with about 50% of the
totalinsulin market, 43% of the modern insulin (insulin analogue)
market and 58% of the Glucagon-Like Peptide (GLP-1) analoque
market based on volumeat year-end.

While diabetes care has improved greatly in recent decades, there
arestill millions of people dying, losing their eyesight or requiring
amputations because of poorly controlled diabetes. We know
that people with diabetes often suffer complications because of
poorblood glucose control.’

This is a result of a numberof factors, including undertreatment
becauseof fear of hypoglycaemia or weight gain, a commonside
effect of insulin treatment. People with diabetes also struggle to
follow complex treatment regimens exactly, and insulin doses are
sometimes missed. Lack of access to diabetes medicine and care
is still a barrier to treatment for millions.

In our efforts to defeat diabetes, we have focused our research
and developmentactivities on addressing the unmet medical
need to reduce blood glucose withoutthe side effect of low
bloed glucose episodes, called hypoglycaemia. Findings from a
landmark study in the UK showed that reducing blood glucose
levels by close to 1% would reduce diabetes-related deaths by
more than 20% and reduce microvascular complications by
nearly 40%.? Microvascular complicationsinclude diabetic
retinopathy, which causes 10,000 cases of blindness annually
in the USalone.*

We are dedicated to Changing Diabetes® and improving the
health of people with diabetes. We do this by developing
innovative treatments intendedto serve individual needs and

different stages of diabetes. In addition, we work with govern-
ments, healthcare providers, patient organisations and people
with diabetes to improve standardsof care throughout the world.

The diabetes pandemic
Diabetesis a chronic disease currently estimated to affect more
than 366 million people.If current trends persist, the International
Diabetes Federation predicts that the numberof people affected
by diabeteswill rise to more than 550 million by 2030. Globally,
diabetes accounted for 11% of total spending on healthcare in 2011.4

For diabetes, the rule of halvestells the story of missed oppor-
tunities along the care pathway, which includes prevention,
diagnosis, access to care, achieving treatment targets and
achieving desired outcomes. Of the estimated 366 million peaple
with diabetes, only about half have been diagnosed.

Themillions of people whose diabetes is undiagnosed and
therefore untreated areat risk of developing complications that
will significantly impair their quality oflife and increase healthcare
costs. The cost of treatment is usually a small fraction of overall
spending on diabetes care, with most spending allocated far
serious complications related to inadequate medicalcare. In the
US and Eurape, for instance, insulin accounts for 3% of the total
cost associated withtreating diabetes.

Key eventsin diabetes
¢ Degludecfiled for regulatory approvalin five markets

and DegludecPlusfiled in four markets.

® Levemir® approved for paediatric use in the EU.

® Levemir® approved for treatment of gestational
diabetes in the EU.

® Levemir® approved for add-on therapy to Victoza®
for type 2 patients in the EU.

Coi
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® Phase3 trialinitiated for insulin degludec/liraglutide
fixed-dose combination.

® FlexTouch®, our newest innovationin prefilled devices,
approved in the EU and introduced in the UK.

 
DKKbillion

Diabetes care 2011
Sales development
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Diabetes rule of halves
Of the estimated
366 million people
with diabetes...

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 

Only around 6%
are estimated to

about have well-managed
50% are diabetes and desired
Hiagnnmedl health outcomes

of which
about 50%
receive
care. of whichabout 50% :

achieve of which
treatment about 50%
targets...

Petre —_
Evidence fram medicalliterature suggests thet approximately halfof most commonchronicdisorders
are undetected:the ‘fule of halves’, Actualratesofdiagnosis and treatmentvary in different countries**
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Diabetescare

Unfortunately,it is not only those with undiagnosed diabetes who
go untreated. Only half of people diagnosed have access to treatment.
Ensuring access to care can prevent complications and support
human, social and economic developmentby reducing the burden
untreated diabetes places both on healthcare systems and families.
Of those people whose diabetes has been diagnosed and who
are receiving treatment,it is estimated that only half achieve
treatment targets and only half of those are achieving desired

Whatis diabetes?

Diabetes is a metabolic disorder affecting the wayour bodies use
digested food for growth andenergy. Over 4 million people die
of complications caused by diabetes every year and millionsmore
suffer disabling, costly andlife-threatening complications such as
heartattack, stroke, kidney failure, blindness and amputation.
Diabetes has two main forms: type 1 and type 2 diabetes.

Type 1 diabetesisalifelong autoimmune disease that develops
when the body creates an immunereation against its own
cells, destroying beta cells in the pancreas. As a result, the
pancreas stops producinginsulin, typically at a young age. At
least 90% of people with diabetes have type2, whichis
caused by a combinationoflifestyle and genetic factors.
People with type 2 diabetes maystill make their owninsulin
in the pancreas, but the insulin producedis insufficient and
is not used as effectively by the body.

Most of the long-term health complications associated with
diabetes are due to persistent high blaod glucoselevels, which
can cause kidney damage, neurological damage,cardiovascular
damage, damageto the retina or damageto the feet and legs.

Diabetes-related deaths could be reduced by 20% if average
blood glucoselevels (HbA,,} were reduced by 1%.?

Potential complications
of uncontrolled diabetes

Stroke
: Risk:

Benes Up to fourtimesaslikely.isk:

Diabetesis a leadingcause of blindness.
Effective treatment:

Reduces deterioration

Effective treatment:
Reduces stroke.

Heart attack

in eyesight. Risk:
Three timesaslikely,

‘ x and heart diseaseis up
Total kidney failure to fourtimes as likely.

Risk: Effective treatment:
Three times aslikely. Reduces therisk
Effective treatment: of heart failure.
Reduces the causes

of kidney failure,

32 Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011

 Amputation
Risk:
A leading cause of
non-traumatic lower
limb amputations.
Effective treatment:
Reduces the number
of amputations.

outcomes. Unfortunately, only by achieving treatment targets can
the risk of developing severe complications be substantially reduced.

Diabetes treatment
For type 1 diabetes, insulin is introduced at diagnosis and is
required for the test of the personslife. Treatrment guidelines for
type 2 diabetescall for differentapproaches atdifferent stages.

Fortype 2 diabetes,thefirst stepis lifestyle changes — diet and
exercise — andinitiation of tablet therapy (metformin).If treat-
ment targets are not met, GLP-1 therapy, such as Victoza®, or
basal insulin, such as long-acting Levemir®, may be added.

Asathirdstep, treatment guidelinescall for a transition to
intensive insulin treatment to maintain good glycaemic
control. This may include adding a rapid-acting modern
insulin at mealtimes, such as NovoRapid®, in addition toa
basalinsulin. For insulin initiation, a modern premix insulin
such as NovoMix® with dual release to cover both mealtime

and basal requirementsmayalso be used.

One challenge in managing diabetesis to maintain appropriate
blood glucoselevels, adjusting insulin dosing as necessary to
balance the impact of food and exercise. Low blood glucose
levels cause hypoglycaemia, which,if untreated, can lead to
seizures or unconsciousness.In rare cases, hypoglycaemia can
lead to permanent brain damage or death.

Progression of type 2diabetes
and treatmentintensification

Diet and exercise

Tablets

Betacellfunction 
Time
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Different pathways
to diabetes control

Moderninsulin portfolio
Using protein engineering, we have created a portfolio of insulins
that offers options for individual treatment needs, accommodating
different treatment norms and capabilities worldwide. Modern
insulins are designed to mimic the body's own physiological
insulin regulation of blood glucose levels more closely than
injected human insulin, resulting in better glucose control, lower
levels of hypoglycaemia and increased convenience for people
with diabetes.

 
Novo Nordisk’s modern insulin portfolio includes:

» Levemir®, a soluble, long-acting modern insulin for once-daily
use for type 1 and 2 diabetes. Whenit is time to begin insulin,
Levemir® provides glucose control with a favourable weight
profile. Weight maintenanceis important because insulin has
long been associated with weight gain, a barrier to beginning
insulin treatment according to diabetes experts. Levemir®is also
the first and only basal insulin analogue approved for two- to
five-year-olds with diabetes.

NovoRapid® (NovoLog® in the US), the world’s most widely
used rapid-acting insulin for use at mealtimes. For people with
type 2 diabetes who have uncontrolled blood glucose levels
while on a basalinsulin, intensification with NovoRapid® helps
attain and maintain treatment goals. NovoRapid® is used by
people with both type 1 and type 2 diabetes.It is also approved
in some markets for women whoare pregnant or
breastfeeding.

» NoveMix® 70/50/30 (NovoLog® Mix 70/30 in the US)is a
dual-release moderninsulin that covers both mealtime and

basal requirements.It can be used eitherto initiate or intensify
insulin therapy.

We are committed to producing safe treatments. All of our
moderninsulins have been investigated in many randomised,
controlled trials and in observational studiesin real-life use.

New-generation insulins
Our focus cn improving thelives of people with diabetes led us to
develop two new-generation insulins, Degludec and DegludecPlus,
which were filed for regulatory approval in key markets in 2011.
These new-generationinsulins are designed to have an ultra-long
action for the treatment of type 1 and type 2 diabetes, providing
stable and consistent blood glucose control while reducing the
rate of hypoglycaemia,particularly at night when hypoglycaemic
events are difficult to manage.It is known that many healthcare
providers and people with diabetesintentionally undertreat to

avoid incidences of hypoglycaemia,allowing higherlevels of
blood glucose with the potential for health complications.

Degludecis designed to provide greater dosingflexibility, with
more than 40 hours' glucose control. This flexibility can give
people with diabetes the flexibility to administer once-daily
treatmentat a different time from day to day. DegludecPlus
combines ultra-long-acting insulin degludec and the most pre-
scribed rapid-acting insulin, NovoRapid®, providing both basal
and mealtime glucose control.

The regulatory filings for Degludec and DegludecPlus werelargely
based on results from the BEGIN™ and BOOST™ clinical trial

programmes. Data from the 17 trials have shown Degludec to
effectively lower blood glucose levels, while demonstrating a
lower rate of hypoglycaemia,particularly at night, relative to
insulin glargine. In addition, Degludec will offer greater flexibility
as to time of administration and, when used with FlexTouch®, can
allow largersingle doses than otherinsulin devices on the market.
At present, many people need to take two injections to get their
total insulin dese.
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BEGIN™ and BOOST™ werethelargestclinicaltrial programmes
in the history of insulin therapy, involving nearly 10,000 people
with type 1 and type 2 diabetes. The programmes were designed
after consulting with regulatory agencies in the EU, Japan and
the US.

Innovative early treatment
Victoza®, or liraglutide, is the first and only human Glucagon-Like
Peptide (GLP-1) analogue with 97% similarity to the natural gut
hormone.Like natural GLP-1, once-daily Victoza® works by
stimulating the beta cells in the pancreas to release insulin only
when blood sugarlevels are high.

Until recently, most available treatments for diabetes involved
trade-offs for physicians and people with diabetes. While effec-
tive at lowering blood glucose, they carried a highrisk of inducing
low blood sugar episodes (hypoglycaemia) and weightgain.

GLP-1 therapies are a majorinnovation in the treatment of type 2
diabetes because they lower glucose while having a very low risk
of triggering hypoglycaemia, and, for most people with diabetes,
they also support weightloss. In type 2 diabetes, the ability of the
pancreas to release insulin in response to glucoseis impaired.
GLP-1 therapies help address this defect by acting directly on
beta cells in the pancreas so that moreinsulin is released when
blood glucoseis high.

Victoza®, the only once-daily GLP-1 analogue, can be used by
adults with type 2 diabetes who are unable to achieve blood
glucose goals withlifestyle changes and metformin. For most
people with type 2 diabetes, Victoza® offers significant blaod
glucose reduction with the benefit of some weightloss in a
flexible dose that can be taken oncedaily. Treatment quidelines
now call for the use of GLP-1 as an option forearly treatment of
type 2 diabetes.

Victoza® is the leading GLP-1 treatment globally and has steadily
expanded the market for GLP-1 treatment. Now available in
nearly 50 markets, Victoza® was also approved for use in China
during 2011. Victoza® achieved blockbuster status in 2011 with
sales of more than 1 billion US dollars globally. It has been used
to treat approximately 600,000 people worldwide.
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 We are exploring longer-acting formulations for GLP-1 treatment.

Liraglutide depot, a slow-release formulation,is being tested for
once-weekly use in phase 1 clinical trials. We are also exploring
the GLP-1 analogue semaglutide for once-weekly use. For more
information, see pp 26-27.

Device technology supports
innovative treatments
We continue to focus on making the most preferred treatment
devices even better. FlexTouch®, our latest innovation in prefilled
devices, which has been designed to improve the experience of
performing daily injections, was launched in Europe in 2011. We
intend to make Degludec and DegludecPlus available in FlexTouch®,
the first insulin pen that will have the potential to deliver up to
160insulin units in a single injection.

Usability studies have shownthat FlexTouch® features are valued
by patients and healthcare providers. FlexTouch® has a conical
shape, which is more ergonomic and may help to improve
stability when injecting. Patients especially appreciate that
FlexTouch®is the first insulin pen with no push-button extension.
FlexTouch®also has an easy-touch button,a large, easy-to-read
scale, accurate and consistent dosing, and an audibleclick that
provides a signal whendialling doses up or down or when the
full dose has been administered.?#2

FlexPen®, the world’s most widely used prefilled insulin pen,is
available for all Novo Nordisk modern insulins and Victoza®.It

eliminates the need to manually load treatment into a delivery
device or use a separate vial and syringe.

Changing Diabetes®
A global commitment
to people with diabetes
Changing Diabetes® is Novo Nordisk’s global commitment to im-
prove conditions for the millions of people whelive with diabetes
around the world today, and those whoareat risk of developing
diabetes tomorrow.It is a global advocacy and partner platform
from which we advocate the prevention and earlier detection of
diabetes, as well as improved treatment, care and health outcomes.
It is also the framework for a series of partnership programmes
for interventions and outreach activities, many of which address
the specific needs of vulnerable groups such as those with low
incomes, women andchildren.

2011 marked a turning pointin ourfight against diabetes when the
United Nations convened a special General Assembly to address the
globalchallenge of non-communicable diseases, including diabetes.
Novo Nordisk, represented by President and CEO Lars Rebien
Serensen, participated in this historic event, which highlighted the
serious threat non-communicable diseases present to global social
and economic development, and the need for concerted action. We
welcome and supportthecall to action resulting from the meeting
and have reaffirmed our commitment to continue our long-term
efforts to change diabetes through partnerships.
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Concerted action to improve
access to diabetes care

Ahead of the UN High-Level Meeting, we revisited our access to
health strategy in consultation with key stakeholders, notably the
World Health Organization, representing different viewpoints,
insights and regional perspectives. Ten years ago, Nove Nordisk
launchedits first Access to Health strategy, which resulted in the
establishment of the independent World Diabetes Foundation,
ourdifferential pricing policy in least developed countries,
initiatives to improve healthcare capacity and efforts aimed at
vulnerable population groups, such as the Changing Diabetes”
in Children programme and the Changing Diabetes® in Pregnancy
programme.

Ourinsights from the past 10 years were captured in a report
released in 2011, Access to Diabetes Care — OurApproach. While
our stakeholders recognise that Novo Nordisk has done much to
improve access to diabetescare in the least developed countries
of the world, the lack of access to insulin remains a significant
concern. Dialogues with stakeholders have helped inform our
priorities going forward with a better understanding of where to
strengthen ourefforts. See novonordisk.com/sustainability.

Our commitment to discover and develop innovative biological
Medicines and make them accessible to patients throughout the
world is part of the Nove Nordisk Way. Because healthcare systems
are at different stages of development,different solutions are
needed in different countries. Novo Nordisk has the unique
advantage of the broadest portfolio of diabetes treatments. We
have also committed to keeping low-pricedinsulin as a key building
block of our portfolio and makingit available in low- and middle-
income countries. Access to diabetes care is a global concern and
this will be the premise for our access to diabetes care strateqy.

Manybarriers to insulin access are linked to distribution systems,
tendering and governmentpolicies. As part of our efforts to find
an innovative, integrated approach to diagnosis, treatment and
diabetes control for those at the base of the economic pyramid,
welaunched a pilot project in Kenya in December 2011. A public—
private partnership involving the Kenyan government and other
stakeholders, the project seeks to reduce direct and indirect costs.
of treatmentby limiting price mark-upsin the supply chain and
reducing travel costs and lost work days by printing prices on
insulin packaging anddistributing insulin at more locations.In our
search for a sustainable business model for the base of the pyramid,
additional projects will be launched in 2012 in rural India and
Nigeria. To improve access to affordable insulin, Novo Nordisk has
conducted pilot projects in eight least developed countries and
recruited staff to address barriers in supply chains.

Anotherpriority is to strengthen the capacity of healthcare
systems by training healthcare providers to diagnose and treat
diabetes and its complications. In 2011, Novo Nordisk either
trained or sponsored training for about 835,000 healthcare
providers. To empower people with diabetes to better care for
themselves, in 2011 we also trained or funded training for about
626,000 people.

In our efforts to strengthen healthcare system capacity, Novo
Nordisk established the World Diabetes Foundation in 2002. This

independent and non-profit foundation supports the prevention
and treatment of diabetes whereit is needed most, providing
funding forlocalinitiatives that improve healthcare system
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World Diabetes WORLD DIABETES FOUNDATION |
Foundation’s

impact 2002-2011 |
« More than 5.6 million people have been screened for diabetes

 

» More than 5,009 clinics and micro clinics have been created
or strengthened by WDF

« 1.4 million people with diabetes have been registered and
treated through diabetesclinics

For more information on the WDF visit worlddiabetesfoundation.arg,

capacity. To date it has supported 278 projects in 100 countries.
We contribute a portion of our insulin sales to the Foundation
each year,in line with an agreement with our shareholders, These
contributions totalled 606 million Danish kroner during the
period from 2002 to 2011. In financial terms, this is our biggest
single commitment to the improvement of diabetes care in low-
and middle-income countries. Navo Nordisk also has two seats

on the Foundation’s board. See pp 9 and 86 for more information.

Better treatment and careforall
The 2011 UN High-Level Meeting concluded in a UN Declaration
thatcalls attention to the threat diabetes and other chronic con-

ditions pase, and stresses the need for prevention, early detection
and early intervention. This focusis in line with our long-term efforts
to increase awareness of diabetes among policymakers. We are
committed to engaging with stakeholders to explore how the UN
Declaration can be translated into concrete action to achieve this

objective.

Through 87 Diabetes Leadership Forumsand regional or national
roundtables in 78 countries since 2005, we have engaged more
than 10,000 key stakehelders to date, helping to reach consensus
aboutwhatit will take to address the current challenges and change
diabetes. During 2012, the European Diabetes Leadership Forum
will be held in Copenhagen under the auspicesof the Danish EU
Presidency. The eventwill be hosted by the Danish Diabetes
Association and the OECD, and Novo Nordisk will co-organise the
Forum. Wewill also continue ourefforts to follow up on previous
leadership forumsin Russia, China, sub-Saharan Africa, the Middle
East and North Africa, all of which involve commitmentsto action
that will benefit people with diabetes.

Through our national Changing Diabetes® programmes, we
promote better education of healthcare professionals and wider
availability of screening for diabetes to help save lives and reduce
long-term economic costs. One example is our Ask.Screen.Know
initiative in the US, which supports diabetes screening for people
in the US's Medicare programme whoareatrisk of diabetes.It is
estimated that only 10% of people with risk factors have been
screened since Medicare began offering screenings in 2005. We
encourage physicians to have at-risk patients screened and to talk
with their patients about blood sugar numbers and healthylife-
style changes. See AskScreenKnow.com and the Ask.Screen.
Know page on Facebook.

Understanding the needs of people with diabetes is a cornerstone
of our advocacy work. The second Diabetes Attitudes, Wishes
and Needs (DAWN™)study represents one of the mostsignificant
new initiatives from Novo Nordisk to learn from people with
diabetes and those whocare for them.It is a follow-up to our
landmark study in 2001 to assess the needs of people with diabetes
globally, with the aim of improving patient involvement,self-
management and psychosocial support. The largest studyofits
kind, the new DAWN™ study will involve more than 16,000
people worldwideto establish a new understanding and awareness
of the needs of people with diabetes and those whocare for them.

Working in partnership
across healthcare systems
Most developing countries have nofacilities for treating children
with diabetes. Children with type 1 diabetes have high mortality
rates, withlife expectancies of less than one yearin some countries
in sub-Saharan Africa. Our Changing Diabetes® in Children pro-
grammeprovides the necessary medical and laboratory equipment,
organisestraining of healthcare professionals, puts in place
patient education and creates systems for adequate monitoring
and follow-up.In addition, insulin and diabetes supplies are
provided free of charge for the duration of the programme. With
the ambition of reaching 10,000 children with diabetes within
five years, we made a 25 million US dollar commitment in 2008.

In 2011, we expanded the programmeto India and Ethicpia, enrolled
about 3,400 children and established more than 40 new clinics
under the Changing Diabetes® in Children programme, which now
provides treatment for about 5,000 children.

As part of our contribution to the UN Secretary General’s Every
Woman Every Child prograrnme, Nove Nordisk has launched its
Early Origins of Health initiative with the aim of preventing future
cases of diabetes through screening and treatment of gestational
diabetes. The initiative is based on partnerships with industry
peers, the World Diabetes Foundation and the United Nations
Foundation where eachwill contribute their expertise in the field
of health literacy, nutrition, research, access to health, and
connecting people, ideas and resources.

Our ongoing Changing Diabetes® in Pregnancy programmeties
to the Early Origins of Health initiative. We have set uplocal
public—private partnershipsin India, Colombia and Nicaragua
with an ambition to reach 60,000 pregnant women. We work
with local health authorities and other partnersto train health-
care professionals, build capacity in the health system for
gestational diabetes screening and management, and test
innovative ways to effect lifestyle change. The hopeis to identify
cost-effective ways of reducing the burden of diabetes.

1. Global Attitudes of Patients and Physicians in [nsulin Therapy (GAPP™) survey, Nowo Nordisk, 2010,
2. UKPDS,Stratten et al. 842000; vol 321:405—412.
3, Fong DS,Aiello LP, Ferris FL 3rd, Klein R: Diabetic retinopathy. Diabetes Care 2001;27:2540-2553,
4, International Diabetes Foundation. (OF Diabetes Attas, fifth edition, 2011.
S. Hart JT. Rule of halves: implications of increasing diagnosis and reducing dropout for future

workload and prescribing costs in primary care. &rJ Gen Pract 1992, March; 42(356):116-119,
6. Wilkerson HL, Krall LP. Diabetes ina New England town. JAMA 1947;135:209-246.
7. WielandtJO, Niemeyer M, Hansen MR, Bucher D, Thomsen NB. FlexTauch®: A Prefilled Insulin

Pen with a Novel Injection Mechanism with Consistent High Accuracy at Low- {7 U),
Medium- (40 U), and High- (80 U) Dose Settings. / Diabetes Sci Technol 2011; 5(5):1195-1159,

8. Dyer D, Narendran P. Qvist M, Niemeyer M, Nadeau DA. Ease of use and nieferenceassessment of a new prefilled insulin pen versus a widely available prefilled insulin pen in
people with diabetes, physicians and nurses, Expert Goin Drug Defiv2011; doi:10,1317/17425247.2011.615830.

9. Bailey T, Thurman J, Niemeyer M, Schmeisl G. Usability and preference evaluation of a
prefilled insulin pen with a novel injection mechanism. CurrMed Aes Opin 2011; 27:2043-52.
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ALFRED MONAMETS!I

Alfred, from Johannesburg, South Africa, was diagnosed with haemophilia at birth and has been more mobile since beginning to use
Novodeven®. Asa pastor and certified coach, being able to get curt into the cammunity is an impartant part of doing what Alfred loves:
heloing people. He hopes that future Improvements In thaatmert will make It even easier for people with haemophilia to lead normal lives.
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Biopharma-
ceuticals
We use our understanding of chronic conditions to make a
difference for people with haemophilia and other rare bleeding
disorders, growth hormonedisorders, symptoms of menopause
and inflammatory diseases. Our specialised expertise in proteins
gives us an advantage in developing innovative treatments in
these therapy areas.

Commitment

to haemophilia
Wesee a future where all people with haemophilia have the
opportunity to live thelife they desire. Our commitmentta
haemophilia builds on our 20 years of research into bleeding
disorders and our promise to work with andlisten to patients to
improve treatment. For details of cur strategy to achieve our
haemophilia ambition, see p 19.

We developed our recombinant, activated factor VII product,
NovoSeven®, for the 3,500 people with haemophilia who have
developed inhibitors, or neutralising antibodies, to their normal
treatment. NovoSeven®provides effective treatment for bleeding
episodes.It wasa significant innovation when launched in 1996
and remains the only room temperature-stable recombinant
bypassing agent available for people who have haemophilia with
inhibitors.

NovoSeven?is also the only recombinant medication approved
for the treatment of bleeding episodes in acquired haemophilia,
factor VII deficiency and, in Europe, Glanzmann’‘s thrombasthenia.
Thanksto its therapeutic properties, 15 years after launch
NovoSeven® achieved sales growth of 4% in Danish kroner. We
are continuing to look for ways to make treatment for people
with haemophilia with inhibitors even more effective.

To support our ambition and also help people with general
haemophilia, we have developed the broadest pipeline of
haemophilia research and developmentprojects in the pharma-
ceutical industry, including treatments for haemophilia A and B.
See p 38.

As weseek to expand ourportfolio and achieve leadershipin the
treatment of haemophilia, we are developing compounds
targeting faster, more efficient long-acting and even sub-
cutaneous(as opposed to intravenous) prevention and treatment
of bleeding. During 2011, we madesignificant progress in the
developmentofsolutions for the range of haemophilia and other
rare bleeding disorders. See pp 19 and 26-27,

Key events in
biopharmaceuticals
® Phase 3 trial programme completed for recombinant

factor VIII treatment for haemophilia A.

® Phase 3 trial programmeinitiated for long-acting
recombinant treatment for people with haemophilia B.

® Phase 3 trial programmeinitiated fora fast-acting
recombinant treatment for haemophilia with inhibitors.

*® Phase 1 trial completed for long-acting recombinant
treatment for people with haemophilia A. Decision
madeto initiate a phase 3 trial in 2012.

* Regulatory approval sought in the US and Europe for
the only recombinant treatmentfor ultra-rare
congenitalfactor XIll deficiency.

* Phase 1 trial initiated for long-acting growth hormane
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Novo Nordisk aspires to
offer treatmentforall
people with haemophilia

 
 
 
  

 

Haemophilia A
Approx 250,000 patients

Haemophilia B
Approx 50,000 patiants

Inhibitor segment

a)3,500 patients
Source: StonebrakerJS et al. Haemophilia 2010; 16:20-32. Haemophilia A andB patients
represent those characterised as severe,
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Whatis haemophilia?
Haemophilia is an inherited or acquired bleeding disorder
that prevents blood from clotting. More than 300,000
people worldwideareliving with severe haemophilia.
They lack, either partially or completely, an essential
clotting factor neededto form stable bloodclots.

The treatment for haemophilia involves intravenous
administration of replacementclotting factors. Treatment
may be administered only whenbleeding occurs or,
increasingly, on a preventive basis, whichis called
prophylactic treatment.

People with haemophilia A may have either no or decreased
abilityto produce dotting factorVill. Thosewith haemophilia
B have defidences in producing clotting factor Ix.

Some people with haemophilia developinhibitors, or
resistance (due to antibody formation), to their normal
replacement treatment. For these 3,500 people, factor
Vila provides clotting action to treat bleeds.

For people with haemophilia, bleeds often occur in the
joints, particularly the knees and ankles. Bleeds can also
occurin the muscles, soft tissues, gastrointestinal tract,
and even in the brain. Surgery, and even tooth extractions,
require careful medicalintervention to control bleeding.

Without treatment, uncontrolled bleeding can cause
stiffness, pain and severe joint damage leading to impaired
mobility. An intracerebral haemorrhage will often be fatal.

While, thankfully, haemophilia is not becoming more
common, more people in the world are now having the
condition properly diagnosed andtreated. Also, as
treatmentimproves, thosewith thislifelong condition are
living longer lives.

Location of bleeds
and their consequences
Brain

Nose and gums
Head and neck

 

  
Impact onjoints:

® Bleedingin the joint space
causes a. strong inflammatory
reaction that predisposes to
further bleeding,

 ® |nadequate or delayed
treatment of repeated joint
bleeds results in a ‘target
Joint’.

® The joint is tense, swollen
and extremely painful,
and mobility is restricted.

® Eventually, the cartilage
erodes completely and
permanentjoint damage
{arthrapathy) occurs.

* Treatment of arthropathy is
orthopaedic reconstructive
surgery.
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Changing Possibilities
In Haemophilia®
To help build a better tomorrow for people with haemophilia, we
partnerwith the haemophilia community to deliver innovative
treatments, access to care, education and community support to
empowerpatients.

Werecognise that medical products do not addressall aspects of
haemophilia. To strengthen understandingof life with haemophilia,
weinitiated a psychosocial study to determine how to best support
the needs of people with haemophilia. Interviews have been
conducted with 900 people to date, including those with
haemophilia, caregivers and healthcare professionals, in 12 countries.
This study, called HERO for Haemophilia Experiences, Results and
Opportunities,is inspired by our decade of experience with
psychosocial studies in diabetes.

Theinitial findings, reported at the meeting of the International
Society of Thrombosis and Haemostasis in Kyoto, Japan,in July
2011, underline the importanceof psychosocial issues in
haemophilia, which include family tensions, problemsofinte-
gration at school, fear of stigmatisation, and concerns about
integration at work, forming relationships andstarting a family,

Whenthestudyis finalised in 2012,itwill be the largest
international study into the social and psychological aspects of
life with haemophilia. More information about HEROis available
at changingpossibilities.com.

Wecollaborate with patient and medical organisations around
the world to drive knowledge about haemophilia and offertraining
to the medical community to improve access to diagnosis and care
for people with haemophilia globally. Through the Novo Nordisk
Haemophilia Access to Insight programmeweoffer support to
encourage doctors andscientists to enhance their understanding
of haemophilia and share best practices to improve care. We also
sponsoran accredited training programme, the Haemophilia
Academy, as well as scientific sessions at major congresses.

Because haemophilia and other bleeding disorders are relatively
rare, support for people with bleeding disorders and the com-
munities that support them is critical. To help people withinhibitors
meet others like them to share information, Novo Nordisk has set
up a Facebookpage for the approximately 800 people with
inhibitors in the US. Through the changingpossibilities-US.com
website, we also help caregivers and teenagers connect with
others like themselves to share experiences.

This year, we launchedthe Best Buddy award programmein the
UKat an event at the Houses of Parliamentin collaboration with
the UK Haemophilia Society. The programmeraises awareness of
haemophilia and rare bleeding disorders and recognisesthevital
support provided bythe families, carers, friends and teachers of
children with these conditions.

Novo Nordisk wasan official sponsor of World Haemaphilia Day,
17 April, in 2011. The designated day promoted awareness and
understanding of haemophilia. Novo Nordisk sponsoredactivities
in more than 20 countries, reaching thousands of people. Novo
Nordiskis also a sponsorof the World Federation of Hemophilia’s
50th birthday celebrations, which begin in 2012.
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6
novo nordisk

haemophilia foundation
Novo Nordisk

Haemophilia
Foundation’s

impact 2005-2011
People reached through educational activities©More than 13,000
People with haemophilia retested or diagnosed More than 12,600
Healthcare providers trained in haemophiliacare More than 7,700
Projects initiated with local partners 53
Fellowships awarded to healthcare professionals 7

Expanding access to care
We partner with physicians, policymakers and the wider
haemophilia community to secure optimal care for people
affected by haemophilia globally.

To give surgical teams an understanding of options for managing
necessary surgical procedures for peaple with haemophilia, we
launched an ongoing training programmein 2009. People with
haemophilia may suffer joint damage from repeated bleeds.Joint
replacement may end chronic pain, but there are special challenges
in performing surgery cn people with haemophilia with inhibitors.
Four-day training programmesare being held at haemophilia
centres worldwide, with each session accommodating up to four
surgical teams.

 
Our commitment to the global haemophilia community includes
efforts to close the gap in care between developed and
developing countries. We established the non-profit Novo
Nordisk Haemophilia Foundation (NNHF) in 2005 to address the
significant need to improve access to care and treatment in
developing countries. An estimated 75% of the global population
of people with haemophilia and other rare bleeding disorderslive
in the developing world, and many go undiagnosed or receive
inadequate care and treatment. Without adequate care, quality
oflife andlife expectancy are often significantly reduced.

Our donations to the NNHF,totalling 90 million Danish kroner from
2005 to 2011, support projects and fellowships in 33 developing and
emerging countries. NNHF programmesimprove access to care by
focusing on capacity building, awareness creation and diagnosis. and
registries. By working with partners acrossall areas of the
haemophilia and allied bleeding disorder community with local
ownershipof projects, the NNHF aims to ensure the sustainability of
development programmes. See nnhf.org for more information.

Other therapy areas
As a focused healthcare company, we consider our core strengths
in protein engineering and chronic disease treatment when

determining which therapy areas to enter. We also assess the
potential for global market leadership.

Growth hormonetherapy
Through our 40-year commitment to growth hormone therapy
and ourexpertise in protein molecules, we have become one of
the world’s leading producers of human growth hormone. Growth
hormonedeficiency is due to a defectin the pituitary gland at the
baseof the brain. |f the pituitary gland does net produce enough
growth hormone, growthis slower than normal. Children need
growth hormone to grow to normal height. In adults, growth
hormoneis needed to maintain the proper amounts of bodyfat,
muscle and bone to reduce metabolic complications and maintain
agood quality oflife.

Norditropin® is the only liquid growth hormone product with a
formulation that does not require refrigeration after first use and
is available in a prefilled, ready-to-use device.’ Although Norditropin®
isa man-made form of growth hormone,it is identical to growth
hormone produced by the body. Norditropin® is approved for the
treatment of certain growth hormonedeficienciesin children and
adults. In some markets,it is approved to help children of short
stature as a result of Noonan syndromeor Turner syndrome grow
taller. Research showsthat children of short stature may be more
likely to experience difficulty at school, while adults with growth
hormone deficiency may have below-average health-related
quality of life.

Cur commitment to growth hormone therapyincludes
developmentof a long-acting formulation, whichis currently in
phase 1 clinical trials. One example of our ongoing efforts ta
build upon scientific research to improve patient care is the
NordiNet® International Outcome Study, an electronic patient
data registry intended for endocrinologists. We also engage in
activities to raise awareness of the need for diagnosis and
treatment of growth hormone disorders among general health
practitioners.

Wehave drawn on our technological expertise in injection devices
to improve growth hormonedelivery systems and products.In
2011, we launched a new prefilled device, Norditropin® FlexPro®,in
Australia. Norditropin® FlexPro® wasfirst launched in 2010 in
Europe, Japan and the US.Its features include an easy-touch dose
button and an audible click, which lets the user know whenthefull
dose has been delivered. The penis also shorter, with the intention
to make it easier to hold and handlefor both children and adults.

Hormonereplacement therapy
Our market-leading hormone therapy products Vagifem® and
Activelle® (Activella® in the US) build on our 35 years of experience
with hormone treatment for menopausal symptoms. Vagifem® 10 pg,
the lowest effective dose available for the local treatment of vaginal
atrophy, was launched in Spain, Finland and Norway during 2011.

Ourlong-standing position is that hormone replacement therapy for
womenshould be prescribed at the lowest effective dose andfor a
time period consistent with treatment goals and assessedrisks.

1. Only the 5 pgand 10 yg sizes are room temperature-stable. All Norditropin® products must be
refrigeratedprior to first use. Donot freeze. Afterinitial use, FlexPro® 5 mg/1.5 ml and 10 mg/1.5
midelivery pens can either he stored outside the refrigerator (atup ta 25°C or 77°F) for usewithin
three weeks,orin the refrigerator (between 36°F and 46°F) for use within four weeks. The
FlexPra® 15 mg/1.5 ml and NordiFlex? 30 mg/3 ml delivery pens must always be refrigerated
{between 36°F and 46°F)—both prior to and aftertheinitial injection —for use within four weeks.

Nove Nordisk Annual Report 2011 39

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 41

 



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 42

  
aIancasthtbiolSe

aSapnabeer lien

FeieneolLeghevanfBesratLe  
 

 

NANCY SHAMMOUT

For Nancy, a diabetes product specialist in Amman, Jordan, working for Nowe Nordisk means being a part of improving life for people
with diabetes. She works with healthoare providers and patients in Jordan to improve awareness of modern insulins and how they can
Improve glucose coma.
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Corporate
governance
Nove Nordisk seeksto create sustainable value and our

corporate governance frameworkis designed to support this.
While our corporate governance framework complies with
applicable laws and requirements,it is designed specifically for
Novo Nordisk.

Framework
The Nove Nordisk Way forms the foundation of our internal
values-based framework, with values that are consistent with the
principles of good governance. Our corporate governance frame-
work aligns with internal principles as well as external regulations
and codes. This includes compliance with applicable securities
laws and corporate governance standards in Denmark and the
US, induding the Danish Corporate Governance Recommendations.

Thevalues of the Novo Nordisk Wayreflect the shared values of
the Nove Group, of which Novo Nordisk is a member. The halding
companyof the Nove Group is Novo A/S, a Danishlimitedliability
company wholly owned by the Novo Nordisk Foundation, a
commercial foundation. See novonordiskfonden.dk.

 
Novo Nordisk adheres to the Charter for Companies in the Novo
Group,whichis available online at novo.dk. However,all strategic
and operational matters are solely decided by the Board and
Management of Nevo Nordisk.

Governancestructure
Our company holdsitself accountable to shareholders forits
performance. We seek to enhance the accuracy, completeness
and reliability of the information provided in annual reporting
through internal controls, assurance and independentaudits.
Reporting helps shareholders assess the actions of the Board
and Management.

Shareholders

Nove Norcisk’s share capital is divided into A shares and B shares.
All A shares are held by Novo A/S, which also holds B shares, as
reported on p 53. The B shares are traded on NASDAQ OMX
Copenhagen andin the form of ADRs on the New York Stock
Exchange. Each A share (nominalvalue 1 Danish krone) carries
1,000 votes and each B share (nominal value 1 Danish krone)
carries 100 votes. Special rights attached to A shares include
pre-emptive subscription rights in the event of an increase of the
Ashare capital and pre-emptive purchase rights in the event of
a sale of A shares and priority dividendif the dividend is below
0.5%, while B shares take priority for dividends between 0.5%
and 5% and for winding-up proceedings.

Shareholders have ultimate authority over the company and
exercise their right to make decisions at general meetingsin
person, by proxy or by correspondence, Resolutions can generally
be passed by a simple majority. However, resolutions to amend
the Articles of Association require two-thirds of votes cast and
capital represented, unless other adoption requirements are
imposed by the Danish Companies Act. We are not aware of the
existence of any agreements with or between shareholders on
the exercise of votes or control.

At the annual general meeting, shareholders approve the annual
report and any amendments to the company’s Articles of
Association. Shareholders also elect board members and the

independent auditor.
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The Board has decided that general meetings should be conducted
by physical attendance. Shareholders may, however, vote by proxy
or correspondence, either electronically or by mail. The meetingis
webcast and can be viewed online at novonordisk.com.

 
General meetings must be called with three to tive weeks’
notice. The meeting agenda is sent out with a combined proxy
and voting form, allowing shareholders to vote on each agenda
itern separately. A shareholder's right to attend and vote at a
general meeting is determined by shares owned as of the record
date, which is one weekprior to the general meeting.All share-
holders may, no later than six weeks prior to the general meeting,
request that proposals for resolution be included on the agenda.
The deadline for applying for an admission card to a general
meeting is no later than three days prior to the general meeting.
All documentsrelating to general meetings are published on
Nove Nordisk's website at least three weeks prior to the event.

Board of Directors

The company has a two-tier board structure consisting of the
Board of Directors and Executive Management. The two bodies
are separate and no one serves as a memberof both. On behalf
of shareholders, the Board determines the company’s overall
strategy and actively contributes to developing the company as a
focused, sustainable, global pharmaceutical company. The Board
supervises Executive Managementin its decisions and operations.
It may also issue new shares or buy back shares in accordance
with authorisations granted by the general meeting and recorded
in the meeting minutes. For minutes from the general meeting,
see novonordisk.com/about_us.

The Board has 12 members, eight ofwhom are elected by share-
holders at general meetings and four by employees in Denmark.
Shareholder-elected board members serve a one-yearterm and
may be re-elected. Members mustretire at the first general
meeting after reaching the age of 70. The majority of the
shareholder-elected board members,five out of eight, are
independent as defined by the Danish Corporate Governance
Recommendations. See p 50.

A proposal for nomination of board members is presented by
the Chairmanship to the Board, taking into account required
competences as defined by the Board’s competence profile, and
reflecting the result of a self-assessment processfacilitated in
some years by external consultants. The assessment processis
based on written questionnaires and evaluates the Board's
composition and the skills of its members, including whether
each board member and executive participates actively in board
discussions and contributes with independent judgement.
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 The self-assessment and the Board's competenceprofile are
used in the nomination process, The competenceprofile was
significantly revised in 2011 to include special competences
relating to the chairmanship, aspirations regarding Board
diversity and a 12-year guiding principle on Board tenure.

To ensure that discussions include multiple perspectives
representing the complex, global pharmaceutical environment,
the Board aspires to be diverse in gender and nationality.
Currently, about 40% of the Boardis either femaleora citizen
of a country other than Novo Nordisk's home market. Half of
the shareholder-elected board members are non-Danes. While
the Board is 8% female, no shareholder-elected board members
are female.

Theself-assessment conducted in 2011 resulted in enhancements

in the succession process and preparedness as well as improve-
ments to nomination criteria for new board members.In order to

support continued fulfilment of the Nove Nordisk Way, criteria for
board members include integrity, accountability, financialliteracy
anddesire for innovation. Membersare also expected to have
experience managing major companies that develop, manufacture
and market products and services globally. The competence
profile, which includes nominationcriteria, is available online
at novonordisk.com/about_us.

Under Danish law, Novo Nordisk’s employees in Denmark are
entitled to be represented by half of the total number of board
members elected at the general meeting. In 2010, employees
elected four board members from among themselves. Board
members elected by employees serve a four-year term and have
the samerights, duties and responsibilities as shareholder-elected
board members.

The Board met seven times during 2011. Four meetings were
attended byall board members; three of the members were
excused from attending one meeting each during the year. With
the exception of agenda items reserved for the Board’s internal
discussion at each meeting, executives attend and may speak,
withoutvoting rights, at board meetings to ensure that the Board
is adequately informed of the company’s operations. Executives
provide regular feedback from meetings with investors to give
beard members an insight into major shareholders’ views of the
company.

Chairmanship
The annual general meeting directly elects the chairman and the
vice chairman. In 2011, the Chairmanship held seven meetings
and both members attendedall meetings.

The Chairmanship carries out administrative tasks such as
planning board meetings te ensure a balance betweenoverall
strategy setting and financial and managerial supervision of the
company.It also reviews the fixed asset investment portfolio.
Other tasks include recommending the remuneration of directors
and executives, and suggesting candidates for election by the
general meeting.

In practice, the Chairmanship has the roles and responsibilities of
a nomination committee and a remuneration committee, and
presents proposals to the Board, The Board has not established
separate committees, believing that each board member must
have the opportunity to contribute actively to discussions and
have access to all relevant information about remuneration and
nomination.
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In March 2011, the annual general meeting elected Sten Scheibye
as chairman and Géran A Andoas vice chairman. See nevonordisk.

corm/about_us for a detailed report on the Chairmanship’s
activities.

Ad hoc nomination team

To enhance focus on the succession preparednessof the Board
and of Executive Management, an ad hoc nomination tear,
consisting of the Chairmanship plus Jargen Wedel and Henrik
Girtler, was established to prepare the Board's discussions
regarding nomination of board members and successionin
Executive Management. This team served throughout 2011
but is not intendedto be a permanent committee of the Board.

Audit Committee

The three members of the Audit Committee are elected by
the Board from among its members. All members qualify as
independent and have been designated as financial experts as
defined by the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
UnderDanish law,all members qualify as financial experts and
two of the members also qualify as independent. In 2011, the
Audit Committee held four meetings, attended by all members.

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors with oversight
of the external auditors, the internal audit function, complaints
regarding fraud orviolations of ethics, values or quality controls, the
financial and non-financial reporting process and post-investment
reviews. The Audit Committee conducts a self-assessment annually,
evaluating whether each memberparticipates actively in discussions
and contributes with independent judgement. In March 2011, the
Board re-elected Kurt Anker Nielsen as chairman and re-elected

J@rgen Wedel and Hannu RySppénen as members of the Audit
Committee. See novonordisk.com/about_usfor a detailed report
on the Audit Committee's activities.

 
Concerns regarding possible breaches of business ethics or
financial fraud, violations of the Novo Nordisk Way orquality
lapses may be raised anonymously by employees and other
stakeholders through the global compliance hotline. Complaints
made through the compliance hotline are received by the Audit
Committee Secretariat. Complaint hancling is monitored by the
Chairmanship or the Audit Committee, depending on the nature
of the complaint. As such the hotline works independently of
Executive Management. The compliance hotlineis accessible
by telephone andonlinein nine languages.

Novo Nordisk’s risk management andinternal controlsin relation
to financial processes are designed to effectively control the risk
of material misstatements. A detailed description of the internal
controls and risk management system implementedin relation to
financial reporting processesis available at novonordisk.corn/
about_us. Novo Nordiskis in compliance with US Sarbanes—Oxley
Act section 404, which requires Novo Nordisk to design and
implement an adequate system ofinternal controls over financial
reporting processes to ensure that there are no material mis-
statementsin the financial reporting. The company’s conclusion
and the auditor's evaluation of the intemal controls overfinancial
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reporting are includedin its Form 20-F filing to the US Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Executive Management
The Board has delegated responsibility for day-to-day manage-
ment to Executive Management. Executive Managementconsists
of the president and chief executive officer plus four other
executives. They are responsible for organisation of the company
as well as allocation of resources, determination and implemen-
tation of strategies andpolicies, direction-setting and ensuring
timely reporting and provision of information to the Board and
the stakeholders of Novo Nordisk. Executive Management meets
at least once a month and often more frequently. The Board
appoints members of Executive Management and determines
remuneration. The Chairmanship reviews the performance of
the executives.

Assurance
External audit

The company’s financial reporting and the internal controls over
financial reporting processes are audited by an external auditor
elected at the annual general meeting. The auditoracts in the
interest of shareholders and reports any significant findings
regarding accounting matters and any significant internal control
deticiencies to the Audit Committee and to the Board.As part of
the company’s commitmentto financial, social and environmental
responsibility, Novo Nordisk voluntarily includes an assurance
report for non-financial reportingin its annual report. The assurance
provider reviews whether the non-financial performance
information covers aspects deemed to be material and verifies the
internal control processes of the information reported.

Internal audit

The company’s internal audit function, Group Internal Audit,
reports to the Audit Committee. The internal audit function
provides independent and objective assurance primarily within
internal control of financial processes and businessethics.

To ensure thatthe internal financial audit function works

independently of Management,its charter, audit plan and budget
are approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
must approve the appointment, remuneration and dismissal of
the head of the internal audit function.   remunerationandleadership
Three other types of internal audit — quality audits, organisational
audits and values audits, called facilitations — help ensure that the
organisation adheres to high quality standards and operatesin
accordance with the Novo Nordisk Way. For information on
facilitations see pp 10 and 17. Eeee”

Corporate governance codes andpractices
Framework Governance structure Assurance

Audit of
financial data
and review

of social and
environmental
data (external
andinternal)

External
codes and
regulations
(external)

Facilitation
and

organisational
audit

(internal)

Novo
Nordisk

Way
(internal)

Quality audit
(internal)

 off-2————Fo[. 
The applicable corporate governance codes for each stock
exchange and a review of Novo Nordisk’s compliance are
available at novonordisk.com/about_us. In accordance with
Section 1076 of the Danish Financial Statements Act, Novo
Nordisk has disclosed the mandatory corporate governance
report at novonordisk.com/about_us/corporate_governance/
compliance.asp.

Novo Nordisk follows the majority of the Danish Corporate
Governance Recommendations, but does not conform in the
following ways:

« The Board does not have a remuneration committee.

* The Board does not have a nomination committee (as defined
by the Danish Corporate Governance Recommendations).

» Existing executive employment contracts allow for severance
payments of more than 24 months’ fixed base salary plus
pension contribution.

Explanations of deviations from these recommendations are
given on pp 42 and 47.

Asa foreign listed private issuer, Novo Nordiskis in compliance
with the corporate governance standardsof the New York Stock
Exchange, where Nove Nordisk’s ADRsarelisted.

Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011 43

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 45



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 46

aotea
a
abo
a
a=)=
a]
a

ae)
&a.=aa
=
wu
ayw

S=

F9

 Remuneration report
In keeping with ouraim to attract, retain and motivate talented
individuals, remuneration at Novo Nordiskis designed to be
competitive, For executives and employees, remuneration
rewards short- and long-term performance andis aligned
with the interest of the shareholders.

Novo Nordisk’s remuneration principles provide guidance for
remuneration of the Board and Executive Management. The
principles are online at novonordisk.com/about_us.

Remunerationis assessed on an annual basis against a bench-
mark of Scandinavian companies and European pharmaceutical
companies that are similar to Nove Nordiskin size and complexity
in accordance with the remuneration principles for the Board af
Directors and Executive Management. The results of the annual
remuneration benchmarking for board membersare presented
to the Board by the chairman atits Octaber meeting. At the
2012 annual general meeting a proposal will be madeto align
the remuneration benchmarksfor the Board and Executive

Management.

Board of Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Board of Directors is comprised of
a fixed base fee, a multiplier of the fixed base fee for the
Chairmanship and membersof the Audit Committee, fees
for ad hoc tasks and a travel allowance.

At the December meeting,the Board agrees on recommendations
for remuneration levels for the next financial year. In connection
with the approvalof the annual report, the Board endorses
the actual remuneration for the past financial year and the
recommendation on remuneration levels for the current financial

Board of Directors

year. This is then presented to the annual general meeting for
approval.

Based on the benchmark assessment in October 2010, the Board
determined that, in order to continue to attract and retain
talented board members, it would be appropriate to make an
adjustmentto the annualfixed base fee paid to each board
member. As a consequence, the Board proposed to the 2011
annual general meeting an adjustmentof the fixed base fee
to 500,000 Danish kroner, and this was approved.

The benchmark assessmentalso led the Board to propose to
the annual general meeting that the chairmanreceive 3.0 times
the base fee and the vice chairman and the audit committee

chairman receive 2.0 times the base fee. The proposal for other
members of the audit committee was 1.5 times the base fee.

These proposals were approved by the 2011 annual general
meeting.

Travel and other expenses
All board members who do notreside in Denmark are paid a fixed
travel allowance when attending board meetings in Denmark, No
travel allowanceis paid to board members when attending board
meetings outside Denmark. Thetravel allowance is 3,000 euros
for Europe-based board members and 6,000 euros for US- and
Asia-based board members. Expenses such as travel and accom-
modation in relation to board meetings as well as relevant
continuing education are reimbursed. Novo Nordisk also pays
social security taxes imposed by foreign authorities and bank
transfer fees.

Variable remuneration

Board members are not offered stock options, warrants,
restricted stock or participation in other incentive schemes.

In 2011, the base fee for members of the Board of Directors was DKK 500,000 (DKK 400,000in 2010).
2011! 2010 

Fee for Fee for
Fixed ad hoc tasks and ad hoc tasks and Travel3
  

  

DKKmillion base fee committee work? allowance committee work? allowance Total

Sten Scheibye (chairman of the Board) 1.5 = = - - 1.0
Goran A Ando (vice chairmanof the Beard) 1.0 01 0.1 0.3 0.1 1.0
Kurt Anker Nielsen (chairman of the Audit Committee) 05 05 - 6.5 - oo
Hannu RySppanen (Audit Committee member) O5 03 0.1 0.2 O1 07
Jargen Wedel (Audit Committee member) 0.5 03 0.3 0.2 o1 O07
Bruno Angelici*? 0.4 - 0.1 - - -
Henrik Gartler os - - - - 04
Johnny Henriksen* = - aS yy = ET
Ulrik Hjulmand-Lassen O5 - - - - 3
Pamela J Kirby* 0.1 - - - o1 O5
Thomas Paul Koestler? 0.4 - 0.2 - - -
Anne Marie Kverneland 0.5 - - - - O04
Saren Thuesen Pedersen O5 - - - - oO4
Stig Strabeek o5 - - - - O04

Total 74 12 0.8 1.2 04 6.8

 
 

1. 2071 amounts reflect changesin base payment, multiples and travel allowance approved at the 2011 general meeting.
These changes were proposed based on benchmark assessments and the need to continue to attract and retain talented board members,

2. Ad hoc fees are for the research and development facilitator, a position that was abolished for 2011. Goran A Ando received 0.3 million Danish kranerin 2010,
3. Firstelected at the annual general meeting in March 2011,
4, Johnny Henriksen resigned as of March 2010. Pamela | Kirby resigned as of March 2011.
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Executive remuneration
Executive remuneration is proposed by the Chairmanship and
subsequently approved by the Board.

Remuneration packages for executives comprise a fixed base
salary, a cash-based incentive, a share-based incentive, a pension
contribution and other benefits. The split between fixed and
variable remunerationis intended to result ina reasonable part of
the salary beinglinked to performance, while promoting sound
long-term business decisions to achieve the company’s cbjectives.
The aggregate maximum amountthat may be granted as an
incentive for a given year is currently equal te 14 months’fixed
basesalary plus pension contribution. All incentives are subject
to claw-backifit is subsequently determined that payment was
based on infermation that was manifestly misstated.

Fixed base salary
The fixed base salary accounts for 35-55% of the total value
of the remuneration package. The base salary is intended to
attract and retain executives with the professional and personal
competences required to drive the company’s performance.

Remuneration package
components

Board of
Directors

Executive

Management

a

Yes

Executive remuneration

ri
At on-target performance:
fixed versus variable pay

i Fixed base salary 52%
BB Cast-basedincentive 9%
IB Share-based incentive 22%
@ Pension 15%
@ Other benefits 2%

Cash-based incentive

The cash-based incentive is designed to incentivise individual
performance and short-term achievementsin line with company
targets, and may result in an annual payout of up to four months’
fixed base salary plus pension contribution for reaching individ-
ualised targets. In cases of extraordinary individual performance,
the maximum annual payout may be up to six months’fixed base
salary plus pension contribution. For 2011, this maximum has
been capped at five months’fixed base salary plus pension
contribution. The individualised performance targets are linked
to goals in the company’s Balanced Scorecard. Short-term targets
for the chief executive officer are fixed by the chairman of the
Board of Directors, while the targets for the other members of
Executive Managementare fixed by the chief executive officer.

  nce,remunerationandleadership
The Chairmanship of the Board evaluates the degree of achieve-
ment for each memberof Executive Management based on input
from the chief executive officer.

EGoverna
Share-based incentives

The long-term, share-based incentive programme, designed to
promotethe collective performance of Executive Management
and align the interests of executives and shareholders, may result
in an annualallocation of up to eight months’fixed base salary
plus pension contribution. Share-based incentives are linked to
bothfinancial and non-financial targets. The programme is based
on acalculation of shareholder value creation compared with
planned performance and may, subject to the Board’s assess-
ment, be reduced to reflect underperformance in meeting
significant research and developmentorsustainability targets.

Aligned with Novo Nordisk’s long-term financial targets, the
calculation of shareholdervalue creation is based on reported
operating profit after tax reduced by a weighted average cost
of capital-based return requirement on average net operating
assets. A proportion of the calculated shareholder value creation
is allocated to a joint pool for the participants, who include
Executive Managementand seniorvice presidents.

Theallocation to the joint pool can also be adjusted by the Board to
reflect achievement of development milestones inthe research and
developmentpipeline and sustainability targets, which include
long-term environmental targets, employee training objectives
and company reputation objectives.

Once the joint pool has been approved by the Board,the total
cash amount is converted into Nove Nordisk B shares at market

At maximum performance:
fixed versus variable pay

IB Fixed base salary 39%
i Cash-based incentive 13%
IB Share-based incentive 33%
© Pension 13%
@ Other benefits 2%

Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011 45

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 47



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 48

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 

a

5 Executive Management and other membersof the Senior Management Board
3Lis
co}

hI Fixed base Cash-based Pension Other Share-basedCs] DKK million salary incentive benefits incentive=

S 2011 Executive Management
5 Lars Rebien Sarensen 7.3 3.1 2.7 03 -Si Jesper Brandgaard 45 15 1.5 03 -

= Lise Kingo 4.1 14 1.3 03 -
wi Kare Schultz 49 V7 17 03 =
a Mads Krogsgaard Thomsen 45 19 1.5 0.3 -wy

= Executive Managementin total 25.3 3.6 8.7 1.5 -=—

zs Other members of the Senior Management Board in total’ 70.8 26.3 22.4 19.8 =
2 Joint pool 56.9

2010 Executive Management
Lars Rebien Sarensen 6.6 2.2 2.2 03 - 11.3
Jesper Brandgaard 43 14 1.4 03 - 74
Lise Kingo 3.9 1.3 13 03 - 6.8
Kare Schultz 47 1.6 1.7 0.3 - 8.3
Mads Krogsgaard Thamsen 43 14 1.4 03 - 7A

Executive Managementin total 23.8 79 8.0 15 - 41.2

Other members of the Senior Management Board in total’ 62.5 23.8 20.9 10,3 - W755

Joint pool? 64.3 64.3 

1. The total remuneration for 2011 indudes remuneration te 26 (24 in 2010) senior vice presidents, one (three in 2010) ofwhom retired orleft the company. The 2011 remuneration for one retiring,
senior vice president {three in 2010} is included in the table above, whereas a settlement of 5 million Danish kraner(25 million Danish kroner in 2010)is nat included.

2. The joint paol is lacked up for three years before it is transferred to the participants employed at the end of the three-year period. The valueis the cash amount of the share bonus granted in the
year using the grant-date market value of Novo Nordisk B shares. Based on the split of participants at the time of establishment of the joint pool, approximately 30% of the poolwill be allocated to
the members of Executive Management and 76% to other members of the Senior Management Board (2010; 30% and 70% respectively), In the lock-up period, the joint pool may potentially be
reduced in the event of lower-than-planned value creationin subsequent years.

Management's long-term incentive programme
The shares allocated to the joint pool for 2008 (166,302 shares) were released to the individual participants subsequent to the approval
of the Annual Report 2011 by the Board of Directors and the announcement on 2 February 2012 of 2011 full year financial results.
Based on the share price at the end of 2011, the value of the released sharesis as follaws:

Number=Market value’
 

 

 

Value as at 31 December 2011 of shares released 2 February 2012 of shares (DKK millian)

Executive Management
Lars Rebien Serensen 15,578 10.2
Jesper Brandgaard 10,381 6.9
Lise Kingo 40,381 6.9
Kare Schultz 10,381 6.9
Mads Krogsgaard Thomsen 10,381 6.9

Executive Managementin total 57,102 37.8

Other members of the Senior Management Board in total? 98,320 65,2 

1. The market value of the shares released in 2011 & based on the Novo Nordisk B share price of 660 Danish kroner at the end of 2011.
2. In addition, 10,380 shares (market value: 6.9. million Danish kroner) were released to retired members of Management.

Lars Rebien Serensen serves as a memberof the Board of Directors of Danmarks Nationalbank, from which he received remuneration of 21,841 Danish kronerin 2011 {compared with 20,000 kroner
in 2019), as a memberof the Board of Directors of DONG Energy A/S, from which he received remuneration of 175,000 kronerin 2011 (compared with 175,000 kronerin 2010) and as a memberof
the Supervisory Board of Bertelsmann AG, from which he received remuneration of 85,000 euros in 2011 (compared with 50,000 euros in 2010). As of 12 July 2011, Mr Serensen hasalso served asa
meniber of the Baard of Directors of Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc, but has not received any remuneration, Jesper Brandgaard serves as chairman of the Board of Directors of SimConp A/S, from which
he received remuneration of 753,455 kroner in 2011 (compared with 794,425 kronerin 2010). Kare Schultz serves as a member of the Board of Directors of LEGO AVS,from which he received remuneration
of 300,000 kronerin 2011 (compared with 300,000 krenerin 2010), Kare Schultz also serves as chairmanof the Board of Directors of Royal Unibrew A/S, fram which he received remuneration of
625,000 kroner in 2011 (compared with 156,250 kroner in 2010). Mads Krogsgaard Thomsen serves as a memberof the Board of Directors of Cellartis AB, from which he received remuneration of
50,000 Swedish kronerin 2011 (50,000 kronerin 2010).
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price, whichis calculated as the average trading price on
NASDAQ OMX Copenhagenin the open trading window
following the release of financial results for the prior year. The
sharesin the joint poolare allocated to the participants on a pro
rata basis: the chief executive officer has three units, executive
vice presidents have two units each and seniorvice presidents
have one unit each.

The sharesin a joint pool in any given year are locked up for three
years before they are transferred to participants. If a participant
resigns during the lock-up period, his or her shares will remain
in the joint pool for the benefit of the other participants.In the
lock-up period, the Board may remove shares from the joint pool
in the event of lower-than-planned value creation. The value of
the joint poolwill change during the lock-up period depending
on the developmentin the share price, aligning the interests of
participants with those of shareholders.

Pension

The pension contribution is 25-30% of the fixed base salary
including bonus. Pension contributions are made to provide an
opportunity for executives to build up an incomeforretirement.

 
Other benefits
Other benefits are added to ensure that overall remuneration is

competitive and aligned with local practice. Executives receive
non-monetary benefits such as company cars and phones. Such
benefits are approved by the Board by delegation of powers to the
Chairmanship.In addition, executives may participate in employee
benefit programmes such as employee share purchase programmes.

Severance payment
Novo Nordisk may terminate employment by giving executives
12 months’ notice. Executives may terminate their employment
by giving Novo Nordisk six months’ notice. In addition to the
notice period, executives are entitled to a severance payment.
Existing employment contracts allow severance paymentsof up
to 36 months’ fixed base salary plus pension contributionsin the
event of a merger, acquisition or takeover of Novo Nordisk.If an
executive is terminated by Novo Nordisk for other reasons, the
severance paymentis three months’ fixed base salary plus
pension contribution per year of employmentas an executive,
taking into account previous employmenthistory.

In no eventwill the severance paymentbeless than 12 months’ or
more than 36 months’fixed base salary plus pension contribution.
For new employmentcontracts, the severance payment will be no
more than 24 months’ fixed basesalary plus pension contribution,
which will bring Novo Nordisk into alignment with the Danish
Corporate Governance Recommendationsin the long term.

Organisation
Ona globalbasis, compensation packages for employees are
guided byfive broad principles:

» A total rewards approach
In addition to a fixed base salary, incentives and benefits,
non-financial remuneration such as continuing education,

career progression and working environmentare important
elementsof the ‘total rewards’ package.

Market-linked

Salaries, incentives and benefits are positioned and maintained
at the level required to be competitive in local markets, generally
between the local market median and upper quartile. Novo
Nordisk also provides adequatelife insurance, healthcare and
pension provisionsirrespective of local competitive practice.

» Performance-linked

»

Thereis a transparent, directlink between employee performance
and remuneration. Variable pay is used to reward performance,
with base pay increases reflecting market conditions.

Transparency
Clear communication of remuneration programmesis a priority,
andall costs associated with compensation practices are known
and publicly disclosed.

Flexibility
Subject to corporate governanceorlegal requirements,flexibility
is encouraged. Flexible solutions must be cost neutral to Novo
Nordisk, and adequate levels of insurance must be maintained.
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 Board of Directors

StenScheibye
Formerly President and CEOof

; ColoplastA/S, Denmark (retired).
Memberofthe Board ofNova

NordiskA/S in 2003, vice dairman
in2004and chairman since2006.

a Council of Denmark {chair}, the
E Danish Industry Foundation

(chair), the Denmark-Amerka Foundation (chair), the Board of
Govemors ofthe Technical Liniversity of Denmark (chair), the
Danish FulbrightCommission (vice chaid), member of the board of
Gambro AB, Sweden, Rurnball Gruppen A/S, Dudes A/S, RM
Rich, Maller A/S, the Rich, Mller Foundation, theAase and Ejnar
Danlelsen Foundation and the Knud Halgaards Foundation.

cuties: Trade 
Special competences: Knowledgeof the healthcare industry,
particularly in relation to patients requiring chronic care, and
managerial skills relating to International organisations.

Education: BCamm (1983) trom Copenhagen Business School,
Genmark, Phd in Organic Chemistry (1981) and MSc in Chemistry
and Physics (1978), both from the University of Aarhus, Denmark.

Géran A Ando
Formerty CEO of Celltech Group
pie, WK (retined}. Member of the
Board of Nove Nondisk A/S in 2005
and Woe chairman since 2006.

Management duties: Symphoger
A/S, Denmark (chair), §"Bio Pte
Lt, Singapore(vice chalr,

= member of the board of Nova

A/S, Denmark, EDB! Pte Ltd, Singupore, EUSA Pharma, UI,
Chroma

 
US (chair), Sciemific Advisory Board of Bausch & Lomb, US, and
senicr acviser to EssexWoodlands Health Veriures Lid, UIC

Spedalcompetences Med/calquallflartions and extensiveexecutive
background within the intemational shannaceutical industry.

Education: Specialism in general medicine (1978) and degree in
medicine (1973), both from Linkiiping Medical University, Sweden.

Bruno Angelici
Formerly executive vice president
of AstraZeneca (retired). Member
of the Board of Nowo Nordisk ASS
since 2011.

Management duties; Member of
the board of Smiths Group ple,
UK, and Wolters Kluwer, NL,
member of the Global Advisory

Board at Takeda Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Japan.

 
Spedel competences: Extensive global experlance with two
companies in the fields of pharmaceuticals anid medical devices

4% Nowo NordiskAnnual Keyport 2011

and in-depth knewdedgeofstrategy, sales, marketing and
governance of major companies.

Equcation: AMP (1999) from Harvard Business Schoo! and MBA
(1978) rom Kellegg School of Management at Northwestemn
University, both in the US. Law degree (1973) from Reims
University and BA In Business Administration (1971)from Ecole
Supérieure de Commerce de Reims, both in France,

Henrik GOrtler

Board of Novo Nordisk ASS dnce
2005.

 
Management duties: Novozymes 4/5 (chair), Copenhagen
Alrparts A/S (chain) and COW! Holding A/S (chal, all in Denmark.

Special competences: Knowledge of the Nevo Group's business
and its palkies, and knowledgeaf the internationalbiotech industry,

Education: MS¢ in Chemical Eseireat (1976) from theTechnical University of Denmark

Ulrik Hjulmand-Lassen
Senior IT Quality Advisor in IT
Governance, Memberof the
Board of Novo Nordisk A/S since
2010.

Education: CISM (2011). Trained
8 an MCSAAT Security (2009)
and as an iSO 9001 lead auditer

(2006). BSc (1985) fram the
Technical Universityof Denmark/DIA-E.

Thornas Paul Koestler
Executive with Vatera Holdings
LLC, US. Memberof the Board of
Novo Norilsk A/S since 2011.

 
Managementdutie: Memberof
the board of Moments
Phanmaceuticals inc, US. 
Special : Extensive

R&D knowledge, both generally and within the field of regulatory
affairs. Significant know-how about the pharmacturtical industry
In general and how large Intemational corporations operate,
Additional knowledge of the US marbet

Edueation: PRD in Medicine & Pathology (1982) from the Roswell
Park Memoral Institute and BScIn Blolony (1975) from Daamen
College, both in the US.
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steward. Member of the Board of
Nowo Nordisk A/S since 7000,

Education: Degree In medical
laboratory technology (1980)
from the Copenhagen University
Hospital, Denmark.

Kurt Anker Nielsen
Formerty CFO and deputy CEO of
Nevo Norndsk AS. CEC of Novo
A/S, Denmark, from 204) to
2003 (retired). Member of the
Board of Nevo Nordkk ASS since
2000. Chairman of the Audit
Committee of Novo Nordisk A/S
since 2004,

 
ement duties: Dalhoit Larsen & Homernan A/S (chair),

RelianceAVS (chair}, Collstrup’s Mindelegat (chair), Novozymes
A/S (vice chair), and memberof the board of the Novo Nordisk
Foundation, Veluds Pharmaceuticals A/S and Vestas Wind
Syslené AS,all in Denmark Chairman of the audit committees
of Navozymes AA, Veloxis Pharmaceuticals A/S and Vestas Wind
Systems 4/5, all in Denmark.

Special competences: -depth knowledge of News Nordisk A/S
and its businesses, working knowledge of the global
pharmaceutical industry and experience In working with
accounting, finandal and capital market Issues,

Education: MS in Commerce and BusinessAdministration (1972)
from Copenhagen Business School, Denmark

Saren Thuesen Pedersen
Curmemdy working as an extemal
affairs director in Quality
Inteligence. Member of the Board
of Nowo Nordisk A/S since 2096.

Managerrert duties: Member of
the board of the Novo Nordisk
Foundation since 2007.

 
Education: BS¢ in Chemical Engineering (1988) from the
Engineering Academy of Denmark.

Hannu Rydppdnen
FormerlyCFO and deputy CEO of
Stora Enso Gyj, Finland (retired).
Member of the Board of Nova
Nordisk A/S since 2009, Member
of the Audit Committee of Novo
Nordisk AS since 2009,

Management duties: Private
equity funds Altor 7003 GP

Limited (chain, AltorFund 11 GP Limited (chair) and Altor Ill GP
United (char), all In Jersey. Rautaruukk! Oy (vice chale, merber
of the board of Tiimari Oyj, Neste Oil Oyj and Amer Sports Oyj,all
in Finland, Korsnds AB, Sweden, and the private equity fund

 

Value Creation Investments Limited, Jersey. Chairman of the audit
committessofAmer Sports Oy and Raurtaruukkd Oyj and member
oftheauditcommittee of Neste Ol Oyj, all In Aniand.

Special competences: International executive background and
thercugh understanding of managing finance aperations in
global organisations, In pardcularin relation to accounting.
financial and capital markets sues, but also experiance in private
equity and Mergers & Acquisitions (MBA).

Education: BA In Business Administration (1976) from Hanken
School of Economics, Helsinki, Finland.

Stig Straback
Electrician, currently warking as a
full-time shop steward. Member
of the Board of Nevo Nordisk A/S
since 1998.

duties: Member of
the board ofthe Nova Nordisk
Foundationsince 1958.

 
Education: Diplama as an electrician, Diploma in further training
Tor board members (2003) from the Danish Employees’ Capital
Pension Fund {LD}.

Jergen Wedel
Formerly executive vice presicent
of the Gillette Company, US
retired), Member of the Board of
Novo Nordisk A/S since 2000.
Member of the Aucit Commitice
of Novo NordiskA/S since2005. 

company within the fast-moving consumer goods Industry, as
‘well as particular insight ino the US market. |p addition,
competences in relation to auditing and accounting.

Education: MBA (1974) trom the Linkversity of Wwiscensin In the US
and MSc in Commerce and Business Administration (1972) fram
Copenhagen Business School, Denmark, majering in accounting
and financing.
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2 Name (male/female) Firstelected Term Nationality|Dateofbirth Independence’
4 Sten Scheibye {m) 2003 2012 Danish 3 Oct 1951 Independent
i Goran A Ando (m) 2005 2012 Swedish 6 Mar 1949 Not independent?
al Bruno Angelici (m) 2011 2012 French 20 Apr 1947 Independent

Henrik Gdrtler (m) 2005 2012 Danish 11 Aug 1953 Not independent?
5 Ulrik Hjulmand-Lassen? (m) 2010 2014 Danish 28 Apr 1962 Not independent
= Thomas Paul Koestler (m) 2011 2012 American 11 Jun 1951 Independent
ra Anne Marie Kverneland? (f} 2000 2014 Danish 24 Jul 1956 Not independent
E Kurt Anker Nielsen (m) 2000 2012 Danish 8 Aug 1945 Not independent?4
a Saren Thuesen Pedersen? (m) 2006 2014 Danish 18 Dec 1964 Not independent
ce Hannu Rydéppénen (m) 2009 2012 Finnish 25 Mar 1952 Independent*>
& Stig Strabaek? (m) 1998 2014 Danish 24 Jan 1964 Not independent
A Jargen Wedel (m) 2000 2012 Danish 10 Aug 1948 Independent*®
Rr 1, As designated by NASDAQ OMX Copenhagenin accordance with section 5.4.1 of Recommendations on Corporate Governance.2. Member of Management or the Board of Novo A/S or the Nove Nordisk Foundation.

3. Elected by employees of Navo Nordisk.
4, Mr Nielsen, Mr RyOpponen and Mr Wedel qualify as independent Audit Committee members as defined by the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
5. Mr RyGppénen and Mr Wedelqualify as independent Audit Committee members as defined underpart 8 of the Danish Acton Approved Auditors and Audit Firms.

 
Organisational structure: Senior Management Board

 
   Business Assurance

Kim Bundegaard    
 
 

Corporate Finance
Lars GreenDiabetes Research Unit Global MarketingPeter Kurtzhals Jakob Riis

Biopharmaceuticals North Ameri Legal Aftal
Research Unit t G ar ee Ri siPerFalk erzy Gruhn leFRamsby

a ; IT & Corporate Corporate People
Basrnaprila BaePorte iare Development & Organisation

Lars Fruergaard Jergensen Lars Christian Lassen

Device R&D International Operations
Jesper Klave Jesper Hailand

CMC Supply Japan & Korea
Jesper Baving Claus Eilersen

Global Development Region China
Peter Kristensen Ronald Christie

Regulatory Affairs Product Supply
Peter Bonne Eriksen Per Valstorp

Biopharmaceuticals
Flemming Dahl

Diabetes API
Jan Hoff*

Diabetes Finished Products
Henrik Wulff

Devices & Supply
Chain Management

Susanne Hundsbaek-Pedersen

Global Quality
Lars Guldbaek Karlsen 

    

1. Employee total includes those who work for NNE Pharmaplan A/S, NNIT A/S and Steno Diabetes Center A/S. Morten Nielsen (NNE Pharmaplan}and Per Kegut (NNIT) are also members of the Senior
Management Board.

2. From 1 January 2912,
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Executive Management
Lars Rebien Sarensen
Lars Rebien Sarensenjoined Novo
Nordisk’s Enzymes Marketing in
1982. Over the years, he has
completed several overseas
postings, Including in the Middle
East and the US. Mr Serensen
was appolnted a member of
Corporate Management in May
1994, andin December 1994 he

was given special responsibiity within Corporate Management
for Health Care. He was appointed president and chief emecutive
officer in Novernber 2000.

 
Board positions: DONG EnergyA/S and Danmarks Nztionalbank,
both in Denmark. Thermo Fisher Sdemtticinc., US, and member
ol the Bertelsmann AG Supervisory Board, Germany,

belierten: 8Scin Intemational Eaonamics (1983)from Copenhagen
Business School, Denmark. and MSc In Forestry(1981) from the
Royal Veterinary and Agricuitural University(row the Faculty of
Science ofthe University of Copenhagen), Denmark.

Jesper Brandqaard
Jesper Grandgaard joined Novo
Nordisk In 1999 as senior vice

president of Corporate Finance.
He was appointed executive vice
president and chief financial
officer in November 2000.

é Zoard positions SimCorp A/S
(chair), NNE Pharmaplan A/S

(chair) and NNITAVS (chal, all In Denmark.

Education: MBA (1995}and MSc in Economies and Auditing
(1990)from Copenhagen Business School, Denmark.

 
Lise Kingo
Lise Kinge jolred Nove industry
A/S in 1988 and worked over the

years to build up the company’s
Triple Bottom Line approach.In
1999, Mis Kingo was appointed
senior vice president, Stakeholder
Rebstions. In 2002, she was
appointed exsautivevice 

Corporate Sustainability,
She /s adjunct professor at the MedicalFacuhy, Wile Universtelt.
Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

Board position: Steno Diabetes Certer A/S (chair).

Education: MS¢ (Hons) in Responsibility and Business Practice
(2006) fromm the University of Bath, WK, [Comin Marketing
Fennomics (1891) from Copenhagen Business School, Denmark,
and BA in Religions and Ancent Greek Art (1986) from the
University of Aarhus, Denmark.

Kare Schultz
Kare Schultzjoined Novo Nordisk
In. 1989 2s an econometin Health

Care, Economy & Manning. in
November 2000, hewes
appointed chiefofstaffs. In March
2002, he took over the pesttion of
Baeoutive Vice president and chief
apersting officer.

Board positions: Royal Unibrew 4v'5 (chair) and LEGO.AA, both In
Denmark.

 
Educatian: MSc In Economics (1987) from the University of
Copenhagen, Denmark.

Mads Krogsgaard Thomsen
Mads Krogsgzard Thomsenjoined Novomines 1991. He
was appointed executivevice
presidem and chief science officer
in November 2609. He sits on the
editorial boards of intermurtional

joumals. He isa former president
of the Nathonal Academy of
Technical Sciences (ATV),

Denmark. Since 7000 he has served as adjunct professor of
pharmacology at the Royal Veterinary and Agricultural University
(now the Faculty of Sdence of the University of Copenhagen),
Denmark.

iGovernance,remunerationandleadership
 
Board position: CehantisAd, Sweden, and the Universityof
Copenhagen, Denmark,’

Education: DSc(1997), PhD (1989) and OVM (1966) fram the
Roya! Veterinary and Agricultural University (now the Facultyof
Sdencofthe University of Copenhagen}, Denmark.

1. Frera |) Ree21,
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3Sharesandcapitalstructure
Shares —
and capital
structure
We aim to communicate openly with shareholders about the
company’s financial and operational developmentas well as
strategies and targets. Through active dialogue, we seek to
obtain fair and efficient pricing of Novo Nordisk shares.

Te keep investors updated onfinancial and operating performance
as well as the progress of clinical development programmes, Novo
Nordisk hosts conferencecalls with Executive Management
following key events and the release of financial results, which
are also accessible by webcast. Executive Management and
Investor Relationsalso travel extensively to ensure thatall investors
with a major holding of Nove Nordisk shares can meet with Novo
Nordisk on a regularbasis and that a numberof smaller investors
and potential investors also have access to the company’s
management.

Roadshowsare primarily held in major European and North
American financial centres. In addition, a wide range of other
investoractivities are held during the year. In 2011, meetings with
investor groups were held in Brazil, China, Denmark,India,
Switzerland and the US. Investors and analysts are also invited to
join presentations of the most recent scientific results in connection
with the two majorscientific diabetes conferences, the American
Diabetes Association and the European Association for the Study
of Diabetes.

 
Share price performance
Nevo Nordisk’s share price increased by 4.9% from its 2010 close
of 629 Danish kronerto its 31 December 2011 close of 660 kroner.

This was more than the 2011 performance of the NASDAQ OMX
Copenhagen 20 Index, which decreased by 14.8% in 2011. In 2010,
Novo Nordisk’s share price and the NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen
20 Index increased by 89.5% and 35.6%, respectively.

In 2011, Novo Nordisk’s share price increased slightly less than the
MSCI Europe Health Care Index, which increased by 10.0%
measured in Danish kroner. Measured in US dollars, the price
of Novo Nordisk B shares increased by 2.5%, whichis below the
dollar gain of 10% for the MSCI US Health Care Index. We believe
the development of the company’s share priceis a reflection
of our leading position in the growing diabetes care market,
coupled with a continued improvementin operating performance
and encouraging progress in research and development.

Factors believed to have positively contributed to share price

52. Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011

performance in 2011 include solid operating performance driven
by strong sales growth and continuous productivity increases, which
led to an improvement in the operating margin of 2.6% in 2011
up from 31.1% in 2010. Significant progress in the clinical develop-
mentpipeline has also been positive for Novo Nordisk. Sales growth
was driven by the successful globalrollout of Victoza® and continued
penetration of our modern insulins.

The regulatory submission of the two new-generation insulins,
Degludec and DegludecPlus, represented a historic milestone for
Novo Nordisk, andis believed to have had a positive impact on
the share price. Other notable examples of progressin theclinical
developmentpipeline included initiation of phase3trials for a
fixed combination of insulin degludec andliraglutide, a fast-acting
treatment for haemophilia patients with inhibitors, a long-acting
factor IX compoundfor the treatment of haemophilia B, and the
use ofliraglutide for obesity. On the negative side Nove Nordisk
experienced increased competitive pressure, especially in the US
market, in the first half of 2011.

Capital structure
The Board of Directors believes that the current capital and share
structure of Novo Nordisk serves the interests of the shareholders

and the company. Our guiding principle is that any excess capital,
after the funding of organic growth opportunities and potential
acquisitions, is returned to investors. We apply a pharmaceutical
industry payout ratio to dividend payments complemented by
share repurchase programmes. As decided at the 2011 Annual

DKK DKKbillion

Price development
and monthly turn-
over of Novo
Nordisk’s B shares
on NASDAQ OMX
Copenhagen 2011  = Novo Nordisk’s B share

closing prices in DKK (left)
8 Turnover of B shares

in DKKbillion (right)

MOREE RE 0
Jen Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Index: 1 January 2007 = 100

Price development 5°
of Novo Nordisk’s anyB sharesrelative to

the MSCI Europe 300
Health Care Index
measured in DKK 200

= Novo Nordisk’s B 108
shares (prices in DKK}

= MSCI Europe HealthCare Index

 
eeee2007 #2008 2009 2010 2011

Index: 1 January 2007 = 100

Price development=390,
of Novo Nordisk’s
B sharesrelative
to the MSCI US
Health Care Index
measured in USD

= Novo Nordisk’s B
shares (prices in USD)

= MSCI US Health
Care Index
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DKK %

Dividend payments 15)
and payout ratio 12:

IB Dividendfor the year (left)
= Payoutratio (right) i
1. 2007 and 2008 payout ratio adjusted |

for the AERx® discontinuation cast and the 3.divestment of Dako's business activities. i2, 2010 payout ratio adjusted i

‘Uaedivestinerr.
3. Pani mg approval at the 2012 AnnualGeneral Meeting.

 
Breakdown of shareholders
56 of capital (96 of votes)

@ Novo AS, Bagsveerd,
Denmark 25.5% (73.2%)

IB Novo Nordisk AS 4.3% (0.0%)
I Other 70.2% (26.8%)

Geographic distribution
of share capital*
% of capital
@ Denmark 43%
Wi North America 32%
UK 13%
© Other 12%

* Calculated using shareholders’ registered home
country not, as in 2010, based on the location
of the bank holding shares in custody,

General Meeting, a reduction of the company’s B share capital,
corresponding to approximately 3.3% of the total share capital,
was implemented in May 2011 by cancellation of treasury shares.
This enables Novo Nordisk to continue to buy back shares without
exceeding the limit for a holding of treasury shares of 10% of the
totalt share capital. During 2011 and January 2012, Novo Nordisk
repurchased shares worth 12 billion Danish kroner, compared to
9.5 billion kronerin 2010.

For the coming 12 months, Novo Nordisk hasinitiated a new share
repurchase programme with an expected total repurchase value
of B shares amounting to a cashvalue of 12 billion kroner. Since
2008, the share repurchase programmehasprimarily been
conducted in accordance with the provisions of European
Commission Regulation No 2273/2003 of 22 December 2003,
also knownas the Safe Harbour Regulation. This programme
gives the selected financial institutions the mandate to purchase
shares independently of Novo Nordisk.

At the 2012 annual general meeting, the Board of Directorswill
propose a further reduction of the company’s B share capital,
corresponding to approximately 3.4% of the total share capital, by
cancellation of 20 million treasury shares. After implementation of
the share capital reduction, the company’s share capital will amount
to DKK 560,000,000 divided into an A share capital of DKK
107,487,200 and a B share capital of DKK 452,512,800.

Share capital and ownership
Novo Nordisk's total share capital of 580,000,000 Danish kroner
is divided into A share capital of nominally 107,487,200 kroner
and B share capital of nominally 472,512,800 kroner, of which
24,440,186 kroneris held as treasury shares (figures as of 31
December 2011). The company’s A shares (nominal value 1 krone)
are notlisted and are held by Nove A/S, a Danish public limited
liability companythat is 100% owned by the Novo Nordisk
Foundation. More information on share capital is included in note
18 0n p 75. According to the Articles of Association of the
Foundation, the A shares cannot be divested by Novo A/S or the
Foundation. Novo A/S also held 40,412,800 kroner of B share
capital(figures as of 31 December 2011). Each halding of 1 krone
of the Ashare capital carries 1,000 votes. Each holding of 1 krone
of the B share capital carries 100 votes. With 25.5% of the total
share capital, Novo A/S controls 73.2% of the total numberofvotes,
excluding treasury shares.

 
The total market value of Novo Nordisk’s B shares excluding
treasury shares was 296billion kroner at the end of 2011. Nova
Nordisk’‘s B shares are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen
and on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of ADRs. The B
shares are tradedin units of 1 krone and the ratio of Novo Nordisk's
B shares to ADRsis 1:1. The B shares are issued to the bearer but

may, on request, be registered in the halder’s name in Novo
Nordisk’s register of shareholders. As Novo Nordisk B sharesare
in bearer form, no official record of all shareholders exists. Based
on available sourcesof information about the company's share-
holders as of 31 December 2011, it is estimated that shares were
distributed as shownin the charts on this page. At the end of
2011, the free float oflisted B shares was 70.3%.

Form 20-F

We expect to file our Form 20-F Report for 2011 with the United
States Securities and Exchange Commissionin February 2012.
The report can be downloaded from novonordisk.com/investors.

Payment of dividends
Shareholders’ enquiries concerning dividend payments, transfer
of share certificates, consolidation of shareholder accounts and
tracking of lost shares should be addressed to Novo Nordisk’s
transfer agents (see back cover). Novo Nordisk does not pay a
dividend onits holding of treasury shares.Asillustrated in the
figure above, Novo Nordisk has consistently increased both the
payout ratio and the dividend paid overthelast five years. The
dividend for 2010 paid in March 2011 was 10.00 Danish kroner
per share of 1 krone.

At the 2012 annual general meeting, the Board of Directors will
propose a 40% increase in the dividend for 2011 to 14.00 Danish
kroner per share of 1 krone.
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Pitancapitalstructure
The proposed dividend payments for Novo Nordisk shares are
shown in the table below:

Proposed dividend payment for 2011
 Ashares of DKK 1 Bshares of DKK 1 ADRs

DKK 14.00 DKK 14.00 DKK 14.00

Analyst coverage
Our companyis currently covered by 40 analysts, including the
major global investment banks that regularly produce research
reports about Novo Nordisk.A list of analysts covering Novo
Nordisk can be found at novonordisk.com/investors.

Internet

Our homepageforinvestors is novonordisk.com/investors.It
includes historical and updated information about Novo Nordisk’s
activities: press releases from 1995 onwards, financial and
non-financial results, a calendarof investor-relevant events,
investor presentations, background information and recent
annualreports.

Financial calendar 2012

Annual general meeting 21 March 2012 

 

Dividend B shares ADRs
Ex-dividend 22 March 2012 22 March 2012
Record date 26 March 2012 26 March 2012
Payment 27 March 2012 3 April 2012

Announcementoffinancial results
First three months 27 April 2012
Half year 9 August 2012
First nine months 31 October 2012
Full year 31 January 2013
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56 Income statement and Statement of comprehensive income
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IncomestatementandStatementofcomprehensiveincomefortheyearended31December

Income statement and Statement of comprehensive incomefor the year ended 31 December
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

DKK million Note 2010 2009

Income statement

Sales 2,3 60,776 51,078
Cost of goods sold 2,4, 6 11,680 10,438

Gross profit 49,096 40,640

Sales and distribution costs 2,4, 6 18,195 15,420
Research and development costs 2,4, 6 9,602 7,864
Administrative expenses 2,4,5,6 3,065 2,764
Licence fees and other operating income, net 2,4,6 657 341

Operating profit 18,891 14,933

Share of profit/(loss) of associated companies, net of tax 13 1,070 (55)
Financial income 7 382 375

Financial expenses 8 2,057 1,265

Profit before income taxes 18,286 13,988

Income taxes 3 3,883 3,220

Net profit for the year 14,403 10,768

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share (DKK) 10 24.81 17.97
Diluted earnings per share (DKK) 10 24.60 17.82

Statement of comprehensive income

Net profit for the year 14,403 10,768

Other comprehensive income:
Realisation of previously deferred (gains)/losses on cash flow hedges
te Income statement (422) 900
Deferred gainsMlosses) on cash flow hedgesarising during the period (643) 352
Exchange rate adjustments of investments in subsidiaries 300 528
Deferred gainsAlosses) on equity investments (14) (1)
Share of other comprehensive income of associated companies, net of tax (9) 9
Other 27 10

Tax on other comprehensive income, incomeMexpense) 9 346 (25)

Other comprehensive incomefor the year, net of tax {415) 1,773

Total comprehensive incomefor the year 13,988 12,541
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Balance sheet at 31 December

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DKK million Note 2010

Assets

Intangible assets 11 1,458
Property, plant and equipment 12 20,507
Investments in associated cornpanies 13 43
Deferred income tax assets 20 1,847
Otherfinancial assets 14 254

Total non-current assets 24,109

Inventories 15 9,689
Trade receivables 14,16 8,500
Tax receivables 650

Otherreceivables and prepayments 14,17 2,403
Marketable securities 14 3,926
Derivative financial instruments 14,28 108
Cash at bank and in hand 14 12,017

Total current assets 37,293

Total assets 61,402

Equity and liabilities

Share capital 18 600
Treasury shares 18 (28)
Retained earnings 36,097
Other reserves 296

Total equity 36,965

Loans 14,19 504
Deferred incometaxliabilities 20 2,865
Retirement benefit obligations 21 569
Provisions 22 2,023

Total non-currentliabilities 5,961

Current debt 14,19 562
Trade payables 14 2,906
Tax payables 1,252
Otherliabilities 14, 23 7,954
Derivative financial instruments 14,19, 28 1,158
Provisions 22 4,644

Total currentliabilities 18,476

Total liabilities 24,437

Total equity and liabilities 61,402
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Statementofcashflowsfortheyearended31December

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DKK million Note 2010

Netprofit for the year 14,403

Adjustment for non-cash items 24 8,449
Changein working capital 25 297
Interest received 218

Interest paid (252)
Income taxes paid 9 (3,436)

Net cash generated from operating activities 19,679

Proceeds from the divestment of ZymoGenetics,Inc. 1,155
Purchase of intangible assets and other financial assets 11,14 (513)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 68
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (3,376)
Net change in marketable securities (2,913)

Net cash used in investing activities (5,579)

Repaymentof loans =
Purchase of treasury shares, net 18 (8,820)
Dividends paid 10 (4,400)

Net cash used in financing activities (13,220)

Net cash generated from activities 880

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26 11,034
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 46

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11,960

Additional information:'

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26 11,960
Marketable securities at the end of the year 14 3,926
Undrawn committed credit facilities? 4,473

Financial resources at the end of the year 20,359

Net cash generated from operating activities 19,679
Net cash used in investing activities (5,579)
Net changein marketable securities 2,913

Free cash flow 17,013

 
 

1. Additional non-IFRS measures. Please refer to p 65 for definition.

2009

10,768

6,701
(279)
284

(98)
(1,998)

15,378

(41 5)
1

(2,632)

11,034
1,013
4,465

16,512

15,378
(3,046)

12,332

2, At year-end, the Group had an undrawn committed credit facility amounting to DKK 4,832 million (DKK 4,473 million in 2010). The undrawn committed credit facility is a
EUR 650 million (EUR 600 million in 2010 and 2009) facility committed by a portfolio of international banks. The facility matures in 2016.
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Statement of changes in equity at 31 December

 

Share Treasury Retained Other reserves Total

capital shares earningsExchangeCash+=Taxandother
rate flow other fees

adjust- hedges adjust-
DKK million ment ments

2011

Balance at the beginning of the year 600 (28) 36,097 571 (672) 397 296

Net profit for the year 17,097
Other comprehensive incomefor the year (173) (512) 170 (515)
 

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners:

17,097 (173) (512) 170 (515)

 

 
 

 

 

 

Dividends(note 10) (5,700)
Share-based payments (note 29) 319
Purchase of treasury shares (note 18) (18)=(10,821)
Sale of treasury shares (note 18) 2 242
Tax on sale of treasury shares (123)
Reduction of the B share capital (note 18) (20) 20

Balance at the end of the year 580 (24) 37,111 398 (1,184) 567 (219)

Share Treasury Retained Other reserves Total Total
capital shares earningsEehangeGalaxia otherge Cash Tax and

rate flow other TESEIVES
ny adjust- hedges adjust-DKK million ment ments

2010

Balance at the beginning of the year 620 (32) 34,435 271 393 47 711 35,734

Netprofit for the year 14,403 14,403
Other comprehensive incomefor the year 300 (1,065) 350 (415) (415)

Total comprehensive income for the year 14,403 300 {1,065) 350 (415) 13,988

Transactions with owners:

Dividends (note 10) (4,400) (4,400)
Share-based payments (note 29) 463 463
Purchase of treasury shares (note 18) (20) (9,478) (9,498)
Sale of treasury shares (note 18) 4 674 678
Reduction of the B share capital (note 18) (20) 20 -

Balance at the end of the year 600 (28) 36,097 571 (672) 397 296 36,965
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Notes—Consolidatedfinancialstatements

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

1 Basis of preparation of the Consolidated
financial statements

The Consolidated financial statements have been preparedin accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IAS8), as well as In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the
European Union.

Furthermore, the Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with
additional Danish disclosure requirements for the annualreports oflisted
companies.

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared onthehistorical
cost basis exceptfor the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets
such as equity investments and marketable securities measured at fair value
through Other comprehensive income and derivative financial instruments
measured at fair value through the Income statement.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions
The use of reasonable estimatesis an essential part of the preparation of
the Consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS as issued
by the IASB andIFRS as endorsed by the European Union. Managementis
required to make estimates and assumptionsthataffect the application
of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales,
costs, cash flow and related disclosures at the date(s) of the Consolidated
financial statements.

ManagementbasesIts estimates on historical experience and various other
assumptions that are held to be reasonable under the circumstances, These
form the basis for making judgements aboutthe reported financial position
and result of operations and cash flow thatare not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The esti-
mates and underlying assumptionsare reviewed on an ongoing basis and,
if necessary, changes are recognised In the period in which the estimate Is
revised,

Managementregards the following to be the key accounting estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of the Consolidated financial state-ments.

Sales rebates and provisions
Novo Nordisk has provisions and accruals for expected sales rebates, whole-
saler charge-backs and otherrebates, including Medicaid in the United
States and similar rebates in other countries.

Such estimates are based on analyses of existing contractualor legal obliga-
tions, historical trends and the Group's experience. They are calculated
onthe basis of a percentage ofsales for each product as defined by the
contracts with the various customer groups.

Sales discounts and sales rebates are predominantly issued in Region
North America.In that region, significant sales rebates and discounts com-
prise rebates from sales covered by Medicare and Medicaid, the US state
and federal programmesfor public healthcare insurance.

Provisions for Medicald and Medicare rebates have been calculated using
a combination of historical experience, product and population growth,
price Increases, the impact of contracting strategies and specific terms In
the individual agreements. For Medicaid, the calculation of rebates involves
interpretation of relevant regulations that are subject to challenge or
change in interpretative guidance by government authorities. Although
accruals are made far Medicaid and Medicare rebatesat the timesales are
recorded, the actual rebates related to the specific sale will typically be
invoiced to Novo Nordisk up to six months later, Due to the time jag, the
rebate adjustments to sales in any particular period mayincorporate
revisions of accruals for prior periods.

Customer rebates are offered to a numberof managed healthcare plans.
These rebate programmes imply that the customerreceives a rebate after
attaining certain performance parameters relating to product purchases,
formulary status and pre-established market share milestonesrelative
to competitors. Since they are contractually agreed upon,rebates are
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estimated according to the specific terms in each agreement,historical
experience, anticipated channel mix, product growth rates and market
share information. Novo Nordisk considers the sales performance of pro-
ducts subject to managed healthcare rebates and other contract discounts,
and adjusts the provision periodically to reflect actual experience.

Wholesaler charge-backs relate to contractual arrangements existing
between Novo Nordisk and indirect customers, mainly in the US, whereby
products aresold at prices lower than the list price charged to wholesalers.
A wholesaler charge-back represents the difference between the invoice
price to the wholesaler and the indirect customer's contract price. Pravisions
are calculated for estimated charge-backs using a combination of factors
such as historical experience, current wholesalerinventory levels, contract
terms. and the value of claims received but not yet processed. Wholesaler
charge-backs are generally settled within one to three monthsof incurring
theliability.

The carrying amountof provisions forsales rebates is DKK 5,666 million as
at 31 December 2011. Please refer to note 22 for further information on
provisions forsales rebates. Furthermore, please refer to note 3 for a gross-
to-net sales reconciliation,

Novo Nordisk considers the provision established for sales rebates to
be reasonable and appropriate based on currently available information,
However, the actual amount of rebates and discounts maydiffer from
the amounts estimated by Managementas more detailed information
becomes available.

Indirect production costs (IPCs)
Production costs for work in progress and finished goods include IPCs such
as employee costs, depreciation, maintenance etc.

IPCs are measured based on a standard cost method which is reviewed
regularly to ensure relevant measuresofutilisation, production lead time
and other relevant factors. Changesin the parameters for calculation
of IPCs could have an impact on the gross margin and the overall valuation
of inventories.

The carrying amountof IPCs on inventory is DKK 5,125 million as at
31 December 2011. Please refer to note 15 for further information.

Novo Nordisk considers the carrying amountof IPCs on inventory to be
reasonable and appropriate based on currently available information, How-
ever, the actual amountof IPCs maydiffer from the amounts estimated by
Managementas more detailed information becomesavailable,

Allowances for doubtful trade receivables
Trade receivables are stated at amortised cost less allowances for potential
losses on doubtful trade receivables,

Novo Nordisk maintains allowances for doubtful trade receivables in anti-
cipation of estimated losses resulting fram the subsequent Inability of
customers to make required payments.If the financial circumstances of the
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairmentof theirability
to make payments, additional allowances could be requiredin future
periods. Managementanalyses trade receivables and examineshistorical
bad debt, customerconcentrations, customer creditworthiness, current
economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when evaluating
the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful trade receivables.

As a result of the generally troubled economic climate in Europe and
thereby alsa the Eurozone countries, Novo Nordisk has increasedits focus
on the developmentin the outstanding trade receivables from this region.
Paymenthistory as well as current economic conditions andindicators are
taken into account in the valuation of trade receivables. Please refer to
note 2 for a geographical split of trade receivables and the allowancefor
trade receivables.

The carrying amountof trade receivables is DKK 9,349 million and allow-
ances for doubtful trade receivables is DKK 892 million as at 31 December
2011. Please refer to note 16 for further information.

Provisions and contingencies
Deferred income tax assets andliabilities
Novo Nordiskis subject to income taxes around the world.Significant
judgementis required in determining the worldwide accrual for income
taxes, deferred incometax assets and liabilities, and provision for uncertain
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tax positions. Novo Nordisk recognises deferred income tax assets if It
is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future
against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can be
utilised, Managementhas considered future taxable incomein assessing
whether deferred Income tax assets should be recognised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities is DKK 2,414 million and DKK 3,206 million respectively as at
31 December 2011. Please refer to note 20 for further information.

Legal disputes
Provisionsfor legal disputes consist of various types of provisions linked to
ongeing legal disputes. Management makes judgements about provisions
and contingencies, induding the probability of pending and potential future
litigation outcomes which by their very nature are dependenton inherently
uncertain future events, When determining likely outcomesoflitigations
etc, Management considers the evaluation of external counsels input about
each case, as well as known outcomesin case law.

The carrying amount of provisions for legal disputes is DKK 1,554 million as
at 31 December 2011. Please refer to note 22 for further information and
note 31 for a description of significant pendinglitigations.

Although Managementbelieves that the total provisions for legal pro-
ceedings are adequate based upon currently available information, there
can be no assurance that there will not be any changes in facts or matters
or that any future lawsuits, claims, proceedings or investigations will not
be material,

Financial accounting policies

Theprincipal accounting policies set out below have been applied con-
sistently In the preparation of the Consolidated financial statementsforall
the years presented.

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs
Novo Nordisk has adopted all new or amended and revised accounting
standards and Interpretations (‘IFRSs’) issued by [ASB and IFRSs endorsed
by the European Unioneffective for the accounting year 2011. Based on
an analysis by Nove Nordisk, the application of the new IFRSs has not had
a material impact on the Consolidated financial statements in 2011 and
we do not anticipate any significant impact on future periods from the
adoption of these new IFRSs.

New IFRSs that have been issued butnotyet come into effect
In addition to the above, |ASB has issued a number of new or amended
and revised accounting standards and interpretations(|FRSs) that have
been endorsed by the European Union but not yet come into effect. Navo
Nordisk has thoroughly assessed the impact of these IFRSs which are not
yet effective and determined that we do not anticipate any significant
impact on the Consolidated financial statements from the adoption of these
standards.

IASB hasissued IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments’ which is required to be
adopted by 1 January 2015. Thisis part of the [ASB's project to replace
IAS 39 and the new standard will substantially changethe classification and
measurement of financial instruments and hedging requirements. Further-
more, IASB has issued an amendmentto IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ that
makes changesto the recognition and measurementof defined benefit
pension expenses and termination benefits, and to the disclosure ofall
employee benefits. The amendmentis required to be adopted by 1 January
2013, Novo Nordisk has assessed the impact of the standard and the
amendmentand determined that they will not have any significant impact
‘on the Consolidated financial statements. The new standards and the
amendment have not yet been endarsed by the European Union,

Defining materiality
Novo Nordisk’s Consolidated financial statements are a result of processing
large numbers of transactions and aggregating those transactions into
classes according to their nature or function. When aggregated, the trans-
actions are presented separately in classes of similar items in the con-
solidated financial statements. If a line item is not individually material,it is
aggregated with other items of a similar nature in the statements orin thenotes.

ThroughoutIFRS there are substantial disclosure requirements, Nova
Nordisk provides specific disclosures required by an IFRS unless the informa-
tion is immaterial or not applicable.

Principles of consolidation
The Consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of Nova Nordisk A/S and entities controlled by Novo Nordisk A/S. The results
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the yearare included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition and
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Comparative figures are
notrestated for disposed or acquired companies.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to thefinancial statements of sub-
sidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with Novo Nordisk policies.
All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expensesare eliminated
in full when consolidated.

WhenNovo Nordisk loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between(i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and(ii) the previous carrying amountof the assets (including good-
will) andliabilities of the subsidiary.

Translation of foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of Novo Nordisk’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environmentin
which the entity operates (functional currency). The Consolidated financial
statements are presented in Danish kroner (DKK), which is the functional
and presentation currency of the Parent company.

Translation of transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such trans-
actions and from thetranslation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies ate recognised in theIncome statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as financial assets
classified as available for sale, are included in the falr value reserve in Other
comprehensive income.

Translation of Group companies
Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Danish
kroner at the exchangerates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
for assets and liabilities, and at average exchangerates for income state-
ment items.

All effects of exchange rate adjustment are recognised in the Incomestate-
ment, with the exception of exchange gains and losses arising from:

* the translation of foreign subsidiaries’ net assets at the beginning of the
year at the exchange rates at the end of the reporting period

» the translation of foreign subsidiaries’ income statements using average
exchangerates, whereas balance sheet items are translated using the
exchangerates prevailing at the end of the reporting period

* the translation of non-currentintra-Groupreceivables that are considered
to be an addition to net investments in subsidiaries

» the translation of investments in associated companies.

The above exchange rate gains and losses are recognised in Other com-
prehensive income.

Sales and revenue recognition
Sales are measured atthe fair value of the consideration received or receiv-
able, Sales are reduced for realised and estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goodsis recognised when all the following condi-tions are satisfied:

* Nove Nordisk has transferred to the buyerthe significantrisks and
rewards of ownership of the goods.

* Nove Nordisk retains neither continuing managerial involvement te the
degree usually associated with ownership noreffective control over the
goods sold.

© The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
* It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction

will flow to the entity.
» The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measuredreliably.
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Provisions for rebates and discounts granted to government agencies,
wholesalers, retail pharmacies, managed care and other customers are
recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time the related revenues
are recorded or when the incentives are offered. They are calculated on
the basis of historical experience and the specific terms in the individual
agreements. The sales rebate accruals and provisions are included in Other
currentliabilities and Provisions for otherliabilities.

Wherethereis historical experience or a reasonably accurate estimate of
expected future returns can otherwise be made, a provision for estimated
sales returnsis recorded, Revenue recognition for new product launches
is based on specific facts and circurnstances relating to those products,
including estimated demand and acceptance rates for well-established
products with similar market characteristics. Where shipments of new or
existing products are made on a sale or return basis, without sufficient
historical experience forestimating sales returns, revenue is only recorded
when there is evidence of consumption or when the right of return has
expired.

Provisions for revenue deductions are adjusted to actual amounts as
rebates, discounts and returns are processed.

Research and development
Allinternal research costs are expensed in the Income statement as
incurred.

Due to the long duration and significant uncertainties relating to the
development of new products, including risks associated with clinical trials.
and regulatory approval, it is concluded that Nove Nordisk’s internal
development costs in general doa not meet the capitalisation criteria, This
is because the technical feasibility criteria are not considered to be fulfilled
until a high probability of regulatory approval can be determined. Hence,
internal research and development costs are expensed in the Income
statementas incurred. The sameprinciples are applied te property, plant
and equipment with no alternative use developed as part of a research
and development project. However, property, plant and equipment with
alternative use or used for general research and development purposes is
capitalised and depreciated overits estimated useful life.

For acquired in-process research and developmentprojects, the effect
of probability is reflected in the cost of the asset, and the probability
recognition criteria are therefore always considered satisfied. As the cost
of acquired in-process research and development projects can often be
measured reliably, these projects fulfil the capitalisation criteria as intangible
assets upon acquisition. However, further internal development costs
subsequent to acquisition are treated in the same wayas other internal
developmentcosts.

Licence fees and other operating income
Licence fees and other operating income comprise licence fees and income
of a secondary naturein relation to the main activities of Novo Nordisk.
Non-Novo Nordisk-related net profit fram the two wholly owned sub-
sidiaries NNIT A/S and NNE Pharmaplan A/S is recognised as other operating
income. Licence fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
the terms and substance of the relevant agreement. Licence fees and other
operating incomealso include incomefram sale of intellectual property
rights.

Intangible assetsGoodwill
Goodwill represents any cost in excess of identifiable net assets, measured
at fair value, in the acquired company. Goodwill recorded underIntangible
assets is related to subsidiaries.

Patents and licences
Patents and licences, including acquired patents and licences for in-process
tesearch and development projects, are carried at historical cost less ac-
cumulated amortisation and any impairment loss. Amortisationis calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of patents andlicences
over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful life is the shorter of the
legal duration and the economic usefullife. The estimated usefullife of
intangible assets is regularly reviewed. The amortisation of patents and
licences begins after regulatory approval has been obtained, whichis the
point in time from which the intangible asset is available for use in the
production of the product.
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Other intangible assets
Internal development of computer software and other development costs
related to major IT projects for internal use that are directly attributable
to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by Novo Nordisk are recognised as intangible assets under Other
intangible assets if the recognition criteria are met. The computer software
has to be a significant business system and the expenditure must lead ta
the creation of a durable asset.

In order for an internally generated intangible asset to qualify for
recognition,it is required that the related internal developmentproject is
at a sufficiently advanced stage and that the project is economically viable.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of 3-10 years. The amortisation commences when the assetis
available for use, ie whenitis in the location and condition necessary forit
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipmentis measured at historical cost less accu-
mulated depreciation and any impairment loss. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes costs directly attributable to the construction of the assets.
Subsequent costis included in the asset's carrying amountor recognised
a5 a Separate asset, as appropriate, only whenit is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flaw to Novo Nordisk and
the cost of the item can be measuredreliably. In general, constructions of
major investments are self-financed and thus no material interest on loans
(borrowings) is capitalised as part of the cost.

Depreciation is provided under the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

» Buildings: 12-50 years
» Plant and machinery: 5-16 years
» Other equipment: 3-16 years
* Land: not depreciated

The assets‘ residual values and usefullives are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying
amountis written down to its recoverable amountif the asset's carrying
amountis higher thanits estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the Income statement.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
substantially transferall the risks and rewards of ownership to thelessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. The use of finance leases
in the Consolidated financial statements is immaterial and they are part
of property, plant and equipment.

Operating lease payments are recognised in the Income statement as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which eco-
nomic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairmentirrespective of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired.

Assets that are subject to amortisation, such as intangible assets in use
or with definite usefullife, and other non-current assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount maynot be recoverable. Factors considered material
that could trigger an impairmenttest include the follawing:

* Development of a competing drug
* Changesin the legal framework covering patents, rights or licences
* Advances in medicine and/or technology that affect the medical treat-

ments
» Lower-than-predicted sales
» Adverse impact on reputation and/or brand names
» Changes in the economiclives of similar assets
* Relationship with other intangible or tangible assets
* Changes or anticipated changesin participation rates or reimbursement

policies.
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if the carrying amount of goodwill, intangible assets or other non-current
assets exceads the recoverable amount based upon the existence of one or
more of the above indicaters of impairment, any impairment is measured
based on discounted projected cash flows.

Intangible assets and other non-financial assets (other than goodwill) that
have suffered impairments are reviewed at each reporting date for possible
reversal of the impairment.

Investments in associated companies
Investments in associated companies are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting (ie at the respective share of the associated com-
panies’ net asset value applying Nove Nordisk’s accounting policies), Good-
will relating to associated companies is recorded as part of the investment
under Investments in associated companies.

Financial assets
Novo Nordisk classifies its investrnents in the following categories:

Available-forsale financial assets
» Loans and receivables

Financial assets at fair value through the Income statement(derivatives).

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were
made. Management determines theclassification ofits investments on
initial recognition and re-evaluates this at the end of every reporting period
to the extent that such a classification is permitted and required.

Recognition and measurement
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the settlement date.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value disclosures are made separately for each class of financial instru-
ments at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition
Investments are derecognised whenthe rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred, and Nove Nordisk
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets consist of equity investments and market-
able securities and are included in Other financial assets unless Manage-
ment intends to dispose of the investment within 12 monthsof the end of
the reporting period. If that is the case, the current part is included as Other
receivables and prepayments.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from changesin the fair value of finan-
cial assets classified as available for sale are recognised in Other compre-
hensive income. Whenfinancial assets classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the
Income statement.

The fair values of quoted investments (including bonds) are based on cur-
rent bid prices at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets for which
no active market exists are carried at cost if no reliable valuation model can
be applied.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deter-
minable payments that are not quoted in an active market.If collection is
expected within one year {or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are dassified as Current assets, |f not, they are presented as
Non-current assets.

Trade receivables and Other receivables and prepayments are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method,less provision for allowances. Provision for
allowances is made for trade receivables when there is objective evidence
that Novo Nordisk will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables.

The provision for allowances is deducted from the carrying amount of
Trade receivables and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Income
statement under Sales and distribution costs. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible,it is written off against the allowance accountfor trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against Sales and distribution costs in the Income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through the income statement(derivatives)
Novo Nordisk uses forward exchange contracts, currency options, interest
fate swaps and cross-currency swaps to hedge forecast transactions,
assets and liabilities, and net foreign currency investments in foreign sub-
sidiaries in accordance with the specific rules of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instru-
ments: Recognition and Measurement’,

Uponinitiation of the contract, Nove Nordisk designates each derivative
financial contract that qualifies for hedge accounting as oneof:

Hedgesof the fair value of a recognised asset orliability or a firm commit-
ment(fair value hedge}

* Hedges of the fair value of a forecast financial transaction (cash flow
hedge)

» Hedgesof a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment
hedge).

All contracts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently re-
measured at their fair values based on current bid prices at the end of the
reporting period,

Forward exchange contracts and currency swap hedges recognised as
assets orliabilities in foreign currencies are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Value adjustments are recognisedin the Income
statement along with any value adjustments of the hedged assetorliability
that is attributable to the hedgedrisk.

The value adjustments on forward exchange contracts and interest rate
swaps designated as hedges of forecast transactions are recognised directly
in Other comprehensive income, given hedge effectiveness. The cumulative
value adjustment of these contracts is transferred from Other compre-
hensive income to the Income statement as a reclassification adjustment
underFinancial income or Financial expenses when the hedged transaction
is recognised in the Income statement.

Currency swaps used ta hedge net investments in subsidiaries are measured
at fair value based on the difference between the swap exchange rate and
the exchangerate at the end of the reporting period. The value adjustment
is recognised in Other comprehensive income.

Furthermore, Novo Nordisk uses currency option hedges of forecast trans-
actions. Currency options are initially recognised at cost, which equals fair
value of considerations paid, and subsequently re-measured at theirfair
values at the end of the reporting period. The cumulative value adjustment
of the currency options for which hedge accountingis applied, which is
the intrinsic value of the options,is transferred from Other comprehensive
incometo the Income statementas a reclassification adjustment under
Financial income or Financial expenses when the hedged transaction is
recognised in the Income statement. Gains and losses on currency options
that do not meet the detailed requirementsfor allowing hedge accounting
are recognised directly in the Income statement underFinancial income or
Financial expenses.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is measured on the basis of
quoted market prices of financial instruments traded in active markets.
if an active market exists, fair value is based on the most recently observed
market price at the end of the reporting period.

If a financial instrument is quoted in a market that is not active, Nove
Nordisk bases its valuation on the most recent transaction price, Adjust-
ment is made for subsequent changes in market conditions, for instance by
including transactionsin similar financial instruments that are assumed to
be motivated by normal business considerations.

if an active market does not exist, the fair value of standard and simple
financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, interest
rate swaps, currency swaps and unlisted bonds, is measured according ta
generally accepted valuation techniques. Market-based parameters are usedto measure fair value.
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When a hedging instrument expires oris sald, or when a hedge no longer
meets the critetia for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain orloss existing
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transactionis ultimately recognised in the Income statement. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the Income
statement underFinancial income or Financial expenses.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the first-in, first-out method, Cost. comprises direct
production costs such as raw materials, consumables and labour as well as
production overheads such as employee wages, depreciation, maintenance
etc. The production averheads are measured based on a standard cost
method, which is reviewed regularly to ensure relevant measures ofutilisa-
tion, productionlead time, etc.

If the expected sales price less completion costs and costs to execute sales
(net realisable value) is lower than the carrying amount, a write-down is
recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceedsits net
realisable value.

Inventory manufactured prior to regulatory approvalis capitalised as an
asset but provided for until there is a high probability of regulatory approval
of the product. Before that point a provision is made against the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount and recorded as R&D costs. At the point
when a high probability of regulatory approvalis obtained, the provision
recorded is reversed, up to no more thantheoriginal cost.

Tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax,
including adjustments to previous years. Tax is recognised in the Income
statement, except to the extent thatit relates to iterns recognised in Other
comprehensive income.

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between the ac-
counting and taxable values of the individual consolidated companies and
from realisable tax-loss carry-forwards using theliability method. The tax
value of tax-loss carry-forwardsis included in deferred tax assets to the
extent that the tax losses and other tax assets are expected to beutilised
in future taxable income. The deferred income taxes are measured
according to current tax rules and at the tax rates expected to be in force
onelimination of the temporary differences.

Unremitted earnings are retained by subsidiaries for reinvestment. No
provision is made for income taxes that would be payable upon the distri-
bution of such earnings.

Employee benefits
Wages, salaries, social security contributions, annual leave and sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of Novo Nordisk. Where
Navo Nordisk provides long-term employee benefits, the costs are accrued
to match the rendering of the services by the employees concerned.

Pensions
Novo Nordisk operates a number of defined contribution plans throughout
the world. In a few countries, Nove Nordiskstill operates defined benefit
plans. The costs for the year for defined benefit plans are determined
using the projected unit credit method. This reflects services rendered by
employeesto the dates of valuation andis based on actuarial assumptions
primarily regarding discount rates used in determining the present value of
benefits, projected rates of remuneration growth and lang-terrn expected
rates of return for plan assets. Discountrates are based on the marketyields
of high-rated corporate bonds in the country concerned,

Actuarial gains and Josses are recognised as income or expenses when the
net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses for each individual
plan at the end of the previous reporting period exceed 10% of the
higherof the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at
that cate. These gains or losses are recognised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans.

Past service costs are allocated over the average period until the benefits
vest,
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Pension assets are only recognised to the extent that Novo Nordiskis able to
derive future economic benefits such as refunds from the plan or reductions
of future contributions.

Novo Nordisk’s contributions to the defined contribution plans are charged
to the Income statement in the year to whichthey relate.

Share-based compensation
Nove Nordisk operates equity-settled, share-hased compensation plans.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchangefor the grant
of the options or shares is recognised as an expense and allocated over the
vesting period.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or shares granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions. The fair valueis fixed at grant
date. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options or shares that are expected to vest. At the end of
each reporting period, Novo Nordiskrevises its estimates of the number of
options or shares that are expected to vest. Novo Nordisk recognises the
impact of the revision of the original estimates,if any, in the Income state-
ment andin a corresponding adjustment to Equity (change in proceeds)
over the remaining vesting period. Adjustments relating to prior years are
included in the Income statement in the year of adjustment.

Liabilities
Generally, liabilities are stated at amortised cost unless otherwise specified.

Loans are recognisedinitially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Loans are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the Income staternent over the period of the loans using the
effective interest method. Loansare classified as Current debt unless Nova
Nordisk has an unconditional right to defer settlementof theliability for
at least 12 monthsafter the end af the reporting period.

Provisions
Provisions, including legal disputes, are recognised where a legal or con-
structive obligation has been incurred as a result of past events andit is
probable that there will be an outflow of resources that can be reliably
estimated.In this case, Novo Nordisk arrives at an estimate on the basis of
an evaluation of the most likely outcome. Disputes for which no reliable
estimate can be madeare disclosed as contingentliabilities,

Provisions are measured at the present value of the anticipated expenditure
for settlement of the legal ar constructive obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increasein the provision due to the
passageoftimeis recognised as interest expense.

Product retums
Novo Nordisk has recorded provisions for expected product returns.
Provisions are based on an analysis of the estimated rate of return, which
is determined based on historical experience of customer returns and con-
sidering any other relevant factors.

Treasury shares
Treasury shares are deducted fram the share capital at their nominal value
of DKK 1 per share. Differences between this amount and the amount paid
for acquiring, or received for disposing of, treasury shares are deducted
from Retained earnings.

Statement of cash flows
The Statementof cash flows and financial resources is presented in accord-
ance with the indirect method commencing with Net profit for the year.
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and marketable securities with
original maturity of less than three months offset by short-term bank loans.
Financial resources consist of cash and cash equivalents, bonds with original
term to maturity exceeding three months and undrawn committed credit
facilities expiring after more than oneyear.
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Financial definitions

ADRs
An American Depositary Receipt (or ADR) represents ownership in the
shares of a non-US company andtrades in US financial markets.

Basic earnings per share (EPS)
Net profit divided by the average numberof shares outstanding.

Diluted earnings per share
Net profit divided by the sum of average numberof shares outstanding,
including the dilutive effect of share options ‘in the money’. Thedilutive
effect of share options ‘in the money’is calculated as the difference
between the following:

1) the numberofshares that could have been acquiredatfair value with
proceeds from the exercise of the share options
2) the numberof shares that would have beenissued assuming the exercise
of the share options.

Thedifference (the dilutive effect) is added to the denominatoras an issue
of shares for no consideration,

Effective tax rate
Income taxes as a percentage of profit before incometaxes.

Equity ratio
Total equity at year-end as a percentageoftotal assets at year-end,

Gross margin
Grossprofit as a percentage of sales.

Net profit margin
Net profit as a percentage ofsales.

Numberof shares outstanding
The total number of shares, excluding the holding of treasury shares.

Operating profit margin
Operating profit as a percentage of sales.

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income comprises all items recognised in equity for
the year other than those related to transactions with owners of the com-
pany. Examples of items that are required to be presented in OCI are:

* Foreign exchange rate adjustments in foreign subsidiaries
© Actuarial gains and losses arising on defined benefit plans
« Changesin fair value of financial instruments in a cash flow hedge.

Payout ratio
Total dividends for the year as a percentage of net profit.

Return on equity (ROE)
Net profit for the year as a percentage of shareholders’ equity (average).

Non-IFRSfinancial measures
In the Annual Report 2011, Novo Nordisk discloses certain financial
measures of the Group's financial performance, financial position and cash
flows that reflect adjustments to the most directly comparable measures
calculated and presentedin accordance with IFRS. These non-IFRS financial
measures may not be defined and calculated by other companies in the
same manner, and may thus not be comparable with such measures.

The non-lFRS financial measures presented in the Annual Report 2011 are:
» Cash to earnings
» Financial resources at the endof the year
* Free cash flow
* Operating profit after tax to net operating assets.

Cash to earnings
Cashto earnings |s defined as “free cash flow as a percentage of net profit’

Financial resources at the end of the year
Financial resources at the end of the yearis defined as the sum of cash and
cash equivalents at the end ofthe year, bonds with original term to maturity
exceeding three months and undrawn committed credit facilities.

Free cash flow
Novo Nordisk defines free cash flow as ‘net cash generated from operating
activities less net cash used in investing activities’ excluding ‘Net changein
marketable securities’

Operating profit after tax to net operating assets
Operating profit after tax to net operating assets is defined as ‘operating
profit after tax (using the effective tax rate} as a percentage of average
inventories, receivables, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and deferred tax assets less non-interest bearing liabilities including
provisions and deferredtax liabilities (where averageis the sum of above
assets and liabilities at the beginning of the year and at year-end divided
by two)"
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Notes—Consolidatedfinancialstatements

2 Segment information Management monitors the operating results of its business segments sepa-rately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and

Operating segmentsare reported in a mannerconsistent with the internal performance assessment. Segment performanceis evaluated on the basis
reporting provided to Managementand the Board of Directors. of operating profit consistent with the Consolidated financial statements.

Financial income and expenses and incometaxes are managed on a Group

Business segments basis and are not allocated to business segments.

Novo Nordisk operates in two business segments based on different There aré no sales or other transactions between the business segments.
therapies: Diabetes care and Biopharmaceuticals. Costs have been split between business segments according to a specific

allocation with the addition of a minor numberof corporate overheads
The Diabetescare business segmentincludes research, development, allocated systematically between the segments, Licence faes and other
manufacturing and marketing of products within the areasof insulin, GLP-1 operating income has been allocated to the two segments basedon the
and related delivery systems,oral antidiabetic products (OAD) and obesity. sameprinciple. Segmentassets comprise the assets that are applied directlyto the activities of the segment, including intangible assets, property, plant

The Biopharmaceuticals business segmentincludes research, development, and equipment, otherfinancialassets, inventories, trade receivables, and
manufacturing and marketing of products within the areas of haemophilia, otherreceivables and prepayments.
growth hormone therapy, hormone replacement therapy, inflammation ,
therapy and othertherapy areas. No single customer represents more than 10% of the total sales and no

operating segments have been aggregated to form the reported business
segments.

Business segments

 

  

BKKmillion 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Segmentsales Diabetes care Biopharmaceuticals Total

NovoRapid® / NoveLog® 11,900 g,74S
NovoMix® /NevoLog®Mix 7,821 6,499
Levemir® 6,880 5,223

26,601 21,471
11,827 11,315

Total modern insulins
Humaninsulins
Victoza® 2,317 87
Protein-related products 2,214 1,977
Oral antidiabetic products (OAD) 2,751 2,652  

Diabetes care total sales 45,710 37,502
 
  

NovoSeven® 8,030 7,072
Norditropin® 4,803 4,401
Hormone replacement therapy 1,892 1,744
Other products 341 359  

Biopharmaceuticals total sales 15,066 13,576  

Total business segments —
other key figures
Total sales

Change in DKK (%)
60,776 51,078
19.0% 12.1%

45,710 37,502
21.9% 12.4%

15,066 13,576
11.0% 11.3%

Change in local currencies (%) 15.7% 11.1% 5.4% 9.3% 13.0% 10.6%
Cost of goods sold 10,131 9,001 1,549 1,437 11,680 10,438
Sales and distribution costs 14,815 12,877 3,380 2,543 18,195 15,420
Research and development costs 6,744 5,257 2,858 2,607 9,602 7,864
Administrative expenses 2,260 2,044 805 720 3,065 2,764
Licence fees and other operating
income, net 342 187 315 154 657 341
Operating profit 12,102 8,510 6,789 6,423 18,891 14,933

Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses included in costs 1,887 1,973 580 578 2,467 2,551
Additions to non-currentassets
(other than financial assets and
deferred tax assets) 3,068 2,129 795 896 3,863 3,025

Assets allocated to business segments 34,947 29,703 7,806 8,984 42,853 38,687
Assets notallocated to business
segments!
Total assets

18,549 16,055
61,402 54,742

    
  

1. The part of total assets that has not been allocated to either of the two business segments includes Cash at bank and in hand, Marketable securities, Derivative financial instruments
and tax assets atc.
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2 Segment information (continued)

Geographical segments

Novo Nordisk operates in five geographical regions:

* North America: the US and Canada
* Europe: the EU, EFTA, Albania, Bosnia-Hercegovina, Croatia, Macedonia,

Serbia, Montenegro and Kosovo
* Japan & Korea: Japan and Korea
* Region China: China, Hong Kong and Taiwan
« International Operations: all other countries

Geographical segments

Sales are attributed to geographical regions according to the location of
the customer. Allocation of property, plant and equipment and total assets
are based on thelocation of the assets.

The country of domicile is Denmark, which is part of Region Europe.
Denmarkis immaterial in relation to Novo Nordisk’s activities in terms of
geographical size and the operational business segments. Less than 1% of
the total salesis realised in Denmark. Sales to external customers attributed
to the US are collectively the mast material to the company. The US is the
only country where sales contribute more than 10% of total sales. Sales to
the US represent more than 90% of sales in Region North America,

 

 

  
 

     
 

 

DKK million 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

North America Europe

Sales 23,609 18,279 18,664 17,540
Change in DKK (%) 29.2% 20.6% 6.4% 1.9%
Changein local currencies (%) 22.4% 15.2% 46% 5.2%

Property, plant and equipment 987 905 15,669 15,445
Trade receivables 1,689 1,255 3,437 3,243
Hereof allowance for trade receivables (13) (22) (200) {187)
Total assets 3,680 3,232 46,654 42,933

DKK million 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

International Operations? Japan & Korea

Sales 8,335 6,835 5,660 4,888
Change in DKK (%) 21.9% 7.6% 15.8% 16.5%
Changein local currencies (%) 22.3% 14.9% 3.3% 1.8%

Property, plant and equipment 1,929 1,785 213 188
Trade receivables 1,995 1,555 446 361
Hereofallowance for trade receivables (408) (391) 0 0
Total assets 6,327 5,439 1,158 1,003

DKK million 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Region China2 Total

Sales 4,508 3,536 60,776 51,078
Change in DKK (%) 27.5% 25.6% 19.0% 12.1%
Changein local currencies (%) 19.9% 26.4% 13.0% 10.6%

Property, plant and equipment 1,709 903 20,507 19,226
Trade receivables 933 649 8,500 7,063
Hereofallowance fortrade receivables 0 0 (627) (600)
Total assets 3,583 2,135 61,402 54,742

    
2. AS of 1 January 2011, Region China is reported as a separate geographical region. Before 2611, Region China was part of International

Operations. The historical figures for 2010 and 2009 have been restated and are comparable with the 2011 regional set-up.
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3 Gross-to-net sales reconciliation 5 Fee to statutory auditors
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DKKmillion 2010 2009 DKK millian 2010 2009

Gross sales 75,811 62,459 Statutory audit 25 25
Audit-related services 6 6

US Medicaid and Medicare rebates (4,124) (2,447)~—sTax advisory services 15 13
US managed healthcare rebates (2,494) (2,121) Otherservices 4 3
US wholesaler charge-backs (4,994) (3,720) ;
Non-US healthcare plans and Total fee to statutory auditors 50 47
programme rebates (543) (431)
Sales returns and discounts (2,880) (2,662)

Total gross-to-net sales adjustments (15,035) (11,381)  & Depreciation, amortisation and impairmentlosses

Total net sales 60,776 51,078«=PKK million ano
Included in the Income statement:
Cost of goods sold 1,832 1,851
Sales and distribution costs 60 43

4 Employee costs Research and development costs 460 528
sai Administrative expenses 56 55

Disemnilian 2019 20g Licence fees and other operating
Wagesandsalaries 14,520 13,231 Ineame, net ae =
Share-based payment costs (note 29) 463 259 Total depreciation, amortisation and
Pensions — defined contribution plans 1,052 958 impairmentlosses 2. AG? 2.551Pensions — retirement benefit " .
obligations (note 21) 210 152 ;
Other social security cantributions 1,067 gog ae to ee ane 12 for uF split betweenIntangible assets and
Other employee costs 1,510 1,332 roperty, plant and equipmen
Total employee costs for the year 18,822 16,830

7 ‘Financial income
Change in employee costs included
in assets under construction (559) (485) DKK million 2010 2009
Change in employee costs included
in inventories 76 (21) Interest income 235 313

Total employee costs expensed eee hare te uae 86 a2
in the Income statement 18,339 16,324 derivatives (net) 61 z
Includedin the Income statement: Total financial income 382 375
Cost of goods sold 4,006 3,952
Sales anddistribution costs 7,240 6,063
Research and developmentcosts 3,697 3,218
Administrative expenses 2,059 1,811 8 Financial expenses
Licence fees and other operating
income, net 1,337 1,280 DKKmillion 2010 2009

Total included in the Income statement 18,339 16,324 Interest expenses! 500 384
Foreign exchangeloss (net) = =
Foreign exchange loss on

Average numberoffull-time employees 29,423 27,985 eeinet. 7 95
Year-end numberoffull-time employees 30,014 28,809 Loss on currency options(net) R2 56

Capital loss on investments etc 23 16

DKKmillion 2010 ~—-2009 reeebesei - ne
‘ . derivatives transferred from Other

Remuneration to Executive comprehensive income (net) 1,406 662Management:
Salary 32 30 Total financial expenses 2,057 1,265Pension & &

Otherbenefits 1 1 1, Interest expenses include interest on tax cases ongoing or settled curing the year,
Total Al 38

Fee to Board of Directors 7 7

 
 

Share-based payments are allocated in the joint pool with other members of
the Senior Management Board. Please refer to note 29 and ‘Remuneration
report’ in ‘Corporate governance, remuneration and leadership, pp 44-47,
for further information on remuneration to the Board of Directors and
Executive Management.

68 Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 70



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 71

9 Taxes

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DKK million 2010

Current tax on profit for the year 3,477
Deferred tax on profit for the year (note 20) 495

Tax on profit for the year 3,972
Adjustments related to previous years — current tax 504
Adjustments related to previous years — deferred tax (593)

Income taxes in the Income statement 3,883

Computation of effective tax tate:
Statutory corporate incometax rate in Denmark 25.0%
Deviation in foreign subsidiaries’ tax rates compared with the Danish tax rate (net) (2.5%)
Non-taxable incomeless non-tax-deductible expenses (net) (1.2%)
Other (0.1%)

Effective tax rate 21.2%

Tax on other comprehensive incomeforthe year, (incomevexpense (note 20) (346) 

Tax on other comprehensive income for the year relates to tax on deferred (gains}losses on cash flow hedges and internal profit (note 20).

Income taxes paid

 

 

 

 

 

  
Income taxes paid in Denmark 1,826
Income taxes paid outside Denmark 1,610

Total income taxes paid 3,436

10 Earnings per share and dividend
DKK million 2010

Net profit for the year 14,403

Average numberof shares outstanding in 1,000 shares 580,438
Dilutive effect of outstanding share bonus pool and options ‘in the money"! in 1,000 shares 5,039

Average number of shares outstanding, induding dilutive effect of options ‘in the money" in 1,000 shares 585,477

Basic earnings per share! DKK 24.81
Diluted earnings per share! DKK 24.60 

1. For further information on outstanding share bonus pool and options, refer to notes 29 and 30,

Dividend
At the end of 2011, proposed dividends (not yet declared) of DKK 7,742 million (DKK 14.00 per share) are included in Retained earnings.
The declared dividend included in Retained earnings was DKK 5,700 million (DKK 10,00 per share) in 2010 and DKK 4,400 million (DKK 7.50 pershare)
in 2009. No dividend is declared on treasury shares.

2009

2,382
840

3,222
(54)
52

3,220

25.0%
(2.2%)
0.2%
0.0%

23.0%

25

792
1,206

1,998

2009

10,768

599,197
5,126

604,323

17.97
17.82
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11 Intangible assets
 

 

 

 

 
 

DKK million 2010

Cost at the beginning of the year 1,794
Additions during the year 487
Disposals during the year (46)
Effect of exchange rate adjustment Az

Cost at the end of the year 2,277

Amortisation and impairment losses at the beginning of the year 757
Amortisation for the year 80
Impairment losses for the year -
Amortisation and impairmentlosses reversed on disposals during the year (1)
Effect of exchange rate adjustment 23

Amortisation and impairmentlosses at the end of the year 819

Carrying amountat the end ofthe year 1,458 

Intangible assets primarily relate to patents and licences DKK 696 million (DKK 795 million in 2010), internally developed software DKK 518 million
(DKK 412 million in 2016) and other intangible assets DKK 275 million (BKK 251 million in 2010). Historically Novo Nordisk's growth has been organic without
material acquisition of rights. Intangible assets not yet available for use amounts to DKK 980 million (DKK 978 million in 2010).

Impairment tests in 2011 and 2010 of assets not yet available for use were based upon Management's projections and anticipated net present value of
future cash flows from cash-generating units. Management has used a pre-tax discount rate (WACC) of 8% based on therisk inherent in the related activity's
current business model and industry comparisons. Terminal values used are based on the expectedlife of products, forecastedlife cycle and cash flow over
that period, and the usefullife of the underlying assets. In 2011, an impairment loss of DKK 125 million (DKK 0 in 2010)related to patents has been recognised
due to discontinuation of development projects.

Amortisation and impairment losses for the year are presented in the Income statement as follows:

 

 

DKK million 2010

Cost of gaeds sald 42
Sales and distribution costs 13
Research and developmentcosts 19
Licence fees and other operating income, net 6

Total amortisation and impairment losses for the year 80
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12 Property, plant and equipment

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Land and Plant and Other Payments on
buildings machinery equipment account and

assets in
course of

DKK million construction

2011
Cost at the beginning of the year 13,598 17,243 2,861 4,516
Additions during the year 312 262 293 2,206
Disposals during the year (228) (522) (167) -
Transfer fromAte) other items 982 937 85 (2,004)
Effect of exchangerate adjustment (64) (74) 8 oF

Cost at the end of the year 14,600 17,845 3,080 4,815

Depreciation and impairmentlosses at the beginning of the year 5,048 10,806 1,857 -
Depreciation for the year 623 1,471 289 -
Impairment losses for the year 29 93 - -
Depreciation and impairment losses reversed on disposals during the year (165) (462) (157) -
Effect of exchange rate adjustment (10) (20) 7 -

Depreciation and impairmentlosses at the end of the year 5,525 11,888 1,996 -

Carrying amountat the end of the year 9,075 5,957 1,084 4,815

2010
Cost at the beginning of the year 12,855 16,709 2,740 2,507 35,211
Additions during the year 142 394 146 2,694 3,376
Disposals during the year (35) (830) (156) - (1,021)
Transfer fromA(te) otheritems 372 727 76 (1,175) -
Effect of exchange rate adjustment 264 243 55 30 652

Cost at the end of the year 13,598 17,243 2,861 4,516 38,218

Depreciation and impairmentlasses at the beginning of the year 4,387 9.913 1,685 = 15,985
Depreciation for the year 581 1,453 285 - 2,319
Impairmentlosses for the year 37 30 1 - 68
Depreciation and impairment losses reversed on disposals during the year (29) (708) (145) - (882)
Effect of exchange rate adjustment 72 118 31 - 22)

Depreciation and impairmentlosses at the end of the year 5,048 10,806 1,857 - W711

Carrying amountat the end of the year 8,550 6,437 1,004 4,516 20,507 

Depreciation and impairment losses for the year are presented in the Income statement as follows:

DKK million 

Cost of goods sold
Sales and distribution costs
Research and development costs
Administrative expenses
Licence fees and other operating income, net 

Total depreciation and impairmentlosses for the year 
 

13 Investments in associated companies

Investments in associated companies relates to Harno Invest A/S (formerly Dako A/S) only. The carrying amount at 31 December 2011 amounts to DKK 39
million (OKK 43 million in 2010) based on the 2010 annual report of Harno Invest A/S. Public accounting information for 2011 is not yet available. There have
not been ary changes related to investments in associated companies during the year.

In 2010, Novo Nordisksald its 22,143,320 shares in ZymoGenetics, Inc. at a price of USD 9.75 per share. The sale resulted in non-recurring income of
DKK 1,092 million. The income from the transaction is exempt from tax charges under applicable Danish tax laws. Also during 2010, Novo Nordisk transferred
Innate Pharma SA to Otherfinancial assets as Novo Nordisk no longer holds any significant influence in the company.
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14 Financial assets andliabilities

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Available- Financial Loans Cash
for-sale assets and and cash

financial measured at receivables equivalentsassets at fair value
Tair value through the

Income
BKK million statement

2011
Other financial assets 191 43
Trade receivables (note 16) 9,349
Otherreceivables (note 17) 2,376
— less prepayments (note 17) (935)
Marketable securities (bonds)! 4,094
Derivative financial instruments (note 28) 48
Cash at bank and in hand 13,408

Total financial assets at the end of the year 4,285 48 10,833 13,408

Financial Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities liabilities

measured at measured at measured at
fair value amortised fair value

through the cost through Other
Income comprehensive

BKK million statement incame

Loans (note 19) 502
Current debt (note 19) 351
Trade payables 3,291
Other liabilities (note 23} 8,534
— less taxes and duties payable (note 23) (537)
Derivative financial instruments (note 28) 184 1,308

Total financial liabilities at the end of the year 184 12,141 1,308

Available- Financial Loans Cash Total
for-sale assets and and cash

financial measured at receivables equivalents
assets at fair value
fair value through theIncome

DKK million statement

2010
Otherfinancial assets 216 38 254
Trade receivables (note 16) 8,500 8,500
Otherreceivables (note 17) 2,403 2,403
— less prepayments (note 17) (617) (617)
Marketable securities (bonds) 3,926 3,926
Derivative financial instruments (note 28) 108 108
Cash at bank and in hand 12,017 12,017

Total financial assets at the end of the year 4,142 108 10,324 12,017 26,591

Financial Financial Financial Total
liabilities liabilities liabilities

Measured at measured at measured at
fair value amoartised fair value

through the cost through Other
Income comprehensive

BKK million statement incame

Loans (note 19) 504 504
Current debt (note 19) 562 562
Trade payables 2,506 2,906
Other liabilities (note 23) 7,954 7,954
—less taxes and duties payable (note 23) 318) (318)
Derivative financial instruments (note 28) 446 712 1,158

Total financial liabilities at the end of the year 446 11,608 712 12,766 

1, Danish AAA-rated mortgage bends issued by Danish credit institutions governed by the Danish Financial Supervisory Authority of DKK 4,083 million (DKK 3,857 million in 2010),
refer to note 27. Redempticn yield on the bond portfolio is 1.18%.In additian Novo Nordisk owns nominal EUR 1.5 million (EUR 8 million in 2010) corresponding to DKK 11 million
(DKK 69 million in 2010) of Greek zero-couponstate bondsrelated to the settlement in 2010 of overdue hospital accounts receivable,

For a description of the credit quality of financial assets such as Trade receivables, Cash at bank and in hand, Marketable securities, and Current debt and
Derivative financial instruments, refer to notes 27 and 28,
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14 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Maturity analysis
Equity Maturity Maturity Maturity

investments <1 year > Tyear > 5 years
DKK million <5 years

2011
Otherfinancial assets 191 43
Trade receivables (note 16) 9,349
Other receivables (note 17) 2,376
—less prepayments {note 17) (935)
Marketable securities (ponds) 2,311 1,783
Derivative financial instruments (note 28} 48
Cash at bank and in hand 13,408

Total assets at the end of the year by maturity 191 26,557 1,783 43

Loans (note 19) 196 306
Current debt (note 19) 351
Trade payables 3,291
Otherliabilities (note 23) 8,534
- less taxes and duties payable (note 23) (537)
Derivative financial instruments (note 28) 1,400 92

Total liabilities at the end of the year by maturity 13,039 288 306

2016
Otherfinancial assets 216 38 254
Trade receivables (nete 16) 8,500 8,500
Other receivables (note 17) 2,403 2,403
- less prepayments (note 17) (617) (617)
Marketable securities (bonds) 3,174 752 3,926
Derivative financial instruments (note 28) 108 106
Cash at bank and in hand 12.017 12,017

Total assets at the end of the year by maturity 216 25,585 752 38 26,591

Loans (note 19) 145 359 504
Current debt (note 19) 562 562
Trade payables 2,906 2,906
Otherliabilities (note 23) 7,954 7,954
— less taxes and duties payable (note 23) (318) (318)
Derivative financial instruments (note 28) 1,020 138 1,158

Total liabilities at the end of the year by maturity 12,124 283 359 12,766 

Fair value measurement hierarchy
Financial assets and liabilities measured in the Balance sheetat fair value can be categorised using the fair value measurement hierarchy below. There have
not been any transfers between the categories ‘Active market data’ and ‘Directly or indirectly observable market data‘ during 2011 or 2010.

  
 

Active Directly or Not based on
market indirectly observabledata observable market

market data
DKK million data

2011
Total financial assets 4,153 48 132

Total financial liabilities - 1,492 -

2010
Total financial assets 3,983 108 159 4,250

Total financial liabilities - 1,158 - 1,158 
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15 Inventories 17 Other receivables and prepayments
  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DKKmillion 2010 DKK millian 2010

Raw materials 1,378 Prepayments! 617
Work in progress 6,344 Interest receivable 97
Finished goods 3,268 Amounts owed by related parties 111

Deposit 455
Total inventories (gross) 10,990 VATreceivable 474i 2
Inventory write-downs at year-end 1,301 Bites heeniekies ete
Total inventories (net) 9.689 Total other current assets 2,403

1. Comprises prepayments to ongoing research and development activities and
Indirect production costs included in work payments made concerning subsequent financial years etc.

in progress andfinished goods(net) 5,090 2.tecomprise miscellaneous duties and work in progress far third
The movementsin the inventory write-downs
can be specified as follows:
Inventory write-downs at the beginning of the year 724
Inventory writedowns during the year 832
Utilisation of inventory write-downs (139)
Reversal of inventory writedowns (116)

Inventory write-downsat the end of the year 1,301

16 Trade receivables

DKK million 2010

Trade receivables (gross) 9,127
Allowancesat the end of the year 627

Trade receivables (net) 8,500

Trade receivables (net) are equal to an average
credit period of 51 days (51 days in 2010).

Trade receivables can be specified as follows:
Non-impaired trade receivables
— Not yet due 7,425
— Overdue by between 1 and 179 days 727
— Overdue by between 180 and 359 days 128
- Overdue by more than 360 days 220

Total exposure to credit risk 8,500
Allowancesfor trade receivables! 627

Trade receivables (gross) 9,127

Allowances for doubtful receivables can be
specified as follows:
Carrying amountat the beginning of the year 600
Confirmed losses (14)
Reversal of allowances for possible losses (141)
Allowances for possible losses during the year 164
Effect of exchangerate adjustment 18

Carrying amountat the end of the year 627

 
 

1, Refer to segment note on p 67 for disclosure of Trade receivables and allowance for
trade receivables per region, For further description of credit risk in the Eurozone,
please refer to note 27 p 80,
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18 Share capital

 

 

 

Ashare B share
DKK million capital capital

Developmentin share capital:
2007 107 540
2008 - (13)
2009 - (14)
20106 = (20)

At the beginning ofthe year 107 493

2011 = (20)

At the end of the year 107 473 

 
At the end of 2011, the share capital amounted to DKK 107 million in A share capital (equal to 107 million A shares of DKK 1) and DKK 473 million
in B share capital (equal to 473 million B shares of DKK 1).

 

 

 

Treasury shares 2010
Market value As % of share As % of share Number of

DKK million capital before capital after B Sharescancellation cancellation of DKK1
{million}

Holding at the beginning of the year 17,742 47% 32
Cancellation of treasury shares (12,580) (3.3%) (20)

Holding of treasury shares, adjusted for cancellation 5,162 1.4% 1.4% 12
Purchase during the year 10,839 3.2% 20
Sale during the year (244) (0.4%) (4)
Value adjustment 374 -

Holding at the end of the year 16,131 4.2% 28

 
 

Purchase of treasury shares during the year relates to the DKK 12 billion share repurchase programme for 2011 of Novo Nordisk B shares. The purpose of
the programme was a reduction of the company’s share capital. Sale of treasury shares relates to exercised share options, long-term share-based incentive
programme, employee share savings programmes and employee shares. In addition to the purchased treasury shares during 2011 totalling DKK 10,839 million,
share transactions with a value of DKK 98 million in late December were due in early January 2012.

At the end of the year 4.7 million shares of the treasury B shareholding are regarded as hedges for the long-term share-basedincentive programme and share
options to employees.

19 Debt

BKK million 

Loans!
Current debt (bank overdrafts)
Derivative financial instruments 

Total debt 

The debtis denominated in the following
currencies:
DKK
EUR
USD
JPY
Other currencies 

Total dabt

20 Deferred incometax assets andliabilities

 

 
 

1. Terms to maturity between 2016 and 2022 and with a weighted average interest
rate of 0.97%,

 

DKK million 2010

At the beginning of the year (1,555)
Deferred tax on profit for the year (495)
Adjustmentrelating to previous years 593
Deferred tax on items recognised in
Other comprehensive income 346
Exchange rate adjustments 93

Total deferred tax assets/(liabilities}, net (1,018) 
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20 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities (continued)

 

 

 

 

 

 

Property,—_Intangible Indirect Internal Trade Tax-loss Other Offset
plant and assets production profit receivables carry- within

DKKmillion equipment costs forward countries

2011
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) at 1 January 2011 (1,279) 545 (1,272) 2,703 4s 113 (1,877) -
Income/(charge) to the Income statement 227 (316) (9) 136 70 (21) (104)
Income/(charge) to Other cormmprehensive income Al 149
Exchangerate adjustment (8) 15 0 0 (2) () 53

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)
at 31 December 2011 (1,060) 244 (1,281) 2,880 WW ef (1,779) =

Specified as follows:
Deferred tax asset at 31 December 2011 173 550 - 2,880 117 a7 863 (2,256)
Deferred taxliability at 31 December 2011 (1,233) (306) (1,281) - - - (2,642) 2,256

2010
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) at 1 January 2010 (1,267) 470 (1,262) 2,106 101 44 (1,747) = (1,555)
Income/(charge) to the Income statement (14) (15) (10) 426 (54) 61 (296) 98
IncomeAcharge) to Other comprehensive income 171 135 346
Exchangerate adjustment 2 90 0 0 2 8 (9) 93

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)
at 31 December 2010 (1,279) 545 (1,272) 2,703 4s 113 (1,877) - (1,018)

Specified as follows:
Deferred tax asset at 31 December 2010 189 549 0 2,703 49 113 478 (2,234) 1,847
Deferred tax liability at 31 December 2010 (1,468) (4) (1,272) 0 0 0 (2,355) 2,234 (2,865) 

Tax-loss carry-forward
Further to the above,the tax value of tax-loss carry-forward of DKK 221 million (DKK 176 million in 2010) has not been recognised in the Balance sheet
due ta the likelihood that the tax losses will not be realised in the future. Of the unrecognised tax-loss carry-farward, DKK 2 million expires within one year,
DKK 3 million between twoto five years and DKK 216 million after more than five years.

21 Retirement benefit obligations

Most employees in the Group are covered by post-employmentretirement plans, primarily in the form of defined contribution plans but in a few cases in the
form of defined benefit plans. Group companies sponsorthese plans eitherdirectly or by contributing to independently administered funds. The nature of
such plans varies according to the legal regulations,fiscal requirements and economic conditions of the countries in which the employees are employed, and
the benefits are generally based on the employees’ remuneration and years of service. The obligations relate both to existing retirees’ pensions and to pension
entitlements of future retirees.

The Group's defined benefit plans are primarily located in Japan, Germany, the US and Switzerland. Post-employment benefit plans are usually funded by
payments from Group companies and by employees to funds independent of the Group. Where a plan is unfunded, a liability for the retirement obligation is
recognised in the Balance sheet. In accordance with the Accounting policies, the costs recognised for post-employment benefits are included in Cost of
goods sold, Sales and distribution costs, Research and development costs, and Administrative expenses.

Other post-employment benefits consist mostly of post-retirement healthcare plans, principally in the US. The following shows a five-year summary reflecting
the funding of retirement obligations and the impact ofhistorical deviations between expected and actual return on plan assets and actuarial
adjustments on plan liabilities,

  

  

   
DKKmillion 2010 2009 2008 2007

Retirement benefit obligations 1,452 1,063 1,103 885
Fair value of plan assets (766) (620) (649) (566)

Net unfundedretirement benefit obligations 686 443 454 319
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses)' (117) 13 (35) 43

Netretirement benefit obligations recognised in the Balance sheet 569 456 419 362  

1, Actuarial gainslosses) on plan assets and planliabilities for the year are predominantly related to actuarial adjustments while experience adjustments are immaterial,
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21 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
DKK million 

Pension Medical
plans benefits 

Retirement benefit

 

obligations
At the beginning ofthe year 1,138 314
Current service costs 115 40
Interest costs 36 16
Actuarial (gains}/losses (65) 36
Past service costs 0 (27)
Benefits paid 71) (4)
Curtailments! (97) (144)
Exchange rate adjustment 36 7
Other 33 Q

At the end of the year 1,125 238

 
 

1. Curtailmentrelates to changes in defined benefit plans in Jagan and US in 2011.
2, Present value of partly funded retirement benefit obligations amounts ta DKK 1,071

million (DKK 1,070 million in 2010), Present value of unfunded retirement benefit
obligations amounts ta DKK 292 million (DKK 382 million in 2010).

DKK million 

Fair value of plan assets
At the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gains/(losses)
Employer contributions
Benefits paid to employees
Exchangerate adjustment
Other 

At the end of the year 

DKK million 

Net retirement benefit obligations
recognised in the Balance sheet
Net unfundedretirement benefit cbligations
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses)
on pension plans(net)
Unrecognised actuarial gains‘(losses)
on post-employment medical benefits (net)
Unrecognised past service costs 

At the end of the year

 

 

 

 

DKKmillion 2010 2009

Costs recognised in the
Income statement for the yearCurrent service costs 137 118
Interest costs 50 45
Expected return on plan assets! (26) (20)
Actuarial (gains)Mosses (11) 30
Curtailment - (20)
Past service costs - {1}
Other a -

Total charge to Income statement 157 152

Costs recognised in Other
comprehensive income forthe year
Effect of exchange rate adjustment 53 -

Total charge to the Statement of
comprehensive income 210 152

The costs are recognised in the
Income statement as employee costs
by function and consist of:

Defined benefit pension plans 137 107
Post-employment medical benefits 73 45

 
 

1. Actual return on plan assets was a gain of DKK 8 million in 2011 (a gain of
DKK 13 million in 2010).

Novo Nordisk expects to contribute approximately DKK 90 million to its
defined benefit plans in 2012 (actual DKK 128 million in 2011).

 
 

Amountrecognised in the Balance sheetis reported as Non-current
liabilities.

DKK million 

Net retirement benefit obligations
At the beginning of the year
Recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income
Employer contributions
Benefit paid to employees (net) 

At the end of the year

 
 

2010

DKK
million %

Weighted average asset
allocation of funded
ratirament obligations
Coverage insurance! 522 68%
Equities 83 11%
Bonds 88 12%
Cash at bank 63 8%
Property 10 1%

Total 766 100%

 
. Nove Nordisk’s defined benefit payments in Germany and Switzerland are

reimbursed by the international insurer Allianz regardless of the value of the plan
assets. The only risk related to the pension in these countries is therefore counter-
party risk against Allianz.

 2010

The assumptions used for valuation of
defined benefit plans and post-employment
medical benefits are as follows
Discount rate 4%
Projected return on plan assets 3%
Projected future remuneration increases 2%
Medical cost trend rate 5%
Inflation rate 2%

 
 

Actuarial valuations are performed annually for all major defined benefit
plans. The overall expected rate of return is determined based on low-risk
investments in bondsin the relevartt currencies.

The effect of a 1 percentage point increase or decrease in the medical cast
trend rate would have an effect of below DKK 10 million (OKK 22 million in
2010) on the service costs and the defined benefit obligation for the Group
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22 Provisions

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

  
 

 

 
 
 

    
  

  

 

 

 

Provisions Provisions Prowision Other 2010
for sales for product for legal provisions? Total

DKK million rebates returns! disputes?

At the beginning of the year 4,364 534 1,371 398 4,398
Additional provisions, including increases to existing provisions 9,314 241 795 161 8,121
Amount used during the year (7,787) (247) (151) (43) (5,914)
Adjustments, including unused amounts reversed during the year (328) 22 (445) 1) (221)
Effect of exchange rate adjustment 103 5 (16) 4 283

At the end ofthe year 5,666 555 1,554 489 6,667

Non-current as 333 1,554 437 2,023
Current 5,666 222 - 52 4,644

Total provisions 5,666 555 1,554 489 6,667

1. Novo Nordisk issues credit notes for expired goods as a part of normal business. Consequently, a provision for future returnsis made based on historical statistical product
returns, which represents Management's best estimate.

2, Provisions for legal disputes represent Management's best estimate. Please refer to note 31 for further information on commitments and contingencies,
3. Other provisions consist of various types of provisions including employee benefits such as jubilee benefits etc.

23 Other liabilities

BKK million 2010

Employee costs payable 3,042
Accruals 3,059
Taxes and duties payable 318
R&Dclinical trials 354
Other payables! 1,181

Total other liabilities 7,954

1. Other payables primarily consist of accruals related to royalty payments, deferred income and interest accruals etc.

24 Adjustments for non-cash items
DKKmillion 2010 2009

Reversals of non-cash income statement items
Income taxes (note 9} 3,883 3,220
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses (note 6) 2,467 2,551
Interest income and interest expenses, net (notes 7, 8) 265 71
Share-based payment costs (nate 29) 463 259
Share of (profitioss in associated companies (1,070) 55

Changes in. non-cash balance sheet items
Increase/(decrease) in provisions and retirement benefit obligations (notes 21, 22) 2,382. 649

Other adjustments
(Gains)losses from sale of property, plant and equipment 71 (3)
Unrealised (gainVloss from marketable securities (43) 21
Other, including difference between average and year-end exchange rate,
unrealised exchange (gain\oss etc 31 (122)

Total adjustments for non-cash items 8,449 6,701

25 Changein working capital 26 Cash and cash equivalents
DKKmillion 2010 2009 DKK million 2010 2009

Trade receivables (1,437) (482) Cash at bank and in hand 12,017 11,296
Other receivables and prepayments (441) (258) Bank overdrafts {note 19} (57) (262)
Inventories 327 (405) :
Trade payables 664 (39) Cash and cash equivalents
Other liabilities 960 at the end of the year 11,960 11,034
Exchange rate adjustrnants (55)   Total change in working capital 297 (279) 
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27 Financial risk

Novo Nordisk has centralised the management of the Group's financial
risks. The overall objectives and policies for the company’s financialrisk
managementare outlined in an internal Treasury Policy, which is approved
by the Board of Directors. The Treasury Policy consists of the Foreign
ExchangePolicy, the InvestmentPolicy, the Financing Policy and the Policy
regarding Credit Risk on Financial Counterparts, and includes a description
of permitted financial instruments andrisk limits.

Novo Nordisk only hedges commercial exposures and consequently does
not enterinto derivative transactions for trading or speculative purposes.
Novo Nordisk uses a fully integrated Treasury Management System to
manageall financial positions. All positions are marked-to-market based on
real-time quotes andrisk is assessed using generally accepted standards.

Foreign exchangerisk
Foreign exchangerisk is the principal financial risk for Novo Nordisk and
as such has a significant impact on the Income statement and Other com-
prehensive income, the Balance sheet and the Statement of cash flows.

The majority of Novo Nordisk’s sales are in EUR, USD, JPY, CNY and GBP.
Consequently, Novo Nordisk’s foreign exchangerisk is most significant in
USD, JP¥, CNY and GBP. while the EUR exchangeraterisk is regarded as low
due to the Danish fixed-rate policy towards EUR.

The overall objective of foreign exchangerisk managementis to limit the
short-term negative impact on earnings and cash flow from exchange rate
fluctuations, thereby increasing the predictability of the financial results.

Novo Nordisk hedgesexisting assets andliabilities in key currencies as
well as future expected cash flows up to a maximum of 24 months forward,
During 2011, the hedging horizon has varied between 10 and 15 months
for USD, JPY, CNY and GBP. Currency hedgingis based upon expectations
of future exchange rates and mainly uses foreign exchange forwards and
foreign exchange options matching the due dates of the hedged items.
Expected cash flows are continually assessed using historical inflows,
budgets and monthly sales forecasts. Hedge effectiveness is assessed on a
regular basis.

 

Key currencies;

Exchange rate
DKK per 100 USD JPY CNY GBP

2011
Average 536 6.73 83 859
End of year 575 7.42 91 890
Year-end change 2.5% 7.7% 7.1% 2.7%

2010
Average 562 6.42 83 869
End of year 561 6.89 85 867
Year-end change 8.1% 22.6% 11.8% 5.3% 

The financial contracts existing at the end of the year cover the expected
future cash flow for the following number of months:

DKK million 2010

USD 15 months
JPY 14 months
cNy! 12 months
GBP 10 months 
1. USD used as proxy when hedging Nove Nordisk’s CNY currency exposure,

Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis:
A 5% increase/decrease in the following currencies will impact Novo
Nordisk’s operating profit as outlined in the table below:

 DKKmillion 2011

USD 620
JPY 155
CNY 120
GBP 85

A 5% increase/decrease in all other currencies versus EUR and DKK would
affect the hedging instruments’ impact on Other comprehensive Income
and Income statementas outlined in the table below:

DKK million

2011
Other comprehensive income
Income statement

Total
 

2010
Other comprehensive income (862) 893
Income statement 93 (38) 

Total (769) 855 

The higher foreign exchange sensitivities in 2011, compared with 2010, are
primarily a result of higher expected future cash flow, which outweighs the
lower covers for USD and JPY as described above.

The financial instruments included in the foreign exchangesensitivity
analysis are the Group's Cash, Trade receivables and Trade payables, Current
and non-current loans, Current and non-currentfinancial investments,
Foreign exchange forwards and Foreign exchange options hedging trans-
action exposure, Interest rate swaps and Cross-currency swaps.

Not included are anticipated currency transactions, Investments and Non-
current assets.

Nove Nordisk only hedges invested equity in major foreign affiliates ta a
very limited extent. Equity hedging takes place using long-term cross-
currency swaps, At the end of 2011, hedged equity represented 13% of
the Group's JPY equity. At the end of 2010, 15% of the Group's JPY equity
was hedged.

Interest rate risk
In general, DKK and EURinterest rates declined in 2011. The Danish two-
year interest rate was 1.08% at the end of 2011, down from 1.85% at the
end of 2010. The three-month Ciborinterest rate was 1.00% at the end of
2011, down from 1.21% at the end of 2010.

Changesin interest rates affect Novo Nordisk’s financial instruments. At
the end of 2011, an increase in the interest rate level of 1 percentage point
would,all else being equal, result in. a decrease in the fair value of Novo
Nordisk’s financial instruments of DKK 17 million (a decreasein the fair
value of DKK 8 million in 2010).

The financial instruments included in the sensitivity analysis consist of
Marketable securities, Deposits, Current and non-currentloans, Interest rate
Swaps and Cross-currency swaps. Not included are Foreign exchange for-
wards and Foreign exchange options due to the limited effect that a parallel
shift in interest rates in all currencies has on these instruments.
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27 Financial risk (continued)

Liquidity risk
Novo Nordisk ensures availability of required liquidity through a com-
bination of cash management, highly liquid investment portfolios and
uncommitted as well as committed facilities. Nove Nordisk uses cash pools
fer optimisation and centralisation of cash management. For non-cash
poolaffiliates, surplus cash above the balance required for working capital
managementis deposited centrally.

Cradit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties to transactions
may default on their obligations causing financial losses far the Group.Novo Nordisk considers its maximum credit risk on financial assets to be
DKK 17,550 million (2010: DKK 16,051 million) and DKK 11,024 million
(2010: DKK 10,549 million} on Trade receivables, Other receivables less
prepayments and Otherfinancial assets (refer ta note 14 for details of the
Group's total financial assets).

To manage credit risk on financial counterparties, Novo Nordisk only enters
into derivative financial contracts and money market deposits with financial
counterparties possessing a satisfactory long-term credit rating from both
Standard and Poor’s and Moody's. Furthermore, maximum credit lines de-
fined for each counterparty diversify the overall counterparty risk. The credit
risk on bondsis limited as investments are madein highly liquid bonds
with solid credit ratings. The table to the right shows Novo Nordisk’s credit
exposure on cash, fixed income marketable securities and financial
derivatives.

28 Derivative financial instruments

Credit exposure on Cash at bank or in hand, Marketable securities and
Derivative financial instruments (market value)

 

 

 

 

Cash at Marketable Derivative
, bank or securities financialDKK million in hand instruments

2011
AAA-range 4,083
AA-range 6,223 16
A-range 7,156 32
Not rated or
below A-range 29 11

Total 13,408 4,094 48

2010
AAA-range 3,857 3,857
AA-range 4,739 44 4,783
A-range 7,233 64 7,297
Not rated or
below A-range 45 69 114

Total 12,017 3,926 108 16,051 

Credit risk on Trade receivables and Other receivables and prepayments is
less material as Novo Nordisk has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure being spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers. However, due to the troubled economic climate in the Eurozone,
the group has increased its focus on the development in the outstanding
trade receivables from this region (please refer to note 2 forsplit on allaw-
ance for trade receivables by geographical segments).

Capital structure
Novo Nordisk’s capital structure is characterised by a substantial equity
ratio. Thisis in line with the general capital structure of the pharmaceutical
industry and reflects the inherent long-term investment horizonsin an
industry with typically more than 10 years’ developmenttime for pharma-
ceutical products. Novo Nordisk’s equity ratio, calculated as equity to total
liabilities, was 57.9% at the end of the year (60.2% at the end of 2010).

Novo Nordisk uses a number of derivatives ta hedge currency exposure. Novo Nordisk’s currency-hedging activities are categorised into hedgingof forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges), hedging of assets and liabilities (fair value hedges), and hedging of net investments. None of the derivatives are held for
trading. However, notall derivatives are designated for hedge accounting.

Total hedging activities
The table below summarises the fair values ofall the hedging activities of Nova Nordisk,

DKK million 

Currency-related instruments
Forward contracts, cash flow hedges
Currency options, cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps, cash flow hedges
Forward contracts, fair value hedges
Cross-curtency swaps, net investment hedges 

Total currency-related instruments 

interest-related instruments
Interest rate swaps, cash flaw hedges 

Totalinterest-related instruments 

Total derivatives includedin:
Derivative financial instruments (current assets)
Derivative financial instruments (currentliabilities)
Equity, Other reserves 

Total hedging activities 
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2010

Contract Positive Negativeamount fair value fair value
at yearend at yearend at year-end

16,538 658
5,529 108

818 20
2,318 411

166 40

25,769 108 1,129

561 29

561 = 29

108
1,158

26,330 108 1,158 
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28 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Hedging of forecast transactions (cash flow hedge)
The table below shows thefair value of cash flow-hedging activities for 2011 and 2010 specified by hedging instrument and the major currencies. Thefair
value of the financial instruments qualifying for hedge accounting is recognised directly in Other comprehensive income until the hedged items affect
the Income statement. At year-end, a loss of DKK 1,184 million is deferred via Other comprehensive income (a net loss of DKK 672 million in 2010). The fair
values of the financial instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting are recognised directly in the Income statement.

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2010

Contract Positive Negative
amount fair value fair value

DKK million at yearend at year-end at year-end

Hedging of forecast transactions qualifying
for hedge accounting

UusD 11,264 292
JPY 3,605 355
GBP 1,063
Other 606 1

Total forward contracts (forecasted cash flow) 16,538 - 658

USD 4,103
JPY

Total currency options’ (forecasted cash flow) 4,103 - -

EUR/USD. 504 4

Total cross-currency swaps(variable payments
on debtinstruments) 504 - 4

EUR/EUR 251 10

Total interest rate swaps (variable payments
on debtinstruments) 251 = 10

Total cash flow hedgesfor which hedge
accountingis applied 21,396 - 672

2010

Contract Positive Negative
amount fair value tair value

DKKmillion at year-end at year-end at yearend  

Otherforecast transaction hedges for which
hedge accounting is not applied

  

  

  

  

  

USD 1,826 108
JPY2

Total currency options 1,826 108 -

EUR/USD3 3
JPY/DKK 314 13

Total cross-currency swaps 314 - 16

DKK/DKK 310 11
EUR/EUR3 8

Total interest rate swaps 310 - 19

Total cash flow hedgesfor which hedge
accounting is not applied 2,450 108 35

Total contracts of forecast transactions 23,846 108 707  

 
1. A positive value of DKK 68 million qualifying for hedge accounting has been realised during 2011 andis recognised directly under Other comprehensive income until the hedged

items affectthe Income statement. Contract amount at yearendrelates to options not yetrealised. As the time value of options does notqualify for hedge accounting that part is
presented in the table below. /

2. The positive value represents the time value of the options far which hedge accounting cannot be applied.
3. The contract valueis disclosed in the table above. The negative fair value is related to the period before hedge accounting was applied.

The maturity of the swaps existing at the end of 2011 is December 2012 (December 2011 and December 2012 at the end of 2010).
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28 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Hedging ofassets andliabilities (fair value hedge)
The table below shows thefair value of fair value-hedging activities for 2011 and 2010 specified by hedging instrument and the major currencies.
All changesin fair values are recognised in the Income statement, amountingto a loss of DKK 176 million in 2011 (a net loss of DKK 411 million in 2010).
As the hedges are highly effective, the net gain or loss on the hedgeditemsIs similar to the net loss or gain on the hedging instruments.

DKK million 

USD.
JPY
GBP
Other 

Total forward contracts 

Total hedging of assets and liabilities 

 
2010

Contract Positive Negativeamount fair value fair value
at yearend at yearend at year-end 

 

 

890 225
647 166
262 7
519 13

2,318 = Ail

2,318 - ait 

The financial contracts existing at the end of the year hedge the currency exposure on assets and liabilities in the Group's major currencies other than DKK
and EUR,ie primarily assets andliabilities in USD, JPY and GBP, Other comprises AUD at DKK 399 million (DKK 161 million in 2010), CAD at DKK 170 million
(DKK 0 in 2010) and PLN at DKK 380 million (DKK 358 millian in 2010).

Hedging of net investments in foreign subsidiaries (net investment hedge)
The table below shows the fair value of hedging activities relating to net investments in foreign subsidiaries for 2011 and 2010 specified by hedging
instrument and the major currencies. All changesin fair values relating to currency are recognised directly in Other comprehensive income.

DKK million 

Total cross-currency swap JPY/DKK 

Total hedging of net investments in foreign subsidiaries 
 

2010

Contract Positive Negative
amount fair value fair value

at yearend at yearend at year-end 

166 40 

166 = 40 

The maturity of the swap existing at the end of 2011 is Novernber 2012 (November 2012 at the end of 2010), The financial contract existing at the end
of the year hedge 13% (15% in 2010)of the net investments in JPY. No other net investments have been hedged.

Presentationin the Income statement and Other comprehensive income
The fair value adjustments are recognised as follows:

DKK million 

Fair value through the Income statement
Cash flow hedges for which hedge accountingis not applied
Fair value hedges 

Total fair value adjustments through the Income statement 

Fair value through Other comprehensive income
Cash flow hedges for which hedge accountingis applied
Netinvestment hedges(included in exchange rate adjustment) 

Totalfair value adjustments through
Other comprehensive income 

Totalfair value adjustments 
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2010

Contract Positive Negativeamount fair value fair value
at yearend at yearend at year-end 

108 35
411 

= 108 446 

672
40 

 

= 108 1,158 
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29 Share-based payment schemes
 

 

DKK million 2010 2009

Employee shares 241 49
Long-term share-based incentive
programme (Senior Management Board) 64 54
Long-term share-based incentive
programme and share options
(Management group below
Senior Management Board)! 158 156

Share-based payment expensed in the
Income statement 463 259 

1. Includes long-term share-based incentive programme for 2007-2011 and share
option programmefor 2006.

Employee shares
In 2010, a general employee share programme was implemented in
Denmark with exercise in 2010. Outside Denmark the programme was
structured as share options with the sameinitial benefit per employeeasin
Denmark, The cost of the programmeoutside Denmarkis amortised over
the period 2010-2013.

Long-term share-based incentive programme
For a description of the programme, please refer to the ‘Remuneration
report’in the section ‘Corporate governance, remuneration and leadership’,
pp 44-47,

On 1 February 2012, The Board of Directors approved the establishment
of a joint pool, for members of the Senior Management Beard,for the
financial year 2011 byallocating a total of 89,712 Novo Nordisk B shares.
This allocation amounts on average to 6.5 monthsfixed base salary plus
pension contribution per participant, corresponding to. a value at launch of
the programme of DKK 57 million. This amount was expensed in 2011. The
share price used for the conversion was the average share price (DKK 634)
for Novo Nordisk 8 shares on NASDAQ OMX Copenhagenin the period
2-16 February 2011. Based on thesplit of participants when thejoint
pool was established, approximately 30% of the pool will be allocated to
members of Executive Management and 70% to other members of the
Senior Management Board.

The shares allocated to the joint pool for 2008 (166,302 shares),
corresponding to a value at launch of the programme of DKK 55 million
expensed in 2008, were released to the individual participants subsequent
to the approval of the Annual Report 2011 by the Board of Directors and
after the announcement on 2 February 2012 of the 2011 full year financial
results.

For the managementgroup below the Senior Management Beard, a
share-based incentive programmewith similar performance criteria was
introduced in 2007.

The sharesallocated to the joint pool for 2008 (508,944 shares), corre-
sponding to a value at launch of the programmeof DKK 181 million
amortised over the period 2008-2011, were released to the individual
participants subsequent to the approval of the Annual Report 2011 by the
Board of Directors and after the announcement on 2 February 2012 of the
2011 full year financial results. The number of shares to be transferred is
lower than the original number of sharesallocated to the share pool as
some participants hadleft the company before the release conditions of the
programme were met.

For 2009, this group consisted of about 675 employees. The allocation to
the joint pool was DKK 186 million, corresponding te 605,218 shares, The
cost of this allocation will be amortised over the period 2009-2012.

Fer 2010, this group consisted of about 700 employees. The allocation to
the joint pool was DKK 208 million, corresponding to 548,936 shares. The
cost of this allocation will be amortised over the period 2010-2013.

For 2011, this group consisted of about 740 employees. The allocation to
the joint pool was DKK 188 million, corresponding to 297,133 shares. The
cost of this allocation will be amortised aver the periad 2011-2014.

The total number of shares in the joint pocls relating to the years 2009,
2010 and 2011 is as follows:

Year allocated to pool Vesting

Senior Management Board
2009 2013
2010 2014
2011 2015

Management group below
Senior Management Board
2009 2013
2010 2014
2011 2015
Cancelled

Total

 
For the service entities NNIT and NNE Pharmaplan, separate share-based
incentive programmes have been set up which are similar to the general
Novo Nordisk programme but operate with entity-specific targets. In 2011, a
general employee share programme was implemented in NNIT. In Denmark
approximately 965 employees have purchased 38,600 Nove Nordisk shares
at a price of DKK 310 per share equal to a cost of DKK 12 million. Outside
Denmark the programmewas structured as share options.

Share options
Novo Nordisk established share option schemes in 1998-2006 with the
purpose of motivating and retaining a qualified management group and
ensuring common goals for Management and the owners. Each option
gives the right to purchase one Novo Nordisk B share.All share options are
hedged by treasury shares. No options have been granted since 2006 as the
long-term incentive programme from 2007 onwards has been share-based.

The options are exercisable three years after the issue date and will expire
after eight years. The exercise price for options granted based on perform-
ancetargets for the financial years 2000-2006 was equal to the market
price of the Novo Nordisk B share at the time the plan was established, The
options can only be settled in shares.

Theinternal rules for trading in Nove Nordisk securities by board members,
executives and certain employees only permit trading in the 15-calendar-day
period following each quarterly announcement.

Assumptions
The fair value of the Novo Nordisk B share options has been calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The expected volatility is calculated as one-year historic volatility — average
of daily volatilities.

The assumptions used are shownin the table below:

 

 
2010 2009

Expectedlife of the option in years
(average) 4 6
Expected volatility 21% 26%
Expected dividend per share (in DKK) 10.00 7.50
Risk-free interest rate
{based on Danish government bonds) 2.00% 2.00%
Novo Nordisk B share price
at the end ofthe year(in DKK) 629 332 
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29 Share-based payment schemes (continued)

 

 

 

 

 

Average Calculated
exercise price fair value

; 2 ¥ Share per option Fair value per option
Outstanding share options in Nove Nordisk options DKK DKK million DKK

Outstanding at the end of 2009 5,599,447 135 1,056 189

Employee share options granted in 2010! 273,000 163 597
Exercised In 2010 — ordinary share option plans (2,363,122) 155 (446) 189
Exercised in 2010 — employee share options (2,170) 0 Q 189
Expired in 2010 (57,708) 166 (11) 189
Cancelled in 2010 (12,553) 135 (2) 189
Value adjustment? 950

Outstanding at the end of 2010 110 1,710 498

Exercised in 2011— ordinary share option plans 74 (311) 498
Exercised in 2011— employee share options a (252) 498
Cancelled in 2011 0 (63) 498
Value adjustment2 15

Outstanding at the end of 2011 153 1,099 504
 
  

1, Granted to all employees outside Denmark under the 2010 employee share option programme, with a benefit equal to the benefit obtained by the Danish-based employees
under the employee share programme,

2. The fair value has been calculated using the Black-Scholes model with the parameters existing at year-end of the respective year,

Management's share options

 

 

 

Atthe Exercised Additions
beginning during during

Share options in Novo Nordisk of the year the year the year?

Executive Management:
Lars Rebien Sdrensen 39,000 (39,000)
Jesper Brandgaard 18,500 (18,500)
Lise Kinga - -
Kare Schultz = =
Mads Krogsgaard Thomsen 18,500 (18,500)

Executive Managementin total 76,000 (76,000) -

Other members of the Senior ManagementBoard in total 125,350 (60,350) 36,325

Total 201,350 (136,350) 36,325 

3. Additions during the year cover the holdings of share options by the Senior Management Board members appointed in 2011.
4, The fair value has been calculated using the Black-Scholes model with the parameters existing at year-end of the respective year.
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29 Share-based payment schemes (continued)

 

 

 

Exercisable and outstanding aie na
share options in Novo Nordisk options options Cancelled

2003 Ordinary share option plan 2,185,000 (1,898,550) (82,666)
2004 Ordinary share option plan 1,618,832 (1,112,916) (118,000)
2005 Ordinary share option plan 1,640,468 (1,045,050) (155,618)
2006 Ordinary share option plan 2,229,084 (1,166,547) (187,053)

Exercisable at the end of 2011 7,673,384 (5,223,063) (543,337)

2008 Employee share options 694,500 (509,350) (185,150)
2010 Employee share options 273,000 (650) -

Outstanding at the end of 20115 8,640,884 (5,733,063) (728,487)

 
 

5. All share options will vest if there is a change of control of Novo Nordisk A/S.

 

 

Exercise
price
DKK Exercise period

98 6/2/07 — 5/2/12
134 31/1/08 — 30/1/13
153 31/1/09 - 30/1/14
175 31/1/10 - 30/1/15

0 W1/11
0 TAN2A3 

 

 

 

Average Exercised
‘ - ; ‘Ms Market price share

Average market price of Novo Nordisk B shares per trading period in 2011 DKK options

2 February — 16 February 634 367.710
27 April—11 May 640 68,550
5 August — 19 August 568 47,700
27 October — 10 November 586 647,100

Total exercised options 1,131,060 

30 Management's holdings of Novo Nordisk shares

Theinternalrules for trading in Novo Nordisk securities by board members, executives and certain employees only permit trading in the 15-calendar-day period
following each quarterly announcement.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
At the beginning Addition Sold/transterred Market value!

ofthe year duringtheyear during the year DKKmillion

Board of Directors:
Sten Scheibye 800 0.5
Géran A Ando 1,600 1.1
Bruno Angelici = 500 0.3
Henrik Gurtler - -
Ulrik Hjulmand-Lassen B44 213 0.7
Thomas Paul Koestler - 1,600 1.1
Anne Marie Kverneland 2,591 35 (151) 1.6
Kurt AnkerNielsen 31,704 400 (400) 53.9
Seren Thuesen Pedersen 309 135 (120) G.2
Hannu RySppénen 1,600 650 1.5
Stig Strabzek 490 (100) 0.3
Jargen Wedel 11,000 4,000 a5

BoardofDirectors in total 100,938 7,533 (71) 71.1

Executive Management:
Lars Rebien Sgrensen 16,920 53,901 ($,851) 36.3
Jesper Brandgaard 4,959 28,478 (5,500) 18.4
Lise Kingo 259 9,978 (3,893) 0.2
Kare Schultz 62,569 9,978 (21,330) 33.8
Mads Kregsgaard Thomsen 26,427 30,178 (8,000) 32.1

Executive Managementin total 105,134 132,513 (54,574) 120.8

Other members of Senior Management Board in total 91,355 151,542 (98,447) 95.3

Joint pool for Executive Management and
other members of the Senior Management Board2 637,455 89,712 (160,155) 374.3

Total 934,882 381,300 (313,947) 661.5 

1. Calculation of the market value is based on the quoted share price of DKK 660at the endof the year.
2, The annualallocation to the joint poolis locked up for three years before it is transferred to the participants employed at the end of each three-year period, Based on the

split of participants when the joint pool was established, 30% of the pool will be allocated to the members of Executive Management and 70% to other members of the
Senior Management Board.In the lock-up period, the joint pool may potentially be reduced in the event of lower-than-planned value creation in subsequent years.

3. Excludes 34,644 shares currently assigned to five retired Senior Management Board members.

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 87

Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011 85

Notes-Consolidatedfinancialstatements



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 88

 
i=G
—a£
3“
a3Ccac
ae
°
4a
2
oOwt25
UW

|
a
B=

31 Commitments and contingencies

Commitments

The total contractual obligations and recognised non-current debtas at
31 December 2011 can be specified as follows:

 

Payments due by period
Less i-3 3-5 More

than years years than
DKK million 1 year 5 years.

Loans - 97 99 306
Retirement benefit
obligations 13 26 24 376 

Total non-current
liabilities recognised
 in the Balance sheet 13 123 123 682

Interest payments
related to loans 6 11 q 13
Operating leases! 848 1,283 882 1,999
Purchase obligations 1,920 1,975 4 0
Research and develop-
ment obligations 1,241 1,448 85 0 

Total obligations
not recognised in the
Balance sheet 4,015 4,717 980=2,012 

Total contractual
obligations 4,028 4,840 1,103 2,694 

As at 31 December 2010, the contractual obligations and recognised
non-current debt can be specified as follows:

Payments due by period

 

 

 

 

 

Less 1-3 3-5 More Total
than years years than

DKK million 1 year 5 years

Loans - 48 97 359 504
Retirement benefit
obligations 17 33 31 488 569

Total non-curtent
liabilities recognised
in the Balance sheet 17 a1 128 47 1,073

Interest payments
related to loans 8 16 13 22 59
Operating leases! 785 4,147 682 813 3,427
Purchase obligations 1,386 1,327 1,361 189 4,263
Research and develop-
ment obligations 1,078 876 475 81 2,510

Total obligations
not recognised in the
Balance sheet 3,257 3,366 2,531 1,105 10,259

Total contractual
obligations 3,274 3,447 2,659 1,952 11,332 

41, No material finance lease obligations exist in 2011 and 2010,
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Thelatest interest rate fixing has been used to compute the contractual
obligation for interest on variable-rate debt instruments.

The operating lease commitments are related to non-cancellable operating
leases primarily related to premises, company cars and office equipment.
Approximately 68% of the commitments are related to leases outside
Denmark. The lease costs for 2011 and 2010 were DKK 1,059 million and
DKK 933 million respectively.

The purchase obligations primarily relate to contractual obligationsin
connection with investments in property, plant and equipmentas well as
purchase agreements regarding medical equiprnent and consumer goods.
Novo Nordisk expects to fund these commitments with existing cash and
cashflows from operations.

Research and development obligations contain uncertainties in relation to
the period in which payments are due because a proportion of the obliga-
tions are dependent on milestone achievements. The due periods cisclosed
are based on Management's best estimate. Novo Nordisk has engaged in
research and development projects with a number of external enterprises.
Most of these obligations relate to post-approval study on the LEADER®
pragramme.

DKK million 2010 

Other guarantees 555
Other guarantees primarily relate to guarantees
issued by Novo Nordiskin relation to rented
property

Security for debt 1,366
Land, buildings and equipmentetc at carryingamount 

World Diabetes Foundation
At the Annual General Meeting of Novo Nordisk A/S in 2002, the share-
holders agreed on a donation to the World Diabetes Foundation (WDF),
obligating Novo Nordisk A/S for a period of 10 years from 2001 to make
annual donations to the Foundation of 0.25% of the net insulin sales of the
Groupin the preceding financial year.

At the Annual General Meeting in 2008, a new donation in addition to
the existing obligation was agreed to by the shareholders. According to
this agreement, Nove Nordisk is cbliged to make annual donations to the
Foundation of 0.01% in the period 2008-2010 and 0.125% in the
period 2011-2017 of the net insulin sales of the Group in the preceding
financial year.

The annual donation for the period 2011-2017 will not exceed the lower
of DKK 80 million or 15% of the taxable income of Nevo Nordisk A/S in the
financial year in question.

In 2011, the donation amounts to DKK 65 million (DKK 69 and 68 million
in 2010 and 2009), whichis recognised in Administrative expenses in the
Incomestatement. The 2011 donation includes an extra donation of
DKK 14 million to support predetermined WODFactivities. Futhermore Novo
Nordisk has committed to pay an additional amount of DKK 11 million in
2012 to support predetermined WODF activities.

Contingencies

Novo Nordiskis currently involved in pending litigations, claims and
investigations arising out of the normal conductof its business, Whilst
provisions that Management deemsto be reasonable or appropriate have
been made for probable losses, there are uncertainties connected with
these estimates. Novo Nordisk does not expect the pendinglitigations,
claims andinvestigations, individually and in the aggregate, to have a
material impact on Novo Nordisk’s financialposition, operating profit or
cash flow in addition to the amounts accrued,

See note 1 for the principles for making accounting estimates and judge-
ments about pending and potential future litigation outcomes.
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31 Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Pendinglitigation against Novo Nordisk
Along with a majority of the hormone therapy product manufacturers In
the US, Novo Nordisk is a defendant in product liability lawsuits related
to hormone therapy products. There are currently 48 cases against Novo
Nordisk involving individuals who allege to have used a Novo Nordisk
hormone therapy product. These products (Activella® and Vagifem®) have
been sold and marketed in the US since 2000. Until July 2003, the products
were sold and marketed exclusively in the US by Pharmacia & Upjohn
Company (now Pfizer Inc.). According to information received from Pfizer,
66 individuals (compared with 72 individuals in 2010) currentlyallege, in
relation to similar lawsuits against Pfizer Inc., that they too have used a
Novo Nordisk hormone therapy product. Novo Nordisk has one caselisted
for trial In 2012. Novo Nordisk does not expect the pending claims to have
a material impact on Novo Nordisk’s financial position, operating profit or
cash flow.

In November 2006, Novo Nordisk A/S and theItalian affiliate Novo Nordisk
Farmaceutici S.P.A. were sued by A. Menarini Industrie Farmaceutiche
Riunite s.r. and Laboratori Guidotti $.P.A. (‘Menarini’) in the Civil Court
in Rame. Menarini aims that Novo Nordisk breachedanalleged contract
with Menarinifor the sale and distribution of insulin and Insulin analogues
in theItalian marketor, alternatively, has incurred a pre-contractual or extra-
contractual liability arising from negotiations betweenthe parties. Novo
Nordisk disputes the daims made by Menarini. A hearing on the matteris
scheduled to take place in July 2012. Novo Nordisk cannot predict how long
the litigation will take or whenitwill be able to provide additional informa-
tion, Novo Nordisk does not expect the pending claim to have a material
impact on Novo Nordisk’s financial position, operating profit or cash flaw,

Novo Nordisk Inc, is currently a defendant in a case filed in the US alleging
that Novo Nordisk and a numberof other pharmaceutical companies
provided a false Average Wholesale Price for certain drugs covered by
Medicaid. This case has been broughtby the State of Louisiana.A similar
case broughtby the State of Alabama has been resolved, Novo Nordisk
does not expect the pending claim to have a material impact on Novo
Nordisk’s financial position, operating profit or cash flow.

Novo Nordisk Inc. is one of more than 20 pharmaceutical companies that
have been named as defendants in putative class action lawsuits alleging
that their sales representatives have been denied overtime compensation by
being improperly classified under state and federal laws. Three cases were
filed against Novo Nordisk in 2011 in US District Courts in California, New
York and Georgia,Theplaintiffs claim that Nova Nordisk owes them and
other purported class members back wages, as well as penalties, interest,
and attorneys’ fees, Novo Nordisk believes these lawsuits are without merit
andwill defend against them vigorously. In mid-June 2012 it is expected
that the US Supreme Court will announce its decision in an appeal in a
similar case brought against another pharmaceutical company. The Court’s
ruling in that case could potentially influence the outcome of one or more
of the cases pending against Novo Nordisk. Navo Nordisk does not expect
the pending claim to have a material impact on Novo Nordisk’s financial
Position, operating profit or cash flow.

In addition to the above, the Novo Nordisk Group|s engaged in certain
litigation proceedings. In the opinion of Management, settlementor
continuation of these proceedings is not expected to have a material
effect on Novo Nordisk's financial position, operating profit or cash flow.

Pending claims against Novo Nordisk and investigations
involving Novo Nordisk
In May 2009 Novo Nordisk entered into a Deferred Prosecution Agreement
(DPA) for a three-year period with the US Departmentof Justice relating
to certain actions undertaken by Nevo Nordisk underthe Iraq Oil for Food
Programme. Under the terms of the DPA Navo Nordisk must comply with
the DPA (including US regulation related to the Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act and Foreign Assets Control) in order for the case to be dismissed.If
Novo Nordisk breaches the DPA, the prosecution may resume.

In light of the DPA, Novo Nordisk has in 2010 identified and self-reported
certain US Foreign Assets Control concerns to the US authorities, Nava
Nordisk does not expect the DPA to have a material impact on Novo
Nordisk’s financial position, operating profit or cash flow.

In February 2011, the office of the US Attorney for the District of Massa-
chusetts served Novo Nordisk with a subpoenacalling for the production of
documents regarding potential criminal offences relating to the company’s
marketing and promotion practices for the following products: NovoLog®.
Levemir®, and Victoza®. This matter is now being conducted by the US
Attorney for the District of Columbia, Novo Nordisk is cooperating with the
US Attorney in this investigation. Novo Nordisk does not expect the pend-
ing claims to have a material impact on Novo Nordisk's financial position,
operating profit or cash flaw.

In June 2005 Nove Nordisk filed a patent Infringement lawsuit against
Caraco Pharmaceutical Laboratories, Ltd, (‘Caraco’), a generic pharmaceuti-
cal company, andits Indian parent, Sun Pharmaceutical Industries, Ltd., in
the US District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan regarding Caraco’s
abbreviated new drug application (‘ANDA’) for a generic version of Prandin®
(repaglinide), In January 2011, the District Court ruled that Novo Nordisk’s
US Patent No. 6,677,358 (the ‘358 patent’), which is directed toward the
use of repaglinide in combination with metformin for the treatment of
type 2 diabetes, is invalid and unenforceable, Novo Nordisk immediately
appealed this decision on the merits to the US Court of Appealsfor the
Federal Circuit; the appeal is stayed pending a decision by the US Supreme
Court in a related issue. In December 2011, following Caraco's request
for review, the US Supreme Court heard oral argumentpertaining to the
Federal Circuit's reversal of an interlocutory decision by the District Court in
Michigan regarding availability of a counterclaim to correct the FDA Orange
Bookuse codenarrative for Prandin®; a decision by the Supreme Court on
this issue is expected in 2012.

Novo Nordiskis involved in patent infringement litigation with two ad-
ditional ANDA applicants for generic versions of Prandin®: Paddock Labo-
ratories and Sandoz Inc. Thecollateral estoppel decision in the Paddock
case has been appealed to the Federal Circuit andis stayed pending the
decision by the US Supreme Court. Cases involving Sandoz are pendingin
the US District Courts for the Eastern District of Michigan and New Jersey.
Additionally, Novo Nordisk |s Involved in a patent infringement lawsuit
with Lupin Ltd. in the US District Court for the Southern District of New
York in which Novo Nordisk asserts that Lupin’s ANDA for a generic version
of PrandiMet® (repaglinide/metformin HCl) infringes Novo Nordisk’s
"358 patent! This case is stayed pending the Federal Circuit appeal of the
decision on the merits in the Caraco case.

Also pending before the District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan
Is a consolidated class action where a putative class of direct purchasers of
Prandin® asserts that Novo Nordisk has violated US antitrust laws in delay-
ing the entry of generic versions of Prandin®,

At present, it is unclear whether or when a generic version of Prandin® or
PrandiMet® will be available in the US market.

Novo Nordisk does not expect the pending claims related to Prandin® to
have a material impact on Novo Nordisk’s financial position, operating profit
or cash flow.

In addition ta the above, the Novo Nordisk Group |s engaged in various
ongoing tax audits and investigations. In the opinion of Management,
these pending audits and investigations are not expected to have a material
effect on Novo Nordisk's financial position, operating profit or cash flow.

Disclosure regarding Change of Control
The EU TakeoverBids Directive, as partially implemented by the Danish
Financial Statements Act, contains certain rules relating to listed companies
on disclosure of information that may be of interest to the market and
potential takeover bidders, in particularin relation to disclosure of change
of control provisions.

For information on the ownership structure of Novo Nordisk, please refer
to ‘Shares and capital structure’ on pp 52—54, For information an change
of control clauses in share option programmes,please refer to note 29,
‘Share-hased payment schemes’ on pp 83-85 andIn relation ta employee
contracts of Executive Management of Novo Nordisk, please refer to the
“Remuneration report’ in the section Governance, remuneration and leader-
ship, pp 44-47.

In addition, Novo Nordisk discloses that the Group has significant agree-
ments to which the Group is a party and which take effect, alter or
terminate upon a changeof control of the Group following implementation
of a take-overbid.If effected, a takeover could— at the discretion of each
relevant counterparty — lead to the termination of one or more of such
agreements and a total loss of approximately 4% of Novo Nordisk’s sales,
corresponding te approximately 4% of Novo Nordisk’s gross profit.
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32 Related party transactions

Novo Nordisk A/S is controlled by Novo A/S (incorporated in Denmark},
which owns 25.5% of the shares in Novo Nordisk AS, representing 73.2%.
of the total numberof votes, excluding treasury shares, The remaining
shares are widely held. The ultimate parent of the Groupis the Novo
Nordisk Foundation {incorporated in Denmark). Both entities are considered
related parties.

Other related parties are considered to be the Novozymes Group due to
joint ownership, associated companies, the directors and officers of these
entities, and Management of Novo Nordisk A/S.

In 2011, Novo Nordisk 4/S acquired 5,100,000 B shares, worth DKK 2.9
billion, from Novo A/S as part of the DKK 12.0 billion share repurchase pro-
gramme. The transaction price was DKK 571 per share and was calculated
as the average market price from 4 to 10 August 2011 in the open window
following the announcement of the financial results for the second quarter
of 2011.

In 2010, Novo Nordisk A/S acquired 5,100,000 B shares, worth DKK 2.6
billion, fram Novo 4/5 as part of the DKK 9.5 billian share repurchase pro-
gramme.The transaction price was DKK 503 per share and wascalculated
as the average market price from 5 to 19 August 2010 in the open window
following the announcementof the financial results for the second quarter
of 2010.

In 2009, Novo Nordisk A/S acquired 3,570,000 8 shares, worth DKK 1.1
billion, fram Novo A/S as part of the DKK 19 billion share repurchasepro-
gramme. The transaction price was DKK 311 per share and was calculated
as the average market price from 6 to 7 August 2009 in the open window
following the announcement of the financial results for the second quarter
of 2009.
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The Group has had the following material transactions with related parties,
(incomeyexpense:

DKK million 2010 2009 

Novo Nordisk Foundation
Donations to Steno Diabetes
Center A/S via Novo Nordisk (38) (32)

Novo A/S
Services provided by Novo Nordisk (3) (8)
Purchase of Nove Nordisk 8 shares 2,567 1,111
Sale of treasury shares
(related to share options) (2) (2)

Novozymes
Services provided by Novo Nordisk (395) (357)
Services provided by Novozymes 83 118

Associated companies
Purchased intangible assets and fees
and royalties etc paid to associated
companies by Nove Nordisk 16 184
Received intangible assets and fees
and royalties etc paid by associated
companies to Navo Nordisk (4) = 

Transactions with associated companies are included up until the date of
transfer or disposal.

There are no contingentliabilities towards associated companies.

There have not been any material transactions with any director or officer
of Nove Nordisk, Novozymes, Novo A/S, the Novo Nordisk Foundation
or associated companies. For information on remuneration to the Manage-
ment of Navo Nordisk, please refer to ‘Remuneration report’ in “Corporate
governance, remuneration and leadership’, pp 44-47, and note 4. There
have not been andare no loans to the Board of Directors or Executive Man-
agementin 2011, 2010 or 2009,

There are no material unsettled transactions with related parties at the end
of the year.
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33 Companies in the Novo Nordisk Group
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Country Year of Currency Issued Percentage 3S a $ =
incorporation’ share capital’ ofshares. oc Af & &
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Parent company
Nove Nordisk A/S Denmark 1931 DKK 580,000,000 - es 8 @ @

Subsidiaries by region

Europe
Nove Nordisk Pharma GmbH Austria 1974 EUR 36,336 100 s
SA Novo Nordisk Pharma NV Belgium 1974 EUR 69,000 100 s
Nove Nordisk Pharma d.o.o. Bosnia-Hercegovina 2009 BAM 97,792 100 .
Nove Nordisk Pharma EAD Bulgaria 2005 BGN 5,880,000 100 ®
Novo Nordisk Hrvatska d.o.o. Croatia 2004 HRK 5,000,000 100 s
Novo Nordisk s.1.0. Czech Republic 1997 CZK 14,500,000 100 s
FeF Chernicals A/S Denmark 1989 DKK 10,000,000 100 e «
Novo Nordisk Region Europe A/S Denmark 2002 DKK 108,370,500 100 *
Steno Diabetes Center AS Denmark 2608 DKK 1,000,000 100 » «
Novo Nordisk Farma OY Finland 1972 EUR 420,500 100 e
Novo Nordisk France 2003 EUR 5,821,140 100 .
Nove Nordisk Production SAS France 1959 EUR 57,710,220 100 s
Novo Nordisk Pharma GmbH Germany 1973 EUR 614,062 100 *
Novo Nordisk Hellas Epe, Greece 1979 EUR 1,050,000 100 *.
Novo Nordisk Hungaria Kft. Hungary 1996 HUF 371,000,000 100 .
Novo Nordisk Lirnited Ireland 1978 EUR 635 100 .
Novo Nordisk Farmaceutici 5.p.A. Italy 1980 EUR 516,500 100 .
UAB Novo Nordisk Pharma Lithuania 2005 OL 2,150,000 100 *
Novo Nordisk Farma dooel Macedonia 2006 MKD 14,068,285 100 ®
Novo Nordisk B.V, Netherlands 1983 EUR 61,155 100 s
Novo Nordisk Scandinavia AS Norway 1965 NOK 250,000 100 .
Novo Nordisk Pharma Sp. 2.0.0. Poland 1996 PLN 29,021,000 100 e
Novo Nordisk Comércio Produtos Farmacé@uticos Lda. Portugal 1984 EUR 250,000 100 °
Novo Nordisk Farma S.R.L. Romania 2005 RON 2,795,000 100 .
Nove Nordisk Pharma d.o.0. Belgrade (Serbia) Serbia 2005 EUR 640,000 100 .
Novo Nordisk Slovakia s.r0. Slovakia 2007 EUR 265,552 100 °
Novo Nordisk, tréenje farmacevtskih izdelkevd.c.o. Slovenia 2006 EUR 2,679,286 100 .
Novo Nordisk Pharma S.A. Spain 1978 EUR 1,502,500 100 *
Novo Nordisk Scandinavia AB Sweden 1971 SEK 100,000 100 .
Novo Nordisk FemCare AG Switzerland 2003 CHF 1,100,000 100 ° *
Nove Nordisk Health Care AG Switzerland 2000 CHF 159,325,000 100 e *
Novo Nordisk Pharma AG Switzerland 1968 CHF 50,000 100 .
Novo Nordisk Holding Limited United Kingdom 1977 GBP 2,802,130 100 °
Novo Nordisk Limited United Kingdom 1978 GBP 2,350,000 100 .

North America
Novo Nerdisk CanadaInc. Canada 1983 CAD 200 100 *
Novo Nordisk Region North America Il A/S Denmark 2011 DKK 500,000 100 «
Novo Nordisk US HoldingsInc. United States 2007 USD 50,000 100 *
Nove Nordisk Pharmaceutical Industries Inc, United States 1991 USD 55,000,000 100 2
Novo NordiskInc. United States 1982 USD 283,837,600 100 s «

Japan & Korea
Nove Nordisk Region Japan & Korea A/S Denmark 2002 DKK 15,500,000 100 ®
Novo Nordisk Pharma Ltd, Japan 1980 JPY=2, 104,000,000 100 es @
Novo Nordisk Pharma Korea Ltd, South Korea 1954. KRW=6,108,400,000 100 .
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33 Companies in the Novo Nordisk Group (continued)

  Activity

5
5

£2¢6
E ec &
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Country Year of Currency Issued Percentage 3B 4 a 2
incorporation’ share capital’ of shares ge & & &
acquisition paid-in capital owned * 8 8 @

International Operations
Aldaph SpA Algeria 1994 DZD -1,742,650,000 100 . «@
Novo Nerdisk Pharma Argentina 5.A. Argentina 1997 ARS 7,465,150 100 e
Novo Nordisk Pharmaceuticals Pty. Ltd. Australia 1985 AUD 500,001 100 o
Novo Nordisk Pharma(Private) Limited Bangladesh 2007 BDT 17,500,000 100 e
Novo Nordisk Produgdo Farmacéutica do Brasil Ltda. Brazil 2002 BRL 896,834,727 100 e
Novo Nordisk Farmacéutica do Brasil Ltda. Brazil 1980 BRL 32,995,945 100 .
Novo Nordisk Farmacéutica Limitada Chile 2006 CLP 758,271,200 100 ®
Nevo Nerdisk Pharma Operations AS Denmark 2005 DKK 500,000 100 *

2 Novo Nordisk Region International Operations A/S Denmark 2002 DKK 113,303,310 100 .
£ Novo Nordisk Egypt LLC Egypt 2004 EGP 50,000 100 sNovo Nordisk India Private Limited India 1994 INR 265,000,000 100 e e

# PT. Novo Nordisk Indonesia Indonesia 2003 IDR 827,500,000 100 es
a Novo Nerdisk Pars Iran 2005 IRR 16,000,000 100 e
¥ Novo Nordisk Ltd Israel 1997 ILS 100 100 s
e Novo Nordisk Lebanon Lebanon 2007 LBP 606,000,000 100 es
a Novo Nordisk Pharma (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia 1992 MYR 500,000 100 se
# Novo Nordisk Mexico 5.A. de C.V. Mexico 2004 MXN 387,816,547 100 os
Zz Novo Nordisk Pharma SAS Morocco 2006 MAD 2,597,000 100 a
a Nove Nordisk Pharmaceuticals Lid. New Zealand 1990 NZD 1,000,000 100 *
& Novo Nordisk Pharma Limited Nigeria 2006 NGN 16,000,000 100 °

| Novo Nordisk Pharma (Private} Limited Pakistan 2005 PKR 43,000,000 100 s
oH Novo Nordisk Pharmaceuticals (Philippines) Inc. Philippines 1999 PHP 50,000,000 100 ®

8 Novo Nordisk Limited Liability Company Russia 2003 RUB 188,243,360 100 a
Novo Nordisk Production Support LLC Russia 2010 RUB 5,100,000 100 ®
Novo Investment Pte Limited Singapore 1994 $GD 12,000,000 100 *
Novo Nordisk Pharma (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Singapore 1997 SGD 200,000 100 ®
Novo Nordisk (Pty) Limited South Africa 1959 ZAR 3,000 100 °
Novo Nordisk Pharma (Thailand) Ltd. Thailand 1983 THB 15,500,000 49 a
Novo Nordisk Tunisie SARL Tunisia 2004 TND 400,000 100 .
Novo Nordisk Saglik Ordnleri Tic. Ltd. Sti. Turkey 1993 TRY 25,296,300 100 .
Novo Nordisk Pharma Gulf FZ-LLC United Arab Emirates 2005 AED 100,000 100 ®
Novo Nordisk Venezuela Casa de Representacién C.4. Venezuela 2004 VEF 6,182,957 100 .

Region China
Novo Nordisk (China) Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. China 1994 USD 374,800,000 100 s «@
Beijing Nove Nordisk Pharmaceuticals Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. China 2006 USD 13,200,000 100 «
Nove Nordisk Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 2001 HKD 500,000 100 e
Novo Nordisk Pharma (Taiwan)Ltd. Taiwan 1950 TWD 3,000,000 400 e

Other subsidiaries
NNIT AS! Denmark 1998 DKK 1,000,000 100 *
NNE Pharmaplan A/S! Denmark 1983 DKK 500,000 100 *

Associated companies
Harno Invest A/S Denmark 1992 DKK 76,419,910 30 * 

1. In addition to the listed companies, NNIT A/S and NNE Pharmaplan A/S have their own subsidiaries.
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Statement of social performance for the year ended 31 December
 Note 2016 2009

Patients

People with diabetes using Novo Nordiskinjectable products (million) (estimate) 2 NA NA
Healthcare professionals trained or educated in diabetes (1,000) 3 373 425
People with diabetes trained (1,000) 3 494 416
Least developed countries where Novo Nordisk sells insulin according
to the differential pricing policy 4 67% 73%
Donations te the World Diabetes Foundation (DKK million) 69 68

Donations to the Novo Nordisk Haemophilia Foundation (DKK million) 15 15
Animals purchased for research 5 62,927 57,315
People participating in clinical trials 6 19,361 11,130
Active patent families 7 817 905
New patent families (first filings} 7 62 55

Employees
Employees(total) 8 30,483 29,329
Average offull-time employees 29,423 27,985
Employee turnover & 9.1% 8.3%
Engaging culture (employee engagement) (scale of 1—5) 8 43 43
Diverse senior management teams 8 54% 50%
Annual training costs per employee (DKK) 8 14,207 13,283
Frequency of occupationalinjuries (number/million working hours) 9 49 4.3
Absence 9 2.5% 2.4%

Employment impact worldwide (direct and indirect) 10 108,248 96,468

Assurance

Relevant employees trained in business ethics 98% N/A
Fulfilment of action points from facilitations of the Novo Nordisk Way 93% 93%
Supplier audits 11 192 196
Product recalls 12 5 2

Warning Letters and re-inspections 13 0 0
Company reputation with external key stakeholders (scale of 1-7) N/A NYA 
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Supplementaryinformation—Notes—Consolidatedsocialstatement

Notes to the Consolidated social statement

1 Basis of preparation of the Consolidated
social statement

The Consolidated social statementis prepared in accordance with the
Danish Financial Statements Act (FSA), section 99a. Section 99a requires
Nova Nordisk to account for the company’s activities relating to social
responsibility, reporting on business strategies and activities in the areas of
human rights, labour standards, environment and anti-corruption, Com-
panies that subscribe to the UN Global Compact and annually submit their
Communication on Progress will be in compliance with the FSA, provided
that the annual report includes a reference to where the information has
been madepublicly available. Novo Nordisk’s Communication on Progress
2011 can be found at annualreport201 I.nevonordisk.com and on UN Global
Compact'’s website at unglobalcompact.org/COR.

Novo Nordisk adheres to the following internationally recognised voluntary
standards and principles:

° AA1000 framework for accountability. The framework
{AA1000APS(2008) and AA1000AS(2008)) states that reporting must
provide a complete, accurate, relevant and balanced picture of
the organisation's approach to and impact on society. Novo Nordisk’s
assurance process is designed according to AA1000AS(2008),

UN Global Compact. As a signatory to the UN Global Compact, a
strategic policy initiative for businesses that are committed to aligning
thelr operations and strategies with 10 universally accepted principles
in the areas of human rights, labour, environment and anti-corruption,
Novo Nordisk reports on actions during 2011 to align with the 10
principles in the Communication on Progress, which can be found at
annualreport2011.novenordisk.cam.

» Global Reporting Initiative's (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines. The
guidelines (G3) Include an internationally recognised set of indicators
for economic, environmental and social aspects of business performance
that enables stakeholders to compare carnpanies’ performance, Novo
Nordisk’s reporting according to the reporting principles and guidance,
Including required disclosures, can be found at
annualreport2011.novonordisk.cam.

In addition, Novo Nordisk reports with reference to the content elements
and guiding principles of the Inaugural Integrated Reporting Framework
developed by the International Integrated Reporting Committee. The
framework is currently in a pilot phase.

To Nave Nordisk, AATOODAPS(2008)is a componentin creating a generally
applicable approach to assessing and strengthening the credibility of the
company’s public reporting of social and environmental data. Novo
Nordisk’s assurance process has been designed to ensure that the qualitative
and quantitative information that documents the social and environmental
dimensions of performance as well as the systems that underpin the data
and performance are assured, Theprinciples outlined in AA1000APS(2008)
have been applied as described belaw.

inclusivity
As a pharmaceutical company with global reach, Navo Nordisk is commit-
ted to being accountable to those the organisation impacts. Novo Nordisk
maps its stakeholders and has processesin place to ensure Inclusion of
stakeholder concerns and expectations. Stakeholder engagement results
in stakeholders being involved in developing and accounting for strategic
responses to sustainability challenges.

Materiality
Key issues are identified through ongoing stakeholder engagement and
trendspotting and are addressed by programmes or action plans with clear
and measurable targets. Long-term targets are set to quide long-term
performance in strategic areas. The issues presented in the annualreport
are deemed to have a significant impact on the company’s future business
performance and may support stakeholders in their decision-making, and
are therefore regarded as Novo Nordisk’s materialissues.

Responsiveness
The report reaches out to a wide range of stakeholders, each with their
specific needs and interests. To most stakeholders, however, the annual
report is just one elementof Interaction and communication with the com-
pany. The annual report reflects how the company is managing operations
in ways that respond to and consider stakeholder concerns and interests.
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Defining materiality
It is Novo Nordisk’s responsibility to ensure that those areas in which the
company has significant impact are addressed. Issues for the social and
environmental reporting are prioritised to be reported eitherin the printed
annualreport (most material} or online (material, often catering to specific
stakeholder interests), or not reported (not material).

In assessing which information to include in the annual report, legal require-
ments and disclosure commitments made by Novo Nordisk are considered.
Furthermore,it is assessed whetherinformationis tied directly or indirectly
to Novo Nardisk’s ability ta create value, Short- and long-term value
creation is taken into consideration.

The outcomes of formal reviews, research, stakeholder engagement and
internal materiality discussions are presented as a proposal for annual
reporting to Executive Management and the Board ofDirectors. In addition,
Novo Nordisk’s external assurance provider assures whether the social and
environmental performance data included in the annual report cover the
material aspects. The conclusionis available in the Independent assurance
repart on p 111,

Principles of social disclosuresThe Consolidated social statement and disclosures cover Novo Nordisk A/S
and entities controlled by Novo Nordisk A/S.

New disclosures have been added to the statement:

* People with diabetes using Novo Nordisk injectable products (rillion)» Product recalls

Social accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently in the
preparation of the consolidated social statement forall the years presented,
with the following exceptions:

The accounting policy for ‘Company reputation with external key stake-
holders’ waspreviously reported on a scale of 0-100 but is now reported
ona scale of 1-7 with 7 being the best. Furthermore, the numberwill
be reported as a two-year average for the top seven markets and weighted
by sales. The changein accounting policy ls due to changesin the data
collection, hence no historical data exists.

Thefollowing accounting policies have been adjusted:

"Healthcare professionals trained or educated in diabetes’ was previously
reported as an accumulated numberbut will from this year be reported
as the actual number of healthcare professionals trained or educated in
diabetes within the year. This adjustmentis reflected in the historical data.

» ‘Absence’ waspreviously calculated based on the actual number of
working hours in the year but is now calculated using a regional standard
average numberof working days in a year. Historical data have been
restated to reflect this change.

Please refer to the accounting policies below for further information on the
social disclosures,

People with diabetes using Novo Nordisk injectable products
The number of people with diabetes using Novo Nordisk injectable products
is an estimate, calculated by reconciling Novo Nordisk's annual sales volume
by product, annual product consumption per patient following different
treatment regimes and recommended country-specific daily dose, and the
total number of patients in the market by treatment regime. The Novo
Nordisk annualsales volume by product Is obtained from the financial
accounts and estimates of volume market share. Information regarding
the annual product consumptionper patient following different treatment
regimes is collected from multiple sources (Roper reports, observational
studies and internal market research), The total number of patients in the
market by treatment regimeis estimated using information on population
(UN World Population), prevalence rate (IDF Diabetes Atlas, US Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention estimates and governmentsurveys),
diagnosis rate (IDF Diabetes Atlas, journalarticles), and treatment rates for
insulin or GLP-1, including concomitant use (US Centers for Disease Control,
Roperreports, market research, data from the independent data provider
IMS health).
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Healthcare professionals trained or educated in diabetes
Healthcare professionals trained or educatedin diabetes is measured as
an estimate based on registrations byaffiliates and corporate functions in
Novo Nordisk. The numberreflects the total number of healthcare providers
participating in Novo Nordisk-sponsored training and education activities
during the year.

People with diabetes trained
People with diabetes trained is measured as an estimate based on registra-
tions by affiliates and corporate functions in Novo Nordisk, The number
reflects the total number of people with diabetes with whom Novo Nordisk
has engaged during the year for educational purposes. Training is
recognised as activities conducted, organised or funded by Nova Nordisk.

Least developed countries where Novo Nordisk sells insulin
according to the differential pricing policy
Novo Nordisk has formulated a differential pricing policy for the least
developed countries (LDCs), The purposeof the policy is to offer insulin
to the world’s LDCsat or belowaprice of 20% of the average prices
for insulin in the western world. The western world is defined as Europe
(EU, Switzerland and Norway), the United States, Canada and Japan. The
number of LDCs where Novo Nordisksells insulin according to the differen-
tial pricing policy is measured by direct or indirect sales by Novo Nordisk
via government tenderor private market sales to wholesalers, distributors
or non-governmental organisations. In 2011, 48 countries were on the
UN‘s LDC list. For 2009-2010, the number of countries on thelist was 49.

Danations to the World Diabetes Foundation
The amount includes donations in DKK and is recognised when paid out by
Novo Nordisk to the World Diabetes Foundation during thefiscal year.

Danations to the Novo Nordisk Haemophilia Foundation
The amountincludes donations in DKK and is recognised whenallocated
by Novo Nordisk ta the Novo Nardisk Haemophilia Foundation during the
fiscal year.

Animals purchased for research
Animals purchased for research is recorded as the number of animals
purchased forall research undertaken at Novo Nordisk either in-house or
by external contractors. The numberof animals purchased is based on
internal registration of purchased animals and yearly reports from external
contractors.

People participating in clinicaltrials
The numberof peaple participating in clinical research (phase 1-4,
excluding observational studies) is recorded as active participantsin clinical
research during the year.

Active patent families
Active patent families is recorded as the tetal numberof single inventions
covered by at least one pending orissued patent in one or more countries.

New patent families (first filings)
New patent families(first filings) is recorded as the number of new patent
applications that were filed during the year.

Employees(total)
The number of employees is recorded as all employees except externals,
employees on unpaid leave, interns, bachelor and master thesis employees,
and substitutes.

Employee turnover
The rate of turnover is measured as the number of employees, excluding
temporary employees, wholeft the Nava Nordisk Group during the
financial year compared with the average number of employees, excluding
temporary employees,

Engaging culture (employee engagement)
For 2011, the employee engagementis measured on a scale of 1-5, with 5
being the best, and is an average of respondents’ answers to eight selected
questions related to employees’ engagement in the annual employee
survey, eVoice, covering the Novo Nordisk Way. Employee engagementis
a simple average of answers given by the employees. For 2009 and 2010,
the average wascalculated using 10 selected questions related to the Novo
Nordisk Way of Management.

Diverse senior management teams
Diverse senior management teamsis measured as the percentage of teams
that are diverse in terms of both gender and nationality. A senior manage-
ment team includes all managers and executive assistants reporting directly
to an executive vice president/senior vice president. In 2011, there were 29
senior management teams and 28 in 2009 and 2010.

Annualtraining costs pear employee
Training costs cover internal and external training posted in the financial
accounts and are calculated per employee,

Frequency of occupationalinjuries
The frequency of occupationalinjuries is measured as the numberofinjuries
reportedforall employees per million working hours, excluding externals,
employees on unpaid leave, interns, bachelor and master thesis employees,
and substitutes. An occupational injury is any work-related injury causing
at least one day of absence in addition to the dayof the injury.

Absence
The rate of absence is measured as absence due to the employee's own
illness, pregnancy-related sick leave, and occupational injuries andillnesses
compared with a regional standard average of working daysin the year,
adjusted for holidays.

Employment impact worldwide {alirect and indirect)
Employment impact worldwideis measured as an estimate of the direct and
indirect jobs created by Novo Nordisk, calculated using financial records
and generalstatistics from public sources such as Statistics Denmark,
Updated Economic Multipliers for the US Economy (the Economic Policy
Institute), OECD and the China Statistical Yearbook.

Relevant employees trained in business ethics
The business ethics training is based.on globally applicable Standard
Operating Procedures (SOPs) released by the Business Ethics Compliance
Office annually, The target groupsfor the individual SOPs vary in size but
coverall employees present in Novo Nordisk at the time of the new releases
except employees on leave and studentassistants. The percentage of
employees completing the training is calculated as the average percentage
of completion of the SOPs. The calculation of the percentage of employees
trained in business ethics is based on registrations in training databases and
local archives of employees completing the relevant annual business ethics
training.

Fulfilment of action points from facilitatians of the Novo Nordisk Way
For 2011, the percentageof fulfilment of action points arising from facilita-
tions, or values audits, of the Novo Nordisk Way is measured as an average
of timely closure of action points issued in the current year and the two pre-
vious years. The reason for using a three-year average as the basis for the
calculation is that action lead time typically varies from a couple of months
to more than a year. For 2009 and 2010,the closure of action points is
based on the Novo Nordisk Way of Management.

Supplier audits
The numberof supplier audits concluded (audit reports received)includes
responsible sourcing audits and quality audits conducted in the areas of
direct spend materials and indirect spend materials.

Product recalls
The numberof actual product recalls is recorded as the number of times
Novo Norcisk has instituted an actual recall and includes recalls in con-
nection with clinical trials. An actual recall can affect various countries but
only counts as one recall.

Warming Letters and re-inspections
Warning Letters and re-inspections is measured as the number of Warning
Letters issued by the US Food and Drug Administration in connection
with GxP-regulated and ISO-certified areas, and the numberofsignificant
re-inspections issued to Novo Nordisk by any health authority globally.
A significant re-inspection eccurs following a failed inspection with global
reach and high business impact, and invalving top-level managementin the
containment and corrective actions.
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Supplementaryinformation—Notes—Consolidatedsocialstatement

Companyreputation with external key stakeho/ders
Companyreputation with external key stakeholders is measured as the
mean corporate brand score in the top seven markets (the US, Canada,
China, Japan, Germany, the UK and France) weighted in accordance with
actualsales of diabetes products. The mean corporate brandscore is based
on companyratings (on a scale of 1-7, with 7 being the best) collected
throughinterviews with primary and secondary healthcare professionals
whoarecurrent prescribers of Novo Nordisk injectable diabetes products.
Each marketis surveyed every second year, so the score is based on a two-
yearrolling average, The survey is carried out by an independent external
consultancy firm,

2 People with diabetes using Novo Nordisk
injectable products

The estimated number of people with diabetes using Novo Nordisk inject-
able products in 2011 was 24 million. Thisis the first year of reporting this
number hence no historical data are reported. At a regional levelit is
estimated that of the people with diabetes using Novo Nordisk products
14% are in North America, 23% in Europe, 42% in International Opera-
tions, 5% in Japan and Korea, and 16% in Region China,

3 Healthcare professionals trained or educated in
diabetes and people with diabetes trained

In 2011, 835,000 healthcare professionals are estimated to have been
trained, educated, interacted with or reached through awareness cam-
paigns compared with 373,000 jn 2010. Furthermore, 626,000 people
with diabetes are estimated to have been trained in 2011 compared with
494,000 in 2010. Thesignificant increases are due ta increased activities
in several markets and particularly in the US.

The aim Is to continue activities to educate healthcare professionals to Im-
prove diagnosis and treatment and to train people with diabetes to improve
self-care.

4 Least developed countries where Novo Nordisk
sells insulin according to the differential pricing
policy

The differential pricing policy is part of the globalinitiatives to promote
access to health for all least developed countries (LDCs) as defined by the
UN, In 2011, Novo Nordisk offered the differential price to all of the 48
LDCs, Navo Nordisk operates in 38 of these countries and sald Insulin to
either governments or the private market in 75% (36 of 48 countries) of
the countries according to the differential pricing policy compared with
67% (33 of 49 countries) in 2010.In 2011, Novo Nordisk operated in
Mozambique and Angola but did net sell insulin at the differential price,
The governments in these two countries were offered the opportunity to
buy insulin at the differential price but the insulin sald here in 2011 was sold
to the private market.

In a total of 10 LDCs Novo Nordisk had no sales in 2011 for various reasons.

In several cases, the government has nat responded to the offer, there are
no private wholesalers or other partners to wark with, or waror political
unrest makes it impossible to do business. While Novo Nordisk prefers to
sell Insulin at the differential price through government tenders, the com-
panyiswilling to sell to private distributors and agents. Novo Nordisk is
unable to guarantee that the price at which the companysells the insulin
will be reflected in the final price to the consumer.
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5 Animals purchased for research

The numberof animals purchased for research In 2011 increased by 6%
compared with 2010 and 37% of the animals purchased in 2011 were
rodents, The increase in number of animals is due to the increased research
activities within the discovery and development of new pharmaceuticals for
diagnosis, care and treatment, Most significantly, the number of purchased
mice increased from 27,773 in 2010 to 31,363 in 2011 dueto an overall
increase in the studies within diabetes care and blopharmaceuticals.

 

 

Number 2010 2009

Mice and rats 60,441 54,714
Pigs 1,196 1,170
Rabbits 543 559
Dogs 328 240
Other rodents! 86 90
Non-human primates 330 540
Other vertebrates 3 2

Total 62,927. 57,315 

1, Other radents are gerbils, quinea pigs and hamsters,
2 Othervertebrates are fish, chickens, goats and frags.

6 People participating in clinical trials

The number of people participatingin clinical trials increased by 16% in
2011 compared with 2010. The increase reflects the initiation of the phase 3
programmeevaluatingliraglutide as an antlobesity agent and the LEADER®
programme,a post-approval commitmentto the European Medicines
Agency and the US Food and Drug Administration following approval of
liraglutide for type 2 diabetes.

 
 
 

 
 

 

 Numberby region 2010 2009

North America 6,750 3,334
Europe 6,947 4,453
International Operations 3,215 1,844
Japan & Korea
Region China

Total 19,361 11,130 
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7 Active patent families and new patent families (first filings)

The numberof patent families remained relatively stable at 807 in 2011 compared with 817 in 2010. A total of 80 new patent families were established
in 2011, whichis an increase of 29% compared with thefiling activity in 2010, when 62 patent families were established. The increase in patent filings was
primarily driven by injection devices and the inflammation therapy area.

The patent expiry dates for the product portfolio are shownin the table below, The dates provided are for expiry in the US, major European markets
(Germany, France and the UK), China and Japan ofpatents on the active ingredient, unless otherwise indicated, and include extensions of patent term
(including for paediatric extension where applicable). For several products, in addition to the compound patent, Novo Nordisk halds other patents an
manufacturing processes, formulations or uses that may extend exclusivity beyond the expiration of the active ingredient patent. Furthermore, data-based
exclusivity may be available under pharmaceutical requlatory laws.

Marketed products in key markets (active ingredients)

  Product us Europe China Japan

Diabetes care:
NovoRapid*® (NovaLog®) 20141 Expired’ Expired? Expired’
NovoMix® 30 (NovoLog® Mix 70/30) 2014 2014-15 Expired 2014
Levemir® 2019 2018 2014 2019
NovoNorm® (Prandin®) Expired Expired Expired Expired+
PrandiMet® 20183 Pending NWA Pending
Victoza® 2022 2022 2017 2022

Blopharmaceuticals:
Norditropin® (Norditropin® Simplexx®) 20152 20172 20172 20172
NovoSeven® Expired’ Expired§ Expired5 Expireds 

1. Formulation patent until 2017,
2. Formulation patent providing exclusivity to the composition of excipients used in the drug products.
3. Combination patent providing exclusivity to the combined use of twa or more different medicines for treatment of a particular disease.
4, Possibly extendable by five years.
5. Room temperature-stable formulation patent until 2024.

8 Employees

Of the 32,632 people employed in 2011, 14,064 were employedin
Denmark compared with 13,535 in 2010, In 2011 the total number of
employees increased by 2,149 (7%) compared with an increase of 1,154
(4%) in 2010. Employee turnover increased from 9.15 in 2010 to 9.8% in 2011.
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Numberby region 2010 2003

North America 4,457 4,076
Eurepe 17,752 17,686
International Operations 3,768 3,657
Japan & Korea 995 978
Region China 3,511 2,932

Total 30,483 29,329 

9.1% 8.3%
 

Employee turnover 

Engaging culture (employee engagement)
In 2011, the score for engaging culture (employee engagement) remained
Stable at 4.3 with a response rate in the annual eVoice survey of 92%.

Diverse senior management teams
Diversity in the company’s seniar management teams increased from 54%
(15 of 28 teams) in 2010 to 62% (18 of 29 teams) in 2011. Amongall
employees, diversity in terms of gender was at 50%, whichis the same asin 2010.

Annualtraining costs per employee
Annual training costs per employee decreased from DKK 14,207 in 2010 ta
DKK 10,479 in 2011 due to overall reductions in the spend ontraining, with
the US in particular reducing spend signifleantly. In 2010 the US Incurred
signticantly higher expenses on training due to expansion ofthe sales farce.
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Supplementaryinformation—Notes—Consolidatedsocialstatement

9 Frequency of occupational injuries and absence

In 2011, 4 sales representative in Bangladesh died in a car accident. Prior to
this tragic accident Novo Nordisk had not had any fatal occupational injuries
since 2004.

In 2011, the number of occupational accidents with absence decreased
by more than 25% compared with 2010. This developmentsignificantly
reduced the frequency of occupational injuries, which decreased from
4.9 per million working hours in 2010 to 3.4 in 2011. The decrease is due
te a continuous focus on occupational health and safety at Novo Nordisk,
The rate of absence also decreased slightly in 2011 to 2.3% from 2.5%
in 2010,

10 Employment impact (direct and indirect)
In 2011, Novo Nordisk created an estimated 118,716 direct and indirect
jobs compared with 108,248direct and indirect jobs in 2010. The employ-
ment impact in 2011 translates into an estimated 86,580indirect global
jobs in the supply chain from production needs and employees’private
consumption. The majority of indirect jobs created are due to production
(60,373), but the effect of private consumption by Novo Nordisk employees
is also significant (26,207). In 2010, the total number of estimated indirect
jobs created was 78,218.

The distribution of cash value remained roughly the same compared with
2010.

 

Cash value
distribution 2011

© Suppliers i

IB investors/funders : *

@ Public sector (taxes) 2009
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11 Supplier audits

In 2011, 177 supplier audits were completed and no critical findings were
issued. The table below shows thesplit between responsible sourcing audits
and audits related to quality.

 

 

Number 2010 2009

Responsible sourcing audits 26 20
Quality audits 166 176

Total 192 196 

12. Productrecalls

In 2011, as in 2010, Novo Nordisk had five instances of product recalls
involving different countries.Three recalls were implementedin single
countries due to products defects originating from the lacal distribution
chains and tworecalls were effectuated in several countries due to product
defects relating to production. None of the products recalled has caused
any harm to patients.

13 Warning Letters and re-inspections

In 2011, as in 2010, no Warning Letters were issued to Novo Nordisk by
the US Food and Drug Administration in connection with Good Manu-
facturing Practice, Good Clinical Practice or Good Laboratory Practice
inspections. Nor were any significant re-inspections issued ta Novo Nordisk
by any authority. In total, 76 inspections were concluded in 2011, compared
with 2010, when 105 inspections were concluded,
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Statement of environmental performance for the year ended 31 December

Note 

Inputs
Energy consumption (1,000 GJ}
Water consumption (1,000 m*)
Raw materials and packaging materials (1,000 tons)

Outputs
COz emissions fram energy consumption (1,000 tons)
COQ; emissions from refrigerants (1,000 tons)
CQz emissions from transport (1,000 tons)
Wastewater (1,000 m*)
Chemical oxygen demand (COD)in wastewater(tons)
Total waste (tons)
Non-hazardous waste (of total waste)
Breaches of regulatory limit values

2010 2009

2 2,234 2,246
3 2,047 2,149

65 79

4 95 146
4 6 6
4 57 N/A

5 1,935 2,062
5 555 617

6 25,627 26,362
6 54% 51%
7 18 10
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Notes to the Consolidated environmental statement

1 Basis of preparation of the Consolidated
environmental statement

The Consolidated environmental statement is prepared in accordance with
the same standards as those for the Consolidated social statement. For a
description of these standards, please refer to note 1 Basis of preparation of
the Consolidated social statement on p 92.

Principles of environmentaldisclosures
The Consolidated environmental statement and disclosures cover Novo
Nordisk A/S and entities controlled by Novo Nordisk A/S,

The environmentaldisclosures cover the impact from the production of
Novo Nordisk’s products. CO, emissions alsa include transportation. See
accounting policies for details.

Environmental accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied in
preparation of the Consolidated environmental statementforall the years
presented, with the following exception

‘Ethanol waste’, reported as part of the total waste, was previously reported
as 100% ethanol, meaning the actual waste amount was converted to
100% ethanol. This was done to makeit transparent how much ethanal
was recycled/incinerated rather than how much waste was actually pro-
duced. Going forward it will be the actual amount of waste produced and
not only the amount of ethanolthat is reported. Historical data have been
restated accordingly.

Please refer to the accounting policies below for information on the
enviranmental disclosures.

Energy consumption
Energy consumption (direct and indirect supply) is measured as both direct
supply of energy {internally produced energy), which is energy Novo Nordisk
produces from natural gas, fuel oil and other types, and indirect supply of
external energy (externally produced energy), whichis electricity, steam and
district heat. The consumption of fuel and externally produced energy is
based on meter readings and invoices.

Water consumption
Water consumption is measured based on meter readings and invoices.It
includes drinking water, industrial water and steam.

Raw materials and packaging materials
Raw materials and packaging materials comprise materials for production
and related processes, and packaging of products, and is recorded based on
registrations in the procurement system. The consumption of raw materials
and packaging is converted to metri¢ tons.

CO, emissions from energy consumption
The amount of CO, emissions from energy consumption covers consump-
tion related to production measured in metric tons. The COz emissions
from energy consumption are calculated according to the GHG protocol.
Emissions of CO2 from energy consumption are based on standard factors
for own fuel consumption, and for energy supplied fram external energy
suppliers on a three-year average of available emission factors. Hence, emis-
sion factors for 2011 are the three-year average of 2008-2010,
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CO» emissions from refrigerants
CQ; emissions from refrigerants is calculated by converting to metric tons.
using standard factors.

CO, emissions from transport
COemissions from transport is calculated as the estimated emissions
from product distribution in metric tons. It is calculated as the worldwide
distribution of semi-finished and finished products, raw materials and com-
ponents byair, sea and road between production sites and from production
sites to affiliates, direct customers and importing distributors. CO emis-
sions from product distribution from affiliates to pharmacies, hospitals and
wholesalers are not included.

Wastewater
The volume of wastewater is measured as process wastewater, sanitary
wastewater and drainage waterfrom fortified areas. The total volume of
wastewateris calculated based on input from the productionsites either
as a direct measure of the total sum discharged to public sewer systems or
as the total consumption of waterof the site minus registered evaporation
from cooling systems (including cooling towers and otherplants from
which evaporation occurs) and any large amount of wastewatercollected
and treated as waste.

Chemical oxygen demand (COD) in wastewater
CODis a measure of the level of pollutants in the water andis calculated
based on in-house test results or standard factors,

Total waste
Total waste is measured as the sum of non-hazardous and hazardous waste
disposed of based on weight receipts. Due to a change in accounting
policy for calculation of ethanol waste, the amount of waste disposed of as
hazardous has increased significantly. Historical figures have been restated
accordingly.

Non-hazardous waste (oftotal waste)
Non-hazardous waste is calculated as the waste disposed of as non-
hazardous as a percentageof the total amount of waste disposed of. Due
to the changein the accounting policy for ethanol waste, the historical
figures for the percentage of non-hazardous waste have been restated
accordingly.

Breaches of regulatory limit values
Breachesof regulatory limit values are all breaches reported to the
authorities.
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2 Energy consumption

In 2011, the consumption of energy decreased by 2% compared with 2010
even though production increased. The decrease was obtained through
continuous process optimisations and energy management.

 

 

1,000 GJ 2010 2009

Diabetes care 1,513 1,544
Biopharmaceuticals 298 292
Other! 423 410

Total 2,234 2,246 

1. ‘Other’ consists of consumption that cannot directly be linked te the production of
either diabetes care or biopharmaceuticals,

3 Water consumption

The consumption of water increased by 4% in 2011 compared with 2010,
reflecting increased production. The increase is relatively small compared
with the increase in production cue to continuous process optimisations
and water-saving projects at sites with high water consumption.

 

 

1,000 m3 2010 2009

Diabetes care 1,719 1,817
Biopharmaceuticals 142 143
Other! 186 189

Total 2,047 2,149 

1. ‘Other’ consists of consumption that cannotbe directly linked to the production of
diabetes care or biopharmaceuticals.

4 CO: emissions

The reduction of CO, emissions from refrigerants was due to the con-
tinuous focus on eliminating refrigerants with a high global warming
Potential and a high focus on maintenance and servicing of cooling systems.

 

 

1,000 tons 2010 2009

CO, emissions from energy consumption 95 146
~ Diabetes care 68 99
— Biopharmaceuticals 9 19
— Other! 18 28
CO. emissions from refrigerants 6 6
COz emissions fram transport 57 NWA

Total 158 N/A 

1. ‘Other’ consists of consumption that cannot directly be linked to the production of
either diabetes care or biopharmaceuticals.

5 Wastewater and chemical oxygen demand (COD)
in wastewater

The total volume of wastewater increased by 5% fram 1,935,000 m3 in
2010 to 2,036,000 m? in 2011, primarily due to increased water consump-
tion. The quantity of discharged COD in the wastewater decreased by 20%
due to changesin the wastewater handling ata pilot facility and production
variance in general,

6 Waste

In 2011, the total amount of waste increased by 61% from 25,691 tons in
2010 to 41,376tons. This significant increase was solely due to the disposal
of a large amount of yeast slurry. This waste fraction was previously used
as pig feed, but due to changesin regulatory requirements from 2011 the
yeast slurry is now sent to a biogasplant. This change impacts the quantity
of non-hazardous waste recycled, which increased significantly. Excluding
the yeast slurry, the amount of waste disposed of in 2011 remained stable
compared with 2010 even though production increased.

Tons 2010 2009 

Non-hazardous waste 13,911 13,432

 

— Recyded (%) 53 57
—Incinerated (%)! 20 21
— Landfill (96) 7 5
— Special treatment (9%) 20 17
Hazardous waste? 11,716 12,930
— Recycled ethanol (9%)? 48 51
= Incinerated ethanol (96}+ 29 26
— Other (%) 23 23

Total? 25,627 26,362 

Recycling percentage of total waste 51% 55%

 
 

1. Of which 94% with energy recovery.
2, Due to.a change in the accounting policy for calculation of ethanol waste, the

amountof waste disposed of as hazardous has increased significantly, Historical
figures have been restated accordingly.

3, Ethanal recycled in eg biogas or wastewater treatmentplants.
4, |ncinerated at combined heat and power plants or at plants for special treatment of

hazardous waste with energy recovery.

7 Breaches of regulatory limit values

The numberof breaches of regulatory limit values increased by 22% from
18 breaches in 2010 to 22 in 2011, mainly due to breaches related to pH
in wastewater. All breaches were short-term events with no impact on the
environment.
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PartofManagement'sreview—FiveyearscomparativefiquresinEUR

Summary offinancial data 2007-2011 in EUR
 

 

 

 

 

 

EUR millian 2007 2008 2009 2010

Sales 5,614 6,109 6,860 8,161

Sales by business segment:
Moderninsulins {insulin analogues) 1,880 2,323 2,883 3,572
Humaninsulins 1,687 1,583 1,520 1,588
Victoza® = = 12 311
Protein-related products 235 247 265 297
Oral antidiabetic products (OAD) 288 321 356 369

Diabetes care total 4,030 4,474 5,036 6,137

NovoSeven® 788 858 950 1,078
Norditropin® 471 518 591 645
Hormonereplacement therapy 224 216 234 254
Other products 44 43 49 47

Biopharmaceuticals total 1,524, 1,635 1,824 2,024

Sales by geographical segment:
North America 1,845 2,032 2,454 3,170
Europe 2,194 2,309 2,356 2,506
International Operations! 708 Wi? 917 1,119
Japan & Korea 596 638 657 760
Region China! 271 353 476 606

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 404 328 343 331
Operating profit 1,200 1,660 2,005 2,537
Netfinancials 272 43 (126) (82)
Profit before income taxes 1,472 1,703 1,879 2,455
Income taxes 328 409 433 521
Netprofit for the year 1,144 1,294 1,446 1,934

Total assets 6,401 6,792 7,356 8,237
Total currentliabilities 1,427 1,739 1,802 2,521
Total non-currentliabilities 658 627 752 757
Equity 4,316 4,426 4,802 4,959

Capital expenditure, net 304 235 353 ah
Free cash flaw? 1,210 1,478 1,656 2,284
Net cash flow 220 552 307 118

 
 

1. As of 1 January 2011, Region China is reported as a separate geographical region. Before 2011, Region China waspart of International Gperations.
The historical figures for 2007-2010 have been restated and are comparable with the 2011 regional set-up.

2. Fordefinitions, please refer to p 65.

The translation of Income statement ttems is based on the average exchange rate in 2011 (EUR 1= DKK 7.45) and the translation of Balance sheet items is based on the exchange rate
at the end of 2011 (EUR 1= DKK7.43). The figures in DKK reflect the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances of the Group.
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Quarterly financial figures 2010 and 2011

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 

 

2010

DKK million Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Sales 13,674 15,394 15,584 16,124

Sales by business segment:
Modern insulins (insulin analogues) 5,862 6,792 6,820 7,127
Human insulins 2,773 3,099 2,963 2,992
Victoza® 370 296 700 951
Protein-related products 503 583 567 561
Oral antidiabetic products (OAD) 645 704 736 666

Diabetes care total 16,153 11,474 11,786 12,297

NovoSeven® 1,914 2,155 1,965 1,996
Norditropin® 1,083 1,245 1,233 1,242
Hormone replacement therapy 443 450 517 482
Otherproducts 81 70 83 107

Biopharmaceuticals total 3,521 3,920 3,798 3,827

Sales by geographical segment:
North America 5,221 5,988 6,114 6,286
Europe 4,432 4,671 4,675 4,886
International Operations! 1,835 2,213 2,127 2,160
Japan & Korea 1,156 1,439 1,454 1,611
Region China! 1,030 1,083 1,214 1,181

Gross profit 10,984 12,425 12,648 13,039
Sales and distribution costs 3,984 4,364 4,573 5,274
Research and development costs 2,131 2,434 2,302 2,735
Administrative expenses 711 745 759 850
Licence fees and other operating income (net} 224 159 110 164
Operating profit 4,382 5,041 5,124 4,344
Net financials (65) (433) (468) 361
Profit before income taxes 4,317 4,608 4,656 4,705
Income taxes 993 1,060 1,071 759

Net profit 3,324 3,548 3,585 3,946

Depreciation, amortisation and impairmentlosses 581 595 607 684

Total assets 54,155 57,048 57,162 61,402
Total equity 32,916 33,635 34,264 36,965

Financial ratios

As percentage of sales
Sales and distribution costs 29.1% 28.3% 29.3% 32.7%
Research and development costs 15.6% 15.8% 14.8% 17.0%
Administrative expenses 5.2% 4.8% 4.5% 5.3%

Gross margin2 80.3% 80.7% 81.2% 80.9%
Operating profit margin? 32.0% 32.7% 32.9% 26.9%
Equity ratio2 60.8% 59.0% 59.9% 60.2%

Share ratios

Basic earnings per share/ADR {in DKK) 5.66 6.07 6.21 6.87
Diluted earnings per share/ADR {in DKK} 5.61 6.02 6.15 6.82

Average number of shares outstanding (million) — basic 587.6 584.0 577.6 572.7
Average number of shares outstanding (million) — diluted 593.0 588.9 582.3 577.5

Employees

Numberof full-time employees at the end of the period 29,154 29,364 29,515 30,014

1. As of | January 2011, Region China is reported as a separate geographical region. Before 2011, Region China was part of International Operations.
The historical figures for Q1-Q4 2010 have been restated and are comparable with the 2011 regional set-up.

2. For definitions, please refer to p 65.
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Income statement for the year ended 31 December
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DKK million Note 2010

Sales 2 37,261
Cost of goodssold 3 11,609

Gross profit 25,652

Sales and distribution costs 3 10,196
Research and development costs 3 7,998
Administrative expenses 3,4 1,385
Licence fees and other operating income (net) 691

Operating profit 6,764

Profit in subsidiaries, net of tax 10 9,475
Share ofprofit in associated companies, net of tax 10 1,089
Financial income 5 437

Financial expenses 5 1,884

Profit before income taxes 15,881

Income taxes 6 1,466

Net profit for the year 14,415

Propesed appropriation of net profit:
Dividends 5,700
Net revaluation reserve according to the equity method 9,10 1,573
Retained earnings 9 7,142

14,415
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Balancesheetat31December

Balance sheet at 31 December

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DKK million Note 2010

Assets

Intangible assets 7 1,083
Property, plant and equipment 8 14,418
Financial assets 10 19,314

Total non-current assets 34,815

Raw materials 1,231
Workin progress 4,896
Finished goods 1,551

Inventories 7,678

Trade receivables 1,388
Amounts owed byaffiliates 6,748
Tax receivables 518
Other receivables 879

Receivables 9,533

Deferred income tax assets 12 -

Marketable securities 3,872
Derivative financial instruments 108
Cash at bank and in hand 11,418

Total current assets 32,609

Total assets 67,424

Equity andliabilities

Share capital 600
Net revaluation reserve according to the equity method 10,149
Retained earnings 26,207

Total equity 9 36,956

Deferred incometaxliabilities 12 204

Other provisions 13 561

Total provisions 765

Loans 504

Non-currentliabilities 11 504

Current debt 511

Derivative financial instruments 1,158
Trade payables 1,479
Amounts owed to affiliates 23,186
Tax payables -
Otherliabilities 2,865

Currentliabilities 29,199

Total liabilities 29,703

Total equity and liabilities 67,424
 

104 Nowe Nordisk Annual Report 2011

 
MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 106



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 107

Notes to the Financial statements

1 Accounting policies

The Financial statements of the Parent company have been preparedin
accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act (Class D) and other
accounting regulations for companieslisted on NASDAQ OMX Copen-
hagen,

The accounting policies for the Financial statements of the Parent company
are unchanged from the |ast financial year and are the same as for the
Consolidated financial statements with the following additions. For a
description of the accounting policies of the Group, please refer to note 1,
‘Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements’, pp 60-64.

Supplementary accounting policies for the Parent company

Financial assets
In the Financial statements of the Parent company, investments in sub-
sidiaries and associated companies are recorded under the equity method,
which is at the respective share of the net asset values in subsidiaries and
associated companies, Any cost in excess of net assets in the acquired
companyis capitalised in the Parent company underFinancial assets as
part of investments in subsidiaries (‘Goodwill’), Amortisation of goodwill is
provided underthe straight-line method over a period not exceeding
20 years based on estimated usefullife,

Netprofit of subsidiaries less unrealised intra-Groupprofits is recorded in
the Income statement of the Parent company.

To the extent it exceeds declared dividends from such companies, net
revaluation of investments in subsidiaries and associated companiesis trans-
ferred to Net revaluation reserve according to the equity method under
Equity.

Fair value adjustments of financial assets categorised as Available for sale
in the Parent company are recognised in the Income statement.

Profits in subsidiaries and associated companies are disclosed as profit
after tax.

Tax
For Danish tax purposes, the Parent company is assessed jointly with its
Danish subsidiaries. The Danish jointly taxed companies are included in a
Danish on-account tax payment scheme for Danish corporate income tax.
All current taxes under the scheme are recorded in the individual com-
panies.

Statement of cash flows
No separate staternent of cash flaws has been prepared for the Parent com-
pany; please refer to the Consolidated statementof cash flows on p 58.

2 Sales

DKK million 

Sales by business segment!Diabetes care total
Biopharmaceuticals total 

Total sales 

Sales by geographical segment!
Europe
North America
International Operations
Japan & Korea
Region China 

Total sales

 
 

Sales are attributed to geographical segment based on lacation of thecustomer.

1. For definitions of the segments, please refer to note 2 to the Consolidated financial
statements, pp 66-67.

3 Employee costs
 

 

 

BKK million 2010

Wages and salaries 6,038
Share-based payment costs 329
Pensions 576
Othersocial security contributions 155
Other employee costs 250

Total employee costs 7,348

Included in the Balance sheet as change
in employee costs included in Inventories (276)

 
 

Forinformation regarding remuneration to the Board of Directors and
Executive Management,please refer to ‘Remuneration report’ in ‘Corporate
governance, remuneration and leadership’, pp 44-47, and note 4 to the
Consolidated financial statements, p 68.

 

  
 

   
 

 

 

 

2010

Average number of full-time
employees in Novo Nordisk A/S 11,052

4 Fee to statutory auditors
DKK million 2010

Statutory aucit 8
Audit-related services 4
Tax advisory services 7

Total fee to statutory auditors 19

5 Financial income andfinancial expenses
DKK million 2010

Interest income relating to subsidiaries 14
Foreign exchange gain (net) 206
Otherfinancial income 217

Total financial income 437

Interest expenses relating to subsidiaries 122
Foreign exchangeloss (net) -
Other financial expenses 1,762

Total financial expenses 1,884

 
 

6 Income taxes

The Parent company paid income taxes of DKK 3,075 million related to the
current year (DKK 1,838 million in 2010), In 2011, Nove Nordisk A/S received
DKK 269 million in refund from prior year’s taxable income (a payment
of DKK 12 million in 2010). Furthermore DKK 19 million has been paid by
Danish subsidiaries {a refund of DKK 24 million in 2010).

Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011=105

MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 107

Notes-Financialstatements



MPI EXHIBIT 1130 PAGE 108

Notes—Financialstatements

7 Intangible assets
DKK million 

Cost at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year 

Cost at the end of the year 

Amortisation at the beginning of the year
Amortisation during the year
Impairment losses for the year
Amortisation reversed on disposals during the year 

Amortisation at the end ofthe year 

Carrying amountat the end of the year

 
 

Intangible assets primarily relate to patents and licences and internally developed software and costs related to major IT projects.

8 Property, plant and equipment

 

 

 

 

 

Land and Plant and Other Payments
buildings. machinery equipment on accountand assets

in course of
DKKmillion construction

Cost at the beginning of the year 10,139 14,050 1,833 2,339
Additions during the year 143 165 88 1,331
Disposals during the year (146) (512) (123)
Transfer from/(to) other items 372 594 55 (1.021)

Cost at the end of the year 10,508 14,297 1,853 2,649

Depreciation and impairmentlosses at the beginning of the year 3,863 8,874 1,206 -
Depreciation for the year 437 1,132 156
Impairment losses for the year 28 65
Depreciation reversed on disposals during the year (137) (453) (121)

Depreciation and impairment losses at the end of the year 4,191 9,618 1,241 -

Carrying amountat the end ofthe year 6.317 4,679 612 2,649
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2010

1,331
405
(42)

1,694

550

1,083

2010
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9 Statement of changesin equity

 

 

Share Net Retained 2010
capital revaluation earnings

DKK millian reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 600 10,149 26,207 35.705
Appropriated from Net profit far the year 11,079 7,142
Proposed dividends 7,742 5,700
Appropriated from Net profit for the year to Net revaluation reserve (1,767) 1,573
Effect of hedged forecast transactions transferred to the Income statement 658 (422)
Fair value adjustments of cash flaw hedges for the year (1,118) (635)
Dividends paid (5,700) (4,400)
Share-based payments (note 3) 126 329
Purchase oftreasury shares (10,839) (9,498)
Sale of treasury shares 244 678
Reduction of the B share capital (20) 20 0
Exchangerate adjustments of investments in subsidiaries (157) (16) 300
Tax on own shares (123) -
Other adjustments 363 484

Balance at the end of the year 580 8,225 28,643 36,956

 
 

Please refer to note 10 to the Consolidated financial statements, p 69, regarding average numberof shares.
Please refer to note 18 to the Consolidated financial statements, p 75, regarding total number of 4 and B shares in Nove Nordisk A/S andtreasury shares.

10 Financial assets

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Investments Amounts Investments Other
in subsidiaries owed by in associated securities

affiliates companies and
DKK million investments

Cost at the beginning of the year 8,741 88 134 560
Investments during the year 64. 55
Divestments during the year (42) (31)
Transferred from associated companies to Other securities

Cost at the end of the year 8,305 101 134 529

Value adjustments at the beginning of the year 24,821 - (95) (G58) 21,379
ProfitAloss) before tax 13,621 13,106
Incame taxes on profit for the year (2,629) (2,417)
Amortisation and impairment of goodwill (58)
Dividends received (12,041) (7,903)
Transferred from associated companies to Other securities -
Divestments during the year 31 (808)
Effect of exchange rate adjustment 11 (1) 1 1,030
Other adjustments (224) (24) 39

Value adjustments at the end of the year 23,559 an] (95) (350) 24,368

Offset against amounts owed by subsidiaries
at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

At the end of the year - - - -

Untealised internal profit at the beginning of the year (14,577) (13,459)
Changefor the year -— charged to Income statement (498) (82)
Changefor the year = charged to Equity (348)
Effect of exchange rate adjustment (164) (688)

At the end of the year (15,239) - - -

Carrying amountat the end of the year 17,125 100 39 179 19,314 

Carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and associated companies does notinclude capitalised goodwill at the end of the year.

A list of companies in the Novo Nordisk Groupis found in note 33 to the Consolidated financial statements, pp 89-90.
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Notes—Financialstatements

11 Non-currentliabilities

Non-currentliabilities due more than five years from the balance sheet
date amount te DKK 306 million of the total of DKK 502 million (DKK 359
million of the total of DKK 504 million in 2010),

12 Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)

 

  
DKKtmillion 2010

The deferred tax assets/iabilities are
allocated to the various balance sheet
items as follows:
Property, plant and equipment (1,233)
Indirect production costs (956)
Unrealised profit on intra-Group sales 1,780
Other 205

Total incometax assets/(liabilities) (204) 

The deferred income tax has been calculated using a tax rate of 25%,

For a specification of deferred income tax posted directly in equity, please
refer to note 9 to the Consolidatedfinancial statements, p 69.

13 Other provisions
 

 

DKKtmillion 2010

Non-current 401
Current 160

Total other provisions 561
  

Provisions for pendinglitigations are recognised as other provisions.
Furthermore, as part of normal business Novo Nordisk issues credit notes
for expired goods. Consequently, a provision for future returns is made,
based on historical product returns statistics.
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14 Commitments and contingencies
DKK millian 

Commitments
Lease commitments
Contractual obligations relating to
investments in property, plant and equipment
Guarantees given for subsidiaries
Obligations relating to research and
developmentprojects
Other guarantees and commitments

Lease commitments expiring
within the following periods
from the balance sheet date
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years 

Total lease commitments 

The lease costs for 2011 and 2010 were
DKK 308 million and DKK 279 million respectively.

Security for debt
Land, buildings and equipment etc
at carrying arnount

 
 

For information on pendinglitigation and other contingencies, please refer
to note 31 to the Consolidated financial statements, pp 86-87.

15 Related party transactions

For information on transactions with related parties, please refer to note 32
to the Consolidated financial statements, p 88.
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Statement by the Board of Directors and Executive Management on the Annual Report

Today, the Board of Directors and Executive Management approved the Annual Report of Novo Nordisk A/S for the year 2011.

The Consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standardsas issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), and International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the EU, The Financial statements of the Parent company, Nava
Nordisk A/S, are prepared jn accordance with the Danish Financial Staternents Act.

Further, the Consolidated financial statements, the Financial staternents of the Parent company and Management's Review are prepared in accordance with
additional Danish disclosure requirementsforlisted companies.

{nour opinion, the Consolidated financial statements and the Financial statements of the Parent company give a true and fair view of the financial position at
31 December 2011, the results of the Group and Parent company operations and consolidated cash flows for the financial year 2011. Furthermore, in our
opinian, Management's Review includes a true and fair account of the developmentin the operations and financial circumstances, of the results for the year
and of the financial position of the Group and the Parent company aswell as a description of the mastsignificant risks and elements of uncertainty facing
the Group and the Parent company,

Nove Nordisk’s Consolidated social and environmental statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting principles of materiality, inclusivity
and responsiveness of AAJ O00APS(2008). They give a balanced and reasonable presentation of the organisation's social and environmental performance.

We recommend that the Annual Report be adopted at the Annual General Meeting.

Bagsvaerd, 1 February 2012

 Ka Rbt
Executive Management Lars Rebien Serensen Jesper Brandgaard

President and CEQ CFO

Lise Kinga Kare Schultz Mads Krogsgaard Thomsen

Sota BAD ie:Cc e <

Board of Directors Sten Scheibye Géran A Ando Bruno AngelicChairman Vice chairman

Uti.=Whkh bela)
Henrik Gdrtler Ulrik Hjulmand-Lassen Thomas Paul Koestler

 hit!Abbe(Webapslop
Anne Marie Kvernelan Kurt Anker Nielsen Seren Thuesen Pedersen

Chairman of
the Audit Committee

Hannu Rydéppénen Stig Strabaek Jergen Wedel
Audit Committee member Audit Committee member
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independent Auditor's Reports
To the Sharehalders of Novo Nordisk A/S

Report on Consolidated financial statements and
Financial statements of the Parent Company
We have audited the Consolidated financial statements and the Financial
statements of Nove Nordisk A/S for the financial year 2011, pp 55-90 and
pp 102-108, which comprise Income Statement, Statement of Compre-
hensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes
including accounting policies for the Group as well.as for the Parent Com-
pany and Consolidated Cash Flaw Staternent.

The Consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board, and International Financial Reparting
Standards as endorsed by the EU. The Financial statements of the Parent
Company are prepared in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements
Act. Moreover, both the Consolidated financial statements and the Finan-
cial statements of the Parent Company are prepared in accordance with
additional Danish disclosure requirements forlisted companies.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated financial
statements and the Financial statements of the Parent Company
The Managementis responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated
financial staternents and the Financial statements of the Parent Company
that give a true and fair view in accordance with the above legislation
and accounting standards, and for such internal contral as Management
determines is necessary to enable preparation of Consolidated financial
statements and Financial statements of the Parent Company that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror,

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Consolidated financial
statements and the Financial statements of the Parent Company based on
our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with International
standards on Auditing and additional requirements under Danish Audit
regulation. This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated financial statements and the Financial statements of the
Parent Companyare free from material misstatement,

110 Novo Nordisk Annual Report 2011

An audit involves periorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements and

the Financial statements of the Parent Company. The proceduresselected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Consolidatedfinancial statements and the
Financial statements of the Parent Company, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation of Consolidated financial state-
ments and Financial statements of the Parent Company that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Managemen, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe Consolidated financial statements.and the Financial statements of the
Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

Our audit has notresulted in any qualification.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position at 31 December 2011 of the Group and of
the results of the Group's operations and consolidated cash flows for the
financial year 2011 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and
International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the EU and
additional Danish disclosure requirements for listed companies. Moreover,
in our opinion the Financial statements of the Parent Company give a
true and fair view of the financial position at 31 December 2011 and of the
results of the Parent Company's operations for the financial year 2011 inaccordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act and additional Danish
disclosure requirements forlisted companies.

Statement on Management's Review

We have read Management's Review, pp 2-54 and pp 100-101 in
accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.

Onthis basis, it is our opinion that the information provided in the Manage-
ment’s Review is consistent with the Consolidated financial statements and
the Financial statements of the Parent Company.

Bagsveerd,.1 February 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisianspartnerselskab

ogy X
Lars Baungaard
Danish State Authorised
Public Accountant
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Independent Assurance Report on the social and
environmental reporting for 2011

To the Stakeholders of Novo Nordisk

We have reviewed the Consolidated sacial and environmental informa-
tion in the Annual Report of Novo Nordisk A/S for the financial year 2011,
which comprises Management's Review, the social accounting policies and
environmental accounting policies for social and environmental information
and the Consolidated socia| and environmental statement on pp 2-54 and
pp 91-99,

The assurance engagement has furthermore covered the nature and
extent of Novo Nordisk incorporation of the AA1000 AccountAbility
Principles Standard (AA1TOO0APS(2008)) principles (inclusivity, materiality
and responsiveness) With respect to stakeholder dialogue.

Criteria for the preparation of reporting on data
The Consolidated social and environmental information is prepared in ac-
cordance with the social accounting policies and environmental accounting
policies described on pp 92-94 and p 98.

Management's responsibility
The Managementis responsible for preparing the Consolidated social and
environmental information, including for establishing data collection and
registration, internal control systems with a view to ensuring reliable
reporting, specifying acceptable reporting criteria and choosing data to
be collected for intended users of the report. Also, adherence to
AA1000APS(2008) and the three principles of inclusivity, materiality and
responsiveness is the responsibility of Management.

Assurance provider's responsibility
Our responsibility is, on the basis of our work, to express a conclusion
on the reliability of the Consolidated social and environmental information
in the Annual Report. Furthermore, our responsibility is, by applying the
AA1000 Assurance Standard (AA100AS(2008)), ta express a conclusion
on as well as to make recommendationsfor the nature and extent of Nova

Nordisk’s adherence to the AA1OG0APS(2008)principles.

Our team of experts have competences in respect of assurance engage-
ments related to Consolidated social and environmental information. In
addition, our team have competences in assessing social and environmental
information and sustainability management, and thus qualify to conduct
this independent assurance engagement. During 2011 we have not per-
formed any tasks or services to Novo Nordisk or other clients that would
conflict with our independence, nor have we been responsible for the
preparation of any part of the report; and therefore qualify as independent
as defined. by in AATOO0A5(2008).

Scope, standards and criteria used
We have planned and performed our work in accordance with the Inter
national Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000, “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Informa-
tion”, to obtain limited assurance that the Consolidated social and environ-
mental information in the Annual Report is free of material misstatements
and that the information has been presented in accordance with the social
accounting policies and environmental accounting policies here for. The
assurance obtainedis limited, as aur wark compared ta that of an engage-
ment with reasonable assurance has beenlimited to, principally, inquiries,
interviews and analytical procedures related to registration and communica-
tion systems, data and underlying documentation.

Moreover, we have planned and performed our work based on the
AA1000A5(2008), using the criteria in the AA 1O00APS(2008), to perform a
Type ? engagement and to obtain a moderate level of assurance regarding
the nature and extent of Novo Nordisk’s adherence to the principles of
inclusivity, materiality and responsiveness.

Methodology, approach, limitation and scope of work
Based on an assessment of materiality and msk, our work included:
(i) Inquiries regarding procedures and methods to ensure that social and
environmental reporting include data fram the Group's Business Unit
pperations, and that these data have been incorporated in compliance
with the sacial accounting policies and environmental accounting policies.
Through site visits to Bagsvaerd, Gentofte, Kalundborg and Clayton and
based on requests and selected documentation, we have furthermore
assessed the existing systems for data collection and registration, and
procedures to ensure reliable reporting;
(i) Inquiries and interviews with members of Executive Management, the
Board and staff fram the sustainability developrnent department, as well
as Management representing different functions in the Group, regarding
Novo Nordisk’s adherence to the principles of inclusivity, materiality and
responsiveness, including Management's commitmentta the principles, the
existence of systems and procedures to support adherence to the principles
and the embedding of the principles at corporate level.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come te our attention which causes us
not to believe that the Consolidated social and environmental information
presented in the Annual Report of Novo Nordisk A/S for 2011 (on pp 2-54
and pp 91-99)is free of material misstatements and has been stated in
accordance with the social accounting policies and environmental account-
ing policies here for.

Furthermore, nothing has come to our attention causing us to believe that
Novo Nordisk does hot adhere to the AATOO0APS(2008) principles.

Observations and recommendations
According to AA100048(2008), we are required to include observations
and recommendations for improvements in relation to adherence to the
AATOO0APS(2008)principles:

Regarding inclusivity
Nove Nordisk’s Management has a strong commitment to inclusivity and
stakeholder engagement. Also, the Company has in place systems and
processes to ensure a continuous mappingof relevant stakeholders, as
well as a structured and systematic approach to ensuring the inclusion of
stakeholder concerns, demands and expectations at.a corporate level,

We recommend that Novo Nordisk continue to wark on ensuring a
systematic and structured approach to the AA] O00APS(2008)principles
at a local level, and that the company in general continue to cormmunicate
and guide on stakeholder involvement internally. Finally, we recommend
that Nove Nordisk increasingly engage in expanding social and environ-
mental competences at the company's strategic suppliers.

Regarding materiality
Nove Nordisk’s Management systematically takes the principle of material-
ity into consideration when making decisions regarding sustainability at
managementlevel, Also, the Company has in place a number of relevant
senior management level governance bodies to discuss, evaluate and
determine the materiality of sustainability issues on ongoing basis.

We have no recommendations regarding materiality.

Regarding rasponsiveness
Novo Nordisk is committed to being responsive to stakeholders asis evident
from the wide range of media, forums and communication channels used
by Novo Nordisk to communicate on sustainability issues,

We have no recommendations regarding responsiveness,

Bagsveerd, | February 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab

ae
Lars Baungaard
Banish State Authorised
Public Accountant
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Additionalinformation

Index
In addition to the information reported in this integrated annual report, we report information for specific stakeholder groups at
annualreport2011.novonordisk.com. To help youfind information, this index is arranged according to the categories used online.
An explanation ofwhere you canfind information reported in accordance with voluntary reporting standardsis also included in below.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

UN Global

Topic Page(s)in this report Global ReportingInitiative Indicator Compact Principles

a——
Financial performance 5-9, 14, 56-59, 100-101
Socioeconomics - EC1, EC9

Tax contribution 8, 14, 23-24, 56-61, 69

Se}———————SSSs
Access to health 9-10, 21, 31-32, 34-35, 38-39 ECB 12

Donation 5-10, 34-35, 38-39, 86, 93 $01

Support and advocacy 20, 38-39
Clinical research 10, 26-27, 93-94 PR3 12

Bioethics - 12,7-9
Anirnal ethics 94

Gene technology -
Stem cell research 19

Safety and quality 10, 23, 93, 96 PRI-4
Public affairs 31-35, 37 505-6

ee
Our employees 10, 17, 20,95 EC?, LAI1-12 1-2, 3-6

Wages and benefits 44-47, 6B ECS, LA3—4, LAIZ 3+6

Workplace statistics 95

Diversity 9-10, 95 LAI3 3-6

Health and safety 10, 20, 96 LA? 3-6

Employee health programmes - LAB 3-6

Employee volunteering 20 $01

[alae?aeS
Business ethics 11, 21, 24 $02-3, PR6-7 10

Responsible sourcing 11,96 EC6, HR1-2 1-2, 3-6, 10

OO——_——_—_—|
Environmental approach - EN13, 30 79

Environmental priorities 11-12, 21-22, 99 EN1, 3-5, 7-9, 11, 16, 18, 20-23, 26, 30 79

Sgea”NeSeeeeeSeTeCaeesPi
Novo Nordisk Way 10-11, 17-18
Boards and committees 41-43

Managing risks 22-24

Corporate governance 41-43

“Stakeholdersandreporting
Stakeholder engagement 21, 34, 92

Memberships -

Partnerships 34-35, 38-39

Our reporting 60-64, 92-96, 98-99

“ditionalreporting
SEC Form 20-F 13, 43, 53

UN Global Compact - Communication on Progress 92

Global ReportingInitiative 92
International Integrated Reporting Framework 92 
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Our products
This report makes reference to European product trade names. The list below provides an overview of European trade names with
accompanying generic names. Trade and generic names may differ in ether markets.

 

 

 

 

 

 

Therapeutic area Trade name Generic name

ee————_——————Sy=
Modem insulins Laviggrnir Lavernir® Insulin detemir 5

hewnRice NewoRapki? Insulin aspart 5Novobr38 NowoMix® 30 Biphask Insulln aspart

News Novo ix® 50 Biphask Insulin aspart :Nenebo78 NovoMix® 70 Biphasic insulin aspart .
Glucagon-Like Peptide-1 You Vicloza® Liraghitice

Hurriart insulins. e — if Iréulatard™ Irsulin human

-_—T — Actapki* Insulin human

e::—8 Mixtard* 30 Insulin human

Diabetes devices —_ FlexTouch® Prefilled insulin delivery system

—==FlexPen® Prefiled insulin delivery system

itel NewoPan® 4 Durable Inéulln delivery system

= NovoPen Echo® Durable insulin delvery system
\ InnaLet® Prefiled insulin delivery system

° NowoFine® Needle

r Novelwist® Neecle

_— GlucaGen* Glucagon
Oral-antidiabetic agents rie NovoNom®* Repagiinide

rit Pranditlet® Repeginide‘metfarmin

 

 

 

 

 

 

Haernastasis Hemersover NovoSeven® Recombinant factor Vila
Human growth hormone fAordliropin" Norditropin® Somatropin (DMA origin)

Gla Norditropin® exPro®=Prefilled multkiose delivery system

eacmae FlexPro® PenMate® Automatic needle insertion accessory

==Norditropin® NordiAlex® refilled multidase delivery system

sl NordiAex PenMaie* Automatic needleinsertion accesscry

=seca NordiPen® Durable multidese delivery system

| NordiPenMate* Automatic needle Insertion accessory

(= a Noniilet* Prefilied multidose delivery system

Honmane replacement therapy * Activelle* Estradiol/norethisterane acetate

Cc> Estrafern® Estradiol
Novofem* Estradiol/norethisterone acetate

ee Vagifem® Estradial hemihyerate

harlot sharediataan on 7 med 37 ie froryiRAS Hatt, INES IVIDALS Curtomiond imeigiitr (Movember2077). rmietdhenntion for rotiAlpertAreartinea, Aabctrallm, Aacriria, Belgium, Beal, Pulm,
(Cobre, Coomrcth Mlmscatac: teh, Eppes, Escicrrin, Ftc, cbaSimei,Cac,Huu, Mei, Kwari Ptah; Ages,iceLalor,LAUuk,Lucigbocca, Prrae, Barreical,
Worry, Poland, Poorman,Seiecd Ara bla,Sire che, Slovenia, Goiths Afric, Soper, Pearmoestr, Srvwecmlamrich, Thar,met CUA marie Renee LASS, Peart celatccrttbaarea, ipare, ire,
(Chins, Conch Republic, Deremart, Finland, Germany, Horgeny, (tah Jepaary, Leted, Liteueeie, WeerZesiiencd. Merwery. Polar, Pecrruamle, Siewalde, Sdremenie. Seely,sveecheny, fallcerieercd the LMseltiveLAS.
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Headquarters
Novo Nordisk A/S
Novo Allé

2880 Bagsveerd, Denmark
Tel +45 4444 8888

annualreport@novonordisk.com

Transfer agents
Shareholders’ enquiries concerning dividend payments,transfer
of share certificates, consolidation of shareholder accounts and
tracking of lost shares should be addressed to Novo Nordisk’s
transfer agents:

Danske Bank
Holmens Kanal 2-12

1092 Copenhagen K, Denmark
Tel +45 3344 0000

In North America:

JP Morgan Chase & Co
PO Box 64504

St Paul, MN 55164-0504, USA
Tel +1 800 990 1135
Tel +1 651 453 2128

CVR number 24 25 67 90

novonordisk.com
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KELLY HECTOR

At the age of two-and-a-half, Kelly was diagnosed with type 1
diabetes, The news cameas a major shock to her parents.Since that
day, they have had canstant concern about their daughter's health.

Now sevenyears old, Kelly can not remember a time when shedid
not have diabetes. Sheis a first-grader in elementary schoolin New
Jersey, US, and makes every effort to live a normal life. She loves
sports, especially baseball, as well as reading andart.

Kelly would love to inject insulin fewer times every day —and to
eventually benefit from research to find a cure for type 1 diabetes.
Her father has raised over 10,000 USdollars for research through
fundraising bike rides to benefit JDRF (formerly known as the
Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation).

At Novo Nordisk’s Hagedorn ResearchInstitute in Denmark, we are
conducting research to tackle the roots of diabetes, in the hope of
finding a cure for peoplelike Kelly. In the meantime, weare raising
awareness of the impact of diabetes and improving treatment so
that the millions of people who mustlive with diabetescanlivelife
to the fullest.
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